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CORPORATE INFORMATION
D EEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. XIE Zhichun (Chairman)
(resigned on 22 August 2022)

Dr. LIU Zhiwei (Chairman)
(appointed on 22 August 2022)

Mr. ZHU Yi (Chief Executive Officer)
(resigned on 15 September 2022)
Mr. HUA Yang (Chief Executive Officer’)

(appointed on 24 March 2023)
Ms. SUN Qing
Mr. LIU Haoyuan
(re-designated on 29 November 20222)

1 Mr. HUA Yang was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer with
effect from 4 January 2023.

2 Mr. LIU Haoyuan was appointed as a non-executive Director with
effect from 22 August 2022 and was re-designated to an executive
Director with effect from 29 November 2022.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. HAN Hanting
Mr. CHEN Zhiwei

(removed on 11 November 2022)
Mr. WU Ling

(retired on 27 September 2022)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHAN Kin Sang
Mr. CHIU Kung Chik
Mr. LI Gaofeng
Mr. LIU Xin
(retired on 27 September 2022)
Mr. ZHAO Gen
(appointed on 22 August 2022 and resigned on 7 December 2022)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. LI Ching Yi

(resigned on 29 July 2022)
Ms. LAM Wing Chi

(appointed on 29 July 2022)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. ZHU Yi

(resigned on 15 September 2022)
Dr. LIU Zhiwei

(appointed on 15 September 2022)
Ms. LI Ching Yi

(resigned on 29 July 2022)
Ms. LAM Wing Chi

(appointed on 29 July 2022)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. CHIU Kung Chik (Chairman)
Mr. CHAN Kin Sang
Mr. LI Gaofeng
Mr. LIU Xin
(retired on 27 September 2022)
Mr. ZHAO Gen
(appointed on 22 August 2022 and resigned on 7 December 2022)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. CHIU Kung Chik (Chairman)
Mr. XIE Zhichun

(resigned on 22 August 2022)
Mr. ZHU Yi

(resigned on 15 September 2022)
Mr. LI Gaofeng
Mr. LIU Xin

(retired on 27 September 2022)
Dr. LIU Zhiwei

(appointed on 22 August 2022)
Mr. LIU Haoyuan

(appointed on 22 August 2022 and resigned on 24 March 2023)

Mr. ZHAO Gen
(appointed on 22 August 2022 and resigned on 7 December 2022)

Mr. CHAN Kin Sang

(appointed on 7 December 2022)
Mr. HUA Yang

(appointed on 24 March 2023)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued)
~EEH (HF)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. XIE Zhichun (Chairman)
(resigned on 22 August 2022)
Dr. LIU Zhiwei (Chairman)
(appointed on 22 August 2022)
Mr. ZHU Yi
(resigned on 15 September 2022)
Mr. CHIU Kung Chik
Mr. LI Gaofeng
Mr. LIU Xin
(retired on 27 September 2022)
Mr. LIU Haoyuan
(appointed on 22 August 2022 and resigned on 24 March 2023)

Mr. ZHAO Gen
(appointed on 22 August 2022 and resigned on 7 December 2022)

Mr. CHAN Kin Sang

(appointed on 7 December 2022)
Mr. HUA Yang

(appointed on 24 March 2023)

AUDITOR

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants and
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

REGISTERED OFFICE

P.O. Box 309, Ugland House
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE
OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Units No. 4102-06, 41/F

COSCO Tower

183 Queen’s Road Central

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 3103 2007/(852) 3105 1863
Fax: (852) 3103 2010/(852) 3105 1862
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued)

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Chong Hing Bank Limited

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co., Ltd.,
Hong Kong Branch

China Guangfa Bank Co., Ltd., Hong Kong Branch

The Bank of East Asia, Limited

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

SUNTERA (CAYMAN) LIMITED
Suite 3204, Unit 2A, Block 3
Building D, P.O. Box 1586
Gardenia Court, Camana Bay
Grand Cayman, KY1-1100
Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Union Registrars Limited

Suites 3301-04, 33/F.

Two Chinachem Exchange Square
338 King’s Road

North Point Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2849 3399

Fax: (852) 2849 3319

STOCK CODE

290

WEBSITE

www.290.com.hk
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (each a
“Director”) of GoFintech Innovation Limited (“GoFintech” or the
“Company’, together with its subsidiaries collectively referred to
as the “Group”), | hereby present the overall performance of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2023.

2022 was a very challenging year in terms of both international
geopolitics and global business environment. The ongoing Russia-
Ukraine conflict has intensified global geopolitical risks, with
tensions causing energy and raw material prices to soar and
inflation to rise in Europe and the US. As inflation continued and
the US Federal Reserve accelerated the pace of interest rate
hikes, high interest rates led to a downturn in global financial
markets, declines in major stock markets and a slowdown
in global economy. The past year has been very tough and
challenging for the Hong Kong capital market due to the impacts
of the macro environment and the COVID-19 pandemic. The Hang
Seng Index even hit its lowest level in nearly 13 years, falling more
than 15% for the year, and the average daily turnover of the Hong
Kong securities market fell by more than 25% year-on-year. Hong
Kong's initial public offering market was also affected, with a total
of 90 new listings in 2022, raising a total of HK$104.6 billion, a
significant drop of 68% in capital raised from the previous year. In
the face of the complex world economic situation and the volatility
of the external macro environment, the Company acted with
perseverance, flexibility and innovation, sized opportunities arising
from China’s economic development and balanced progress and
stability through timely adjustments, thus laying a more solid
foundation for the long-term and sustainable development of the
Group.

TAKING ADVANTAGE OF HONG KONG'S
INTEGRATION INTO THE OVERALL
DEVELOPMENT OF THE COUNTRY

Despite the challenges during the year, there were a number
of encouraging developments towards the end of 2022, such
as the gradual reopening of borders between Hong Kong and
the Mainland and the gradual resumption of normal flows of
people, goods and money, which would accelerate the overall
economic recovery. The Company will make full use of the
historical opportunity offered by Hong Kong’s integration into
the overall development of the country and Hong Kong’s unique
advantage of “enjoying strong support of the Motherland and
being closely connected to the world”, exploit the positioning
of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area as a
“bridgehead” for domestic and international exchanges to serve
the new development pattern of domestic and international “dual
circulation” and the Belt and Road Initiative, and utilize the role of
Hong Kong as a bridge between the Mainland and the world to
facilitate two-way capital flows.

GoFintech Innovation Limited
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (Continued)

STEADFASTLY DEVELOPING FINTECH
INNOVATION BUSINESS

As science and technology constitute a primary productive
force, improving the systems for scientific and technological
innovation and accelerating the implementation of the innovation-
driven development strategy are key initiatives for enhancing
core competitiveness. As an international financial centre and
financial technology (fintech) hub, Hong Kong has made itself
the most desirable centre for fintech development in the world
by optimising the infrastructure and regime of its fintech services
sector. Furthermore, as part of the Hong Kong government’s
vigorous effort to support technological innovation, the Securities
and Futures Commission has recently introduced a new licensing
regime for virtual asset service providers, providing an important
opportunity for traditional financial service institutions to shift
towards financial technology. The Company has resolved to
leverage the system flexibility, seize the opportunities arising from
the fintech innovation in China and Hong Kong, and forge ahead
with reforms and innovation by introducing strategic investors
and reorganising and optimising its management team. Also, the
Company officially changed its name to “GoFintech Innovation
Limited B = &I FT R 2 7]”
commitment to fintech innovation. Based in Hong Kong, the

in the year, so as to reflect its

Company is committed to becoming an ideal integrated financial
service partner for corporate and individual investors and an
innovation-driven one-stop platform offering premium integrated
financial services. The Company will, while further developing
its cross-border financial services, expand fintech innovation
business by tapping into the needs of customers and market
segments to enrich its business lines and thus enhance its
capability to provide comprehensive financial services.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (Continued)
EREHRE (FH)

INTRODUCING STRATEGIC INVESTORS
TO EXPAND CAPITAL BASE

In order to strengthen the Company’s overall business
competitiveness, replenish its capital and introduce strategic
shareholders, the Board conducted two fundraising activities
by issuing new shares in September 2022 and January 2023,
respectively, under the general mandate approved by the
shareholders of the Company. The proceeds raised from the
two new share offerings amounted to approximately HK$56.50
million and approximately HK$56.82 million respectively, which
were used primarily to replenish general working capital, conduct
capital-intensive licensed activities and acquire quality fintech-
related assets at low prices during the global economic downturn.
The Company plans to hold such assets on a long-term basis,
with a view to creating synergies between the investee companies
and the Company’s financial services arms in the course of
development and helping the Company transform into a financial
technology company. At the general meeting of the Company held
on 17 March 2023, the Company was approved to increase its
authorised share capital to HK$2,000,000,000 by the creation of
additional 18,000,000,000 shares, giving the Company greater
flexibility in fund raising and laying a solid foundation for future
business growth.

The Company will look for more strategic investments to further
expand its capital base, and enhance its credit rating in the capital
market and its standing in the industry so as to attract outstanding
talents for expanding its technological innovation business, keep
creating value for the Company’s shareholders, customers and
partners, and have its shares included in the Shenzhen-Hong
Kong Stock Connect programme as early as possible. Moreover,
increasing capital through issuing new shares can also help the
Company to avoid missing any major opportunity due to the size
of its capital base, and thus is an essential step for the Company
to achieve its subsequent strategic objectives.

GoFintech Innovation Limited
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (Continued)

In 2023, GoFintech Innovation will make good use of its
advantages, grasp every opportunity, build on its strengths and
complement its weaknesses, thereby continuously improving
its operational capabilities and management and enhancing the
competitiveness of its core business. It will proactively develop
fintech innovation business and grasp the unprecedented
opportunity of our times to achieve its strategic goals of
technological transformation, getting out of the red and expanding
its business scale, and further contribute to the national scientific
and technological innovation and development. | would like to
take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to our valued
shareholders, investors, customers and business partners for their
unwavering support and trust during the past challenging year.
The Company will leverage its expertise and experience to seize
the historical and market opportunities arising from the overall
development of the country, while prudently responding to market
changes and risks and continuing to expand its assets and create

long-term, sustainable returns for its shareholders.

LIU Zhiwei
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 July 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEFWE DN

RESULTS

For the year ended 31 March 2023 (the “Reporting Year”),
revenue and net investment losses of the Group amounted
to approximately HK$22,313,000 representing a decrease of
approximately 59.68% from approximately HK$55,336,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2022. The decrease was mainly attributable
to decrease in income generated from securities brokerage
business as reduction in underwriting business and money lending
business due to reduction in loan portfolio.

The Group recorded a loss of approximately HK$58,855,000 for
the year ended 31 March 2023, as compared with the loss of
approximately HK$79,309,000 for the corresponding period in
2022. Net loss attributable to owners of the Company amounted
to approximately HK$58,855,000 for the Reporting Year,
representing a decrease of approximately 25.79% comparing with
the loss of approximately HK$79,309,000 for the corresponding
period in 2022. The overall performance of net loss attributable
to owners of the Company was decreased in the year ended 31
March 2023 mainly due to (i) a decrease in operating expenses
due to property and equipment being fully impaired as at 31
March 2022; and (ii) a decrease in finance costs due to repayment
of bank loan and corporate bonds upon maturity.

The basic and diluted loss per share of the Company for the
Reporting Year was approximately HK5.58 cents as compared
with the basic and diluted loss per share of approximately HK8.66
cents for the corresponding period in 2022.

GoFintech Innovation Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

BUSINESS REVIEW

SECURITIES BROKERAGE AND MARGIN
FINANCING

The business of securities brokerage and margin financing is one
of the main revenue streams of the Group. During the Reporting
Year, the business of securities brokerage and margin financing
recorded a revenue of approximately HK$7,309,000, representing
a decrease of approximately 80.36% as compared to the revenue
of approximately HK$37,222,000 for the corresponding period in
2022.

The net investment gains for the year ended 31 March 2023
amounted to approximately HK$22,000 (2022: Nil).

The segment loss for the year ended 31 March 2023 amounted to
approximately HK$12,428,000 (2022: approximately HK$476,000),
representing an increase in loss of approximately 2,510.92% as
compared with the corresponding period in 2022.

The Group’s strategy is to focus and strengthen existing securities
operation and work in close collaboration with our corporate
finance business as well as wealth management business, in order
to provide a one-stop integrated financial services to better serve
our institutional and high net worth individual clients.

CORPORATE FINANCE

The corporate finance market was under a keen competition
during the Reporting Year. Segment revenue (excluded inter-
segment income) from corporate finance business decreased
by approximately 20.46% from approximately HK$6,844,000 to
approximately HK$5,444,000 while the segment profit for the year
ended 31 March 2023 amounted to approximately HK$14,446,000
(2022: segment loss approximately HK$11,652,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EEENWEDMN (&)

MONEY LENDING

During the Reporting Year, the money lending market was under
intensive competition locally. The Group recorded an interest
income from money lending of approximately HK$2,788,000
(2022: approximately HK$8,348,000), representing a decrease
of approximately 66.60% as compared with the corresponding
period in 2022.

Overview

The Group’s money lending business is conducted through
Fortune Finance Limited (“Fortune Finance”), a licensed money
lender under the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

With funding supported by the Group, Fortune Finance provides
money lending services including property mortgages, share
mortgages and personal loans. The loan periods are normally
around 6 to 60 months. The source of clients of Fortune Finance
are mainly from referrals and such referrals are sourced from
existing clients and the management of the Group. As of 31 March
20283, the clients of Fortune Finance comprises (i) companies
engaged in retail and information technology; and (ii) individuals
engaged in finance sector (2022: (i) companies engaged in retalil
and information technology; and (ii) individuals engaged in finance,
trading and telecommunications sectors).

Internal control procedures and credit risk assessment
policy

Fortune Finance always takes measures to assess and to control
risks according to Fortune Finance’s credit and operation policy.
The credit policy applies to all types of lending businesses,
including secured-based lending and unsecured lending.
Assessment will be conducted from several aspects including
market value of the pledged assets, due diligence of collateral
ownership, the loan-to-value ratio, legal background checking on
the borrowers, creditability and repayment ability of the borrower
(including income sources and existing outstanding debts), and
the feasibility of legal execution on the charged assets and/or
legal action against the borrower in case there is default.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

All loan applications submitted to Fortune Finance are required
to go through the assessment and approval procedures by three
levels of personnel. A loan application will firstly be assessed and
approved by a director of Fortune Finance before being passed to
the Risk and Compliance Committee’s representative(s) from the
Group for comments (if any). Finally, the loan application is subject
to final approval from a designated director of the Group.

Determination of loan terms

The loan terms are determined based on factors such as:

- purpose of fund usage claimed by the borrower;

- capital liquidity of the borrower;

- current loan terms offered by borrower’s existing financing
company;

- credibility and repayment history of borrower;

- loan size of the application versus the Group’s internal
capital resources allocation and planning; and

- other risk factors, if any.

Before granting unsecured loans to borrowers, the management
of Fortune Finance will primarily consider the asset level of the
borrower prior to commencement of internal assessment and
approval procedures. Where the borrower is able to demonstrate
that its assets are of a sufficient level, the management of Fortune
Finance will consider recommending that an unsecured loan be
granted. In order to determine whether the assets of a borrower
are of a sufficient level, Fortune Finance will primarily take into
account, among others, (i) the value of all the assets of the
borrower reported by the borrower to Fortune Finance; and (i) the
intended size of the relevant loan. In general, the reported value
of the borrower’s assets must be sufficient to cover the intended
loan. The borrower’s ability to repay the loan is also taken into
account after considering factors such as the borrower’s income
source and cash flow. The management of Fortune Finance will
consider the assets of the borrower to be at a sufficient level once
such requirements are deemed to be satisfied.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EEENWEDMN (&)

The terms of unsecured loans are determined on the same
basis as those of secured loans, the factors of which are set out
above. Although the terms of unsecured loans are determined
on the same basis as those of secured loans, due to the higher
risk associated with granting unsecured loans as compared to
secured loans (even after taking into account that the borrower
of the unsecured loan must have sufficient level of assets), the
interest rates of unsecured loans will accordingly be higher than
that of secured loans, assuming all other factors being equal. The
management of Fortune Finance considers that it is reasonable
to determine the terms of unsecured loans and secured loans on
the same basis provided that, assuming all other factors being
equal, unsecured loans (with the relevant borrower’s assets at a
sufficient level) are subject to higher interest rates commensurate
with their level of risk.

Depending on the asset level of the borrower, a personal
guarantee may also be required before an unsecured loan may be
granted.

The renewal of loans are subject to the same internal control
and assessment procedures (including the provision of relevant
documents and assessment and approval by a director of
Fortune Finance, the representatives of the Risk and Compliance
Committee and a designated director of the Group) as for the
grant of new loans.

Information on loans

As at 31 March 2023, there were a total of three outstanding
loans with an aggregate outstanding principal amount of
HK$17,000,000 and interest rates which ranged from 12% to 13%
per annum.

As at 31 March 2022, there were a total of five outstanding
loans with an aggregate outstanding principal amount of
HK$50,500,000 and interest rates which ranged from 12% to 15%
per annum.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Collection of loan receivables

Fortune Finance regularly submits status update reports to the
Group’s management on a weekly basis for the review of Fortune
Finance’s total outstanding loan balance, loan due, and collection
status of the repayments.

Fortune Finance also has a collection guideline which applies
to delinquent accounts. If there is bank transfer failure or an
uncleared cheque, Fortune Finance’s representative will contact
the borrower as soon as possible. If the repayment is in default
for 30 days, Fortune Finance will check and confirm the latest
outstanding amount of the borrower and appoint legal advisors
to issue an official demand letter to the borrower. A copy of the
demand letter will also be sent to the guarantor, if applicable.
Should the repayment be in default for 90 days, Fortune
Finance will further issue a final warning where Fortune Finance
will take legal action against the borrower if such defaulted
repayment could not be settled within 14 days. All records will
be documented and the most updated status will be reported
regularly to director(s) of the Group. Any arrangements deviating
from the collection guideline are required to be reviewed and
approved by the directors of Fortune Finance.

The Group applies general approach in measuring loss allowance
for expected credit losses on loans receivable.

The Group granted loans to borrowers with different period of
time. As the term loans are normally repaid monthly in instalment
amount, they would be past due during the loan period and thus,
past due day information is meaningful in assessing if there is
significant increase in credit risk during the loan period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EEENWEDMN (&)

In assessing default risk of loan receivables, management
considered the following factors:

- collateral ratio (if any);
- amount of actual shortfall;
- delay in repayment;

- responsive to the Group’s request in repayment after
maturity of loan;

- an actual or expected downgrade of the external or internal
credit rating of the borrower;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant
change in the borrower’s ability to meet its debt obligation;

- significant changes in external market indicators of credit
risk for a particular financial asset or similar financial assets
with similar characteristics; and

- significant changes in the value of the collateral supporting
the obligation or credit enhancement, if applicable.

Management classify loan receivables based on the following:

Stage 1: For exposures where there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition and that
are not credit-impaired upon origination.

Stage 2: For exposures where there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition but are
not credit-impaired. Below are indicators of significant
increase in credit risks: Repayment of loan is delayed
by borrower; Collateral Ratio (if any) is 60% or higher;
and Responsive to the Group’s request.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Stage 3: Exposures are assessed as credit-impaired when
one or more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of that asset have
occurred. Below are events indicating that the balance

is credit-impaired:

(@) The Group makes liquidation call to borrowers to
liguidate their securities collateral (if any) to settle
the outstanding balances;

(b)  The borrower is not responsive to the Group’s
request; and

(¢) The Group loses contact with the borrowers.

In assessing default risk of loan receivables, management would
make reference to the default rates studies conducted by certain
external credit rating agency. In addition, management would
incorporate forward looking economic information through the
use of industry trend and experienced credit judgment to reflect

qualitative factors.

CONSULTANCY AND INSURANCE
BROKERAGE

During the Reporting Year, the Group recorded a segment revenue
from consultancy services and insurance brokerage services of
approximately HK$813,000 (2022: approximately HK$1,242,000),
representing a reduction of approximately 34.54% as compared
with the corresponding period in 2022.

ASSET MANAGEMENT

During the Reporting Year, the Group recorded a segment revenue
and net investment loss from asset management of approximately
HK$10,885,000 (2022: approximately HK$4,583,000),
representing an increase in segment revenue of approximately
137.51% as compared with the corresponding period in 2022. The
increase in segment revenue was mainly attributable to increase in
management fee income generated during the Reporting Year.

EEENWEIN (&)

F=oFEER: ERAGHREEZMER
Kiﬁi/mELﬁT*u @‘Z
—HENEZEEHR BIEH

ERE W E R HBREER
B-BLrEHRLREERE
ZEMFIT

(@ AEBEZBRERAF
BB ESFEAR D
(nE)ZBHAEN K
BESH:

(o) BRALELEAEHE

ZENK M
(© AEBEEERAKER
KRB RKER 2 EQRRE  &EE K

SLERE F?I\ﬁlﬂé%*ﬁ&ﬁ%%?&ﬁZE
WEMFT U EREHBEREDTE
BELEREREEHGSERESA
RUELEER EMRREEREK-

RE [ R 1R iz A5 42

RAREFE AEBRBERBRSE RRR
£ 42 BR 75 75 T 8% 15 9 30 U A 49813,00078
T (T =~ : 491,242,000 7T) &=
T FRHER L 434.54% o

SEEH

NABEFE AEEREEEE
157 BB U A K 1% & B 18 ¥ 85 4910,885,000
JL(ZF = Z 4 : 494,583,000 7T ) -
RZZ-_—_FREOHDFFHRAEZ ML
137.51% - D EBMRAE I EZ AR AR E
FEBRIOMERB WAL

\

%

% of o

HE= R AR A A
SEBECC-FFR

17



18

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

BEEENWEI N (F)
EQUITY INVESTMENT

During the Reporting Year, the Group recorded a segment revenue

and net investment loss from equity investment of approximately
HK$4,500,000 (2022: approximately HK$2,809,000), representing
an increase in segment loss of approximately 60.20% as

compared with the corresponding period in 2022.

ISSUE OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 22 November 2016, the Company (as the issuer) entered into

each of the Cinda Subscription Agreement, the PAL Subscription
Agreement and the Riverhead Capital Subscription Agreement
(each as defined below) in relation to the issue of convertible

bonds in an aggregate principal amount of HK$570,000,000.

(i)

(i)

The Company entered into a subscription agreement
(the “Cinda Subscription Agreement”) with Mankind
Investment Limited (“Mankind”), pursuant to which, Mankind
agreed to subscribe to the convertible bonds in the principal
amount of HK$110,754,000 (the
Mankind”).

“Convertible Bonds to

On 21 September 2016, the Company entered in to a
subscription agreement with Pacific Alliance Limited
(“PAL”), and subsequently a supplemental agreement
on 22 November 2016 (the “PAL Subscription
Agreement”), pursuant to which, PAL agreed to subscribe
to the convertible bonds in the principal amount of
HK$153,585,000 (the “Convertible Bonds to PAL”). On
8 January 2018, PAL sold the Convertible Bonds to PAL to

Value Convergence Holdings Limited.

The Company entered into a subscription agreement (the
“Riverhead Capital Subscription Agreement”) with
Limited
(“Riverhead Capital”), pursuant to which, Riverhead

Riverhead Capital (International) Management Co.,

Capital agreed to subscribe to the convertible bonds in
the aggregate principal amount of HK$305,661,000 (the
“Convertible Bonds to Riverhead Capital”) in 4 tranches.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Completion of subscriptions (i), (i) and tranche 1 of subscription
(i) above (altogether, the “Tranche 1 Convertible Bonds”) took
place on 30 March 2017. The convertible bonds to Mankind,
PAL and Riverhead Capital all bear an interest rate of 2% and
mature on the third (3rd) anniversary of the date of issue of the
convertible bonds with both dates inclusive at the conversion
price of HK$0.06 per conversion share. Upon full conversion
of the Tranche 1 Convertible Bonds by all subscribers at the
conversion price of HK$0.06, a total number of 6,500,000,000
conversion shares would be issued, subject to adjustments to the
conversion price of HK$0.06.

The net proceeds raised through the issue of the Tranche 1
Convertible Bonds were approximately HK$385,000,000, in which
(i) approximately HK$180,000,000 was used for the injection
of capital to a joint venture of the Company and expanding its
margin financing and underwriting business; (i) approximately
HK$150,000,000 for expanding its money lending business; (iii)
approximately HK$12,000,000 for engaging in private equity
investments; (iv) approximately HK$9,000,000 for strengthening
the capital base of its subsidiaries and (v) the remaining balance
of approximately HK$34,000,000 for the general working capital
of the Group.

The Convertible Bonds to Mankind was exercised in approximately
51.74% of original principal amount, which was equivalent to the
amount of HK$57,300,000 at the conversion price of HK$0.06
on 27 April 2017. After completion of conversion, 955,000,000
shares of the Company were issued on 28 April 2017.
Furthermore, tranche 1 of the Convertible Bonds to Riverhead
Capital was also exercised in full in the principal amount of
HK$125,661,000 at the conversion price of HK$0.06 on 27 April
2017. After the completion of conversion, 2,094,350,000 shares
of the Company were issued on 28 April 2017.

Following the exercise of tranche 1 of the Convertible Bonds to
Riverhead Capital, completion of subscription of tranche 2 took
place on 28 June 2017. The net proceeds raised through the
issue of tranche 2 of the Convertible Bonds to Riverhead Capital
were HK$60,000,000, in which approximately HK$50,000,000
was used for further expanding its margin financing business and
approximately HK$10,000,000 for its underwriting business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EEENWEDMN (&)

Following the completion of tranche 2 of the Convertible Bonds to
Riverhead Capital, completion of subscription of tranche 3 took
place on 5 July 2018. The net proceeds raised through the issue
of tranche 3 of the Convertible Bonds to Riverhead Capital were
HK$60,000,000, in which approximately HK$36,000,000 was
used for further strengthening the proprietary trading business,
approximately HK$12,000,000 was used for engagement
in private equity investments such as pre-IPO investment,
and approximately HK$12,000,000 was used for the asset
management business as seed money to the existing funds and/
or new funds.

The tranche 3 of the Convertible Bonds to Riverhead Capital
was exercised in 65% of original principal amount, which was
equivalent to the amount of HK$39,000,000 at the conversion
price of HK$0.06 on 11 January 2019. After the completion of
conversion, the number of 650,000,000 shares of the Company
were issued on 14 January 2019.

The tranche 4 of the Convertible Bonds to Riverhead Capital were
not issued due to the non-satisfaction of the conditions precedent
set out in the Riverhead Capital Subscription Agreement.

The Convertible Bonds to Mankind matured on 30 March 2020.
Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Convertible Bonds
to Mankind, the outstanding principal amount of HK$53,454,000
together with all accrued and unpaid interests was subsequently
repaid on 3 April 2020.

The Convertible Bonds to PAL matured on 30 March 2020.
Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Convertible Bonds
to PAL, the outstanding principal amount of HK$153,585,000
together with all accrued and unpaid interests shall be paid by the
Company to the current bondholders of the Convertible Bonds to
PAL. As disclosed in the voluntary announcement of the Company
dated 10 July 2020, the Company fully settled and repaid the
balance of the outstanding principal and interest in relation to the
Convertible Bonds to PAL.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

The tranche 2 of the Convertible Bonds to Riverhead Capital
was due on 28 June 2020. As disclosed in the announcement
of the Company dated 8 July 2020 (the “Amendment Deed
Announcement”), the Company and Riverhead Capital entered
into an amendment deed (the “Amendment Deed”) on 8 July
2020 (after trading hours), pursuant to which, Riverhead Capital
conditionally agreed to extend the maturity date of the tranche
2 of the Convertible Bonds to Riverhead Capital from the date
falling on the third anniversary of the issue date of the tranche
2 of the Convertible Bonds to Riverhead Capital (i.e. 28 June
2020) to the fifth anniversary of the issue date of the tranche 2
of the Convertible Bonds to Riverhead Capital (i.e. 28 June 2022)
(the “CB Extension”). Subject to fulfiiment of the conditions
precedent as disclosed in Amendment Deed Announcement, the
Company shall execute a supplemental deed poll to effect the CB
Extension. A circular containing, among others, further details of
CB Extension and a notice for the extraordinary general meeting
(“EGM”) was despatched to the shareholders of the Company
(“Shareholders”) on 29 July 2020.

At the EGM held on 27 August 2020, the ordinary resolution
approving the CB Extension contemplated under the Amendment
Deed and the proposed grant of the specific mandate as set out
in the EGM notice dated 29 July 2020 was not passed by the
independent Shareholders by way of poll at the EGM. Pursuant to
the terms and conditions of the Convertible Bonds to Riverhead
Capital, the outstanding principal amount of HK$60,000,000
together with all accrued and unpaid interests of the tranche 2
of the Convertible Bonds to Riverhead Capital were repaid on 4
September 2020.

The tranche 3 of the Convertible Bonds to Riverhead Capital
matured on 5 July 2021. Pursuant to the terms and conditions
of the Convertible Bonds to Riverhead Capital, the outstanding
principal amount of HK$21,000,000 together with all accrued and
unpaid interests was repaid on 5 July 2021.

For details of the Cinda Subscription Agreement, PAL Subscription
Agreement and Riverhead Capital Subscription Agreement and the
relevant transactions, please refer to the circulars of the Company
dated 13 December 2016 and 29 July 2020, and announcements
of the Company dated 21 September 2016, 22 November 2016,
5 January 2017, 30 March 2017, 28 April 2017, 5 July 2018, 14
January 2019, 30 March 2020, 14 April 2020, 8 July 2020, 10
July 2020 and 27 August 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EEENWEIN (&

With

reference made to the mentioned circulars and

announcements, Tranche 1 Convertible Bonds, tranche 2 of the
Convertible Bonds to Riverhead Capital and tranche 3 of the
Convertible Bonds to Riverhead Capital were issued pursuant to
the resolutions passed at the EGM held on 5 January 2017. The
total funds raised from and the details of the use of proceeds of

the said tranches are as follows:

Tranche 1 Convertible Bonds

Utilized
proceeds

on the intended
use during the

R2RARANBREAE  F—HAk
BEmZ FRTIREATHRES RS
“HIRBERABREKRESFIRER -F
—tF-ARARTHRRFIAE L
BEBHIRZER TAET BB LR
BEFMESESHBLAMEREREZDN

HEDT

F-HUBRRES

Approximate year ended

amount to apply 31 March 2023
Intended use on the proceeds REBZE Unutilized Expected timeline for
of the proceeds as previously —E-= proceeds as at the use of unutilized
as previously disclosed =A=+—H 31 March 2023 proceeds and reasons
disclosed FBRE LFERRER R-ZZF-=%F for delay
SR PTIREAMSRIAN REAMBERR Z2HRANME ZA=+—-H HERARDAFRSIEN
BEAR ERNEBNEE ME  RDAFRSFE FEHRRREEEMH

a. Expanding the margin financing ~ HK$60,000,000 HK$60,000,000 HK$O Not applicable
and underwriting businesses 60,000,000/ JT 60,000,000/ 7T 0B TiEHA

BRARBRENMEHEER

GoFintech Innovation Limited
Annual Report 2023



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
EEENWED N (F)

Utilized
proceeds

on the intended
use during the

Approximate year ended
amount to apply 31 March 2023
Intended use on the proceeds REZE Unutilized Expected timeline for
of the proceeds as previously —_E2-= proceeds as at the use of unutilized
as previously disclosed =HA=+—H 31 March 2023 proceeds and reasons
disclosed FFERE LtEEREER R=-ZE== for delay
SRR BRRGRIEN REFBEERTX Z2HRANME ZA=+—H GARDAMBREN
BERZ ERNBNERE ME  RDAFRSRE FEHRRREEEMH
Establishment of a joint HK$120,000,000 HK$0 HK$120,000,000 The proceeds is
venture company to be 120,000,000/ 7T 087C 120,000,000/ 7T planned to be applied

formed in the People’s

Republic of China

(the “PRC")

(the “JV Company”)

under the Closer Economic

Partnership Arrangement

BE[EETEEHED

ZHE ] EPE AR AME
([HE) KA E R
([&gR27])

in accordance with
the intended use as
disclosed in the
circular dated 13
December 2016.
Documents to
supplement the
application made
to China Securities
Regulatory
Commission
(the “CSRC”) for
establishment of
the JV Company was
last made on 27 July
2018 while the
timeframe is subject
to the said regulator’s
approval (note a)
FrisRE EIR BB A
—E-RE+TZA
T=HZBRHANKE
ZIRERGEER £
—RBLBRBEXILAE
RAZWRXMER
—E-N\FE+A
“t+ERRRTHE
BLREEERZEY
([PEFEE]) &
MRFBEFELDMEEH
BoREFTAER
(Msxa)

HE= R AR A A
SEC-FER
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EEENWEDMN (&)

Utilized
proceeds

on the intended
use during the

Approximate year ended
amount to apply 31 March 2023
Intended use on the proceeds REZE Unutilized Expected timeline for
of the proceeds as previously —_E2-= proceeds as at the use of unutilized
as previously disclosed =HA=+—H 31 March 2023 proceeds and reasons
disclosed FFERE LtEEREEHR R=ZZE== for delay
SRR BRRGRIEN REFBEERTX Z2HRANME ZA=+—H GARDAMBREN
BERZ ERANENEE NE ABDAFMBRE BHKRRITEEEMH
c. Expanding its money lending HK$150,000,000  HK$150,000,000 HK$0  Not applicable
business 150,000,000/ 7C 150,000,000/ 7T B TEA
EREMEED
d. Engaging in private equity HK$12,000,000 HK$12,000,000 HK$0  Not applicable
investments 12,000,000% 7T 12,000,000/ 7T 0BT TEA
SELERERE
e. Proprietary trading HK$5,000,000 HK$5,000,000 HK$O  Not applicable
BEEE 5,000,000/ 7T 5,000,0007 7T oI TEA
f. Strengthening the capital HK$2,000,000 HK$2,000,000 HK$0  Not applicable
base of wealth management 2,000,000/ 7T 2,000,000/ 7T oB TEA
business
MR EERER 2 ERER
g. Strengthening the capital HK$2,000,000 HK$2,000,000 HK$O Not applicable
base of corporate financing 2,000,000/ 7T 2,000,000/ 7T BT TEA
business
HRBEBMEER 2 EREH
h. General working capital HK$34,000,000 HK$34,000,000 HK$O Not applicable
—REEES 34,000,000/ 7C 34,000,000/ 7T 0BT TEA
Note a: As at the date of this report, the application is still pending  Misfa: RAEHRBH HFHFPTEBE

the approval of the CSRC. No timeframe in

application or its approval by the CSRC has

respect of the
been provided

by the CSRC. According to the intended partner of the Group
for the formation of the JV Company, CSRC has not actively
responded to the application. Although there has been no

response from CSRC, the Company has no plans to change the

intended use of proceeds.

GoFintech Innovation Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Tranche 2 of the Convertible Bonds to Riverhead Capital

Utilized
proceeds

on the intended
use during the

EEEWE

o (&)

FoHTIREARTRKRES

Approximate year ended
amount to apply 31 March 2023
Intended use on the proceeds REZE Unutilized
of the proceeds as previously —E=% proceeds as at Expected timeline
as previously disclosed =HA=+—H 31 March 2023 for the use of
disclosed FieFE LEEREEAR R=-®== unutilized proceeds
SR BEAMERIEN REBMBELR BBANMAE ZA=+—-H EARDAMBREN
REMZ EROHBNSE MIE  KBDAFRSBRFE FEHER
Further expanding the margin HK$50,000,000 HK$50,000,000 HK$O Not applicable
financing business 50,000,000/ 7T 50,000,0007 7T oBT TEA
—SERAEMEER
Further strengthening the HK$10,000,000 HK$10,000,000 HK$O  Not applicable
underwriting business 10,000,000/ 7T 10,000,000/ 7T 0BT TEA

—FHARBHEER

HEERIMARA
:g_:iiiﬁ
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Intended use

of the proceeds

as previously
disclosed
SRR B AT RRIER
BEMZ

Approximate
amount to apply
on the proceeds

as previously

disclosed
e IE
REBMBELR
ERAMNBNSE

Tranche 3 of the Convertible Bonds to Riverhead Capital

Utilized
proceeds
on the intended
use during the
year ended
31 March 2023
REBZE
—_E-=
=RB=+—H
LtEERRBER
BEANMAE
FIE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
EEENWES N (&)

Unutilized
proceeds as at
31 March 2023

N-—EE=-=
=A=+-~8
RE A B RIE

F=HTREARTRKRES

Expected timeline

for the use of
unutilized proceeds
FERREBAMEBREN
T8 HA R IR

Further strengthening the
proprietary trading business

—HHABLEEEXH

Further engagement in private
equity investments

E—H2ENERERE

For the asset management
business to be used as seed
money to the existing funds
and/or new funds

MEEEBEBME -
AEREES R X
MESHNETES

GoFintech Innovation Limited
Annual Report 2023

HK$36,000,000
36,000,000/ 7T

HK$12,000,000
12,000,000/ 7T

HK$12,000,000
12,000,000/ 7T

HK$36,000,000
36,000,000/ 7T

HK$12,000,000
12,000,000/ 7T

HK$12,000,000
12,000,000/ 7T

HK$0
08T

HK$0
08T

HK$0
078 7T

Not applicable
NE M

Not applicable
TiE A

Not applicable
i



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

ADJUSTMENT TO THE CONVERTIBLE BONDS

As at 16 October 2020, which is the date for convening the
EGM for the Shareholders’ approval for the share consolidation
of the Company (the “Share Consolidation”), the outstanding
convertible bonds of the Company were the tranche 3 of the
Convertible Bonds to Riverhead Capital (the “Outstanding
Convertible Bonds”), with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$21,000,000, which were convertible into 350,000,000 shares
of par value of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company
(the “Existing Shares”) at the conversion price of HK$0.06
per Existing Share. As a result of the Share Consolidation and
in accordance with the terms and conditions of the convertible
bonds of the Company, effective from the close of business
on Monday, 19 October 2020,
“CB Adjustment”) was made to the conversion price of the

the following adjustment (the

Outstanding Convertible Bonds and the number of consolidated
shares falling to be issued upon the exercise of the conversion
rights attaching to the Outstanding Convertible Bonds:

Immediately before the
CB Adjustment becoming effective
EETRRESABEENRA

Number of
Existing Shares to be
issued upon full
conversion of the
Outstanding Convertible

EEENWEIN (&)

A 12 IR 15 55 < 8 2

R_E_FFE+/+ 8 BBEHEEKRERS
ARG AERRMAERRRIRDE O ([
BEBGE]) 2 BH - ANABA) &R BTG
BREHARIEEAREITHNE =T
BRESF(HREBRITRERES]) &~
$ 4258 £21,000,0008 T Al IR K BES
I% 38 B K 15 0.067% 7T K. # /350,000,000
AR BRAFZREEOE T KK
(IRERHB]) -BERBRMDEHRBER
NEIARRESNGRARGEE B2 =
TE+ATALB(EHEERBER
BoEHERLRABRRES 2 L RE K
RABUBBRESME 2 LIREREITE
BETZAHFBRODBEFELATHEAE (7
BRREFAR])

Immediately after the

CB Adjustment becoming effective

EERTRRESABERR

Number of

consolidated shares to be

issued upon full

conversion of the
Outstanding Convertible

Bonds Bonds
HARBRAUBRES Conversion price HARBAUBRES Conversion price
EEXRYABREBE TR per Existing Share ERYABREBTFRIZ per consolidated share
ZHEERGHE BEREERHAZHAE SR ER BERAMBRAZHAE
HK$0.06 HK$0.60
350,000,000 0.06% 7T 35,000,000 0.60% 7T
Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited, Certified Public Accountants, ¥\ E @B R (FE)EtMELAA

reviewed the above adjustments and confirmed that the
calculation of the CB Adjustment was made in accordance with
terms and conditions of the convertible bonds of the Company.

Save for the CB Adjustment, all the other terms and conditions of
the convertible bonds of the Company remain unchanged.

[RAREEFE Lt 58 & I #E R 3% AT
BEFABAENREARNRR A BRRKES
AR R AG I FH -

BRI E R BEIN AR B A BERES
ZFRA E MR R T
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EEENWEDMN (&)

OUTLOOK

Looking ahead to 2023, the global markets will continue to
be volatile and challenging as high interest rates and intense
geopolitics will continue to affect investment demand and financial
market stability. However, the Hong Kong economy is expected to
stage a visible upturn in the future as business travel and tourism
activities are expected to see a strong rebound following the
relaxation of COVID-19 curbs in Hong Kong and the full reopening
of the borders between Hong Kong and the Mainland, which will
also benefit the financial services sector as a whole. As one of the
most ideal fintech development centres in the world, Hong Kong
continues to optimise and upgrade its infrastructure and regime for
fintech services and proactively integrate itself into the development
and needs of national scientific and technological innovation.

The Company will grasp the opportunities arising from the
fintech innovation in China and Hong Kong, forge ahead with
reforms and innovation by introducing strategic investors and
reorganizing and optimising its management team. Also, the
Company will actively expand fintech innovation business,
promote the application of fintech innovation, and enhance its
service capabilities, while tapping into the needs of customers
and market segments to enrich its business lines. Through these
efforts, the Company strives to be an ideal integrated financial
service partner for corporate and individual investors and an
innovation-driven one-stop platform offering premium integrated
financial services. Furthermore, the Company will make full use
of the historical opportunity offered by Hong Kong's integration
into the overall development of the country, exploit the positioning
of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area as a
“bridgehead” for domestic and international exchanges to serve
the country’s “dual circulation” development pattern and the Belt
and Road Initiative and facilitate two-way capital flows.

In addition, the Company will continue to improve its risk
management measures and consolidate and enhance its risk
management capabilities. In order to strengthen its business
competitiveness, the Company will continue to expand its capital
base by introducing strategic investors and enhance its credit
rating in the capital market and its standing in the industry,
which will enable it to attract outstanding talents for expanding
its technological innovation business, keep creating value for the
Company’s shareholders, customers and partners, and achieve
high-quality, sustainable development.

GoFintech Innovation Limited
Annual Report 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 March 2023, the nominal value of the total issued share
capital of the Company was approximately HK$131,797,000
comprising 1,317,967,885 shares of the Company of HK$0.10
each (the “Shares”).

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light
of changes in economic conditions. For the licensed subsidiaries
of the Group, the Group ensures each of them maintains a liquid
capital level that is adequate to support the level of activities
with a sufficient buffer to accommodate increases in liquidity
requirements arising from potential increases in the level of
business activities. During the Reporting Year, all the licensed
subsidiaries of the Group complied with the liquid capital
requirements under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
(Financial Resources) Rules.

SUBSCRIPTION FOR NEW SHARES

Reference is made to the announcement (the “Subscription
for New Shares Announcement’) of the Company dated 1
September 2022 in relation to the Subscription for New Shares
under general mandate.

On 1 September 2022 (after trading hours), the Company entered
into the conditional subscription agreement (the “Subscription
Agreement”) with six subscribers (the “Subscribers”), pursuant
to which the Subscribers have agreed to subscribe (the
“Subscription”) for a total of 183,000,000 shares of the Company
(the “Subscription Shares”), and the Company has agreed to
allot and issue the Subscription Shares, at the subscription price
of HK$0.31 per subscription share (the “Subscription Price”).

SUBSCRIPTION SHARES

The 183,000,000 Subscription Shares represented (a)
approximately 19.99% of the total number of issued shares as at
the date of the Subscription for New Shares Announcement; and
(b) approximately 16.66% of the total number of issued shares as
enlarged by the allotment and issue of the Subscription Shares.

EEENWEIN (&)

BEXER

RZE-_ZFZA=Z+—H - AQAE%
TR ANTE{E 4258 49 £131,797,00078 7T * B
$51,317,967,8850% T AR E {H0.10/8 7T 2 A~
NERG, (TR]) -

AEEREGEHRS REEEENGE
THEBKERR  EBEHENERFEL
HE-RAEEFELMBRARME &
EEEREFENBARARFESE
AR EAXBHEBRE AREXD
AR EEBAEMSIBYRDES Y
FREFAR RN EM - RAREFE -
AEBAAEKBMNBAR S ETELEE
HEBME (MBRER)RUATZABES
M °

mBEMRG

ZIRMANFTBRHAE-_ZE -_—_FNLA—
BZRAE(IRBFRHOAE]) REE
FRE — R RERERD -

RZE_—FALA—B(X5EHEKE) -
RAREANEZRBA(RBAIGLE
R mE ((RBHE]) Rt RE
ABRERE ([RHE])4 £183,000,000
BARRARBG ([REBRSG]) AR A
EREREREITRERGD REE ([R
BE]) AERARERMH31BIT

7R IR 17

183,000,0000% 3R & A% 10 10 & 1 (a) R R
BYROASEBHERTRMAEAHD
19.99% : R (o) BB RBETRERNE
RI&E D EITIRMD 1B E4)16.66% °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

RANKING OF SUBSCRIPTION SHARES

The Subscription Shares rank, upon issue, pari passu in all
respects among themselves and with the other shares in issue at
the completion date.

SUBSCRIPTION PRICE

The Subscription Price of HK$0.31 per Subscription Share
represented a premium of approximately 8.77% over the closing
price of HK$0.285 per share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on
1 September 2022, being the date of the Subscription Agreement.

The net issue price per Subscription Share was approximately
HK$0.309. The aggregate nominal value of the Subscription
Shares was HK$18,300,000.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, the Subscribers and
(where applicable) their ultimate beneficial owners (except Ms.
Yu Xiaofeng) were third parties who were independent of the
Company and its connected persons (as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules) and the subscribers were not acting
in concert with one another or any connected person of the
Company. Please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 2
June 2023 for further details.

REASONS FOR THE SUBSCRIPTION

The Directors were of the view that the Subscription represented
a good opportunity for the Group to raise additional capital, which
would allow the Company to strengthen its capital base and
financial position for it to capture future expansion opportunities
as and when they arise.

Completion of the Subscription took place on 23 September
2022.

The gross proceeds from the Subscription amounted to HK$56.73
million and the net proceeds (after deduction of relevant
expenses) received by the Company under the Subscription was
approximately HK$56,500,000.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

The Directors intend to apply the net proceeds from the
Subscription as to 50% for financing the private equity and/or
securities investment opportunities both in Hong Kong and the
PRC, as to 15% as general working capital of the Group and as
to 35% for investment in potential new projects to be identified
by the Group in the future. The proceeds have been utilized as
intended as at 31 March 2023. For details of the actual utilization
of proceeds, please refer to announcement of the Company dated
12 January 2023.

PLACING OF NEW SHARES UNDER
GENERAL MANDATE

References are made to the announcement dated 28 December
2022 (the “Placing of New Shares Announcement”) and
supplemental announcement dated 12 January 2023 of the
Company in relation to the Placing of New Shares under general
mandate.

On 28 December 2022 (after trading hours), the Company
entered into the placing agreement (the “Placing Agreement”)
with placing agent (the “Placing Agent”), pursuant to which
the Placing Agent has conditionally agreed, as the Company’s
placing agent, to procure, on a best effort basis, no fewer than
six placees (the “Placees”), who and whose ultimate beneficial
owners (where applicable) will be independent third parties, to
subscribe (the “Placing”) for up to a maximum of 219,661,577
placing shares (the “Placing Shares”) at the placing price (the
“Placing Price”) of HK$0.26 per Placing Share.

PLACING SHARES

The 219,661,577 Placing Shares represented (a) approximately
20.00% of the existing issued share capital as at the date of the
Placing of New Shares Announcement; and (b) approximately
16.67% of the issued share capital as enlarged by the allotment
and issue of the Placing Shares.

RANKING OF PLACING SHARES

The Placing Shares rank, upon allotment and issue, pari passu in
all respects with each other, among themselves and with the other
shares in issue on the date of allotment and issue of the Placing
Shares.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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PLACING PRICE

The Placing Price of HK$0.26 per Placing Share represented
a premium of approximately 8.33% to the closing price of
HK$0.2400 per share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on 28
December 2022, being the date of the Placing Agreement.

The net issue price per Placing Share was approximately
HK$0.2587. The aggregate nominal value of the Placing Shares
was HK$21,966,000.

REASONS FOR THE PLACING

The Board of Directors (including the independent non-executive
Directors) is of the view that the Placing can provide a higher
liquidity to increase the Group’s operational flexibility and to
sustain its capability for financing any of its potential business
development opportunities upon the Group’s existing businesses,
as and when suitable opportunity arises, and for the use of
general working capital of the Group. Therefore, the Placing will
strengthen the financial position of the Group and provide working
capital to the Group to meet any future development opportunities
and financial obligations of the Group. In addition, the Placing
also represents good opportunities to broaden the Shareholders’
base. Last but not least, the Group is able to (i) increase its
working capital through the Placing without increasing the interest
burden on the Group; and (ii) enhance the financial position and
the resistance to liquidity risk of the Group by means of equity
fundraising.

Completion of the Placing took place on 17 January 2023. A total
of 219,660,000 Placing Shares have been successfully placed by
the Placing Agent to no less than six Placees at the Placing Price
of HK$0.26 per Placing Share pursuant to the terms and condition
of the Placing Agreement, representing approximately 16.67%
of the issued share capital of the Company as enlarged by the
allotment and issue of the Placing Shares immediately upon the
Completion.

The net proceeds (after deduction of the Placing commission
and other relevant expenses) received by the Company under the
Placing was approximately HK$56,820,000.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
EEENWED N (F)

The proceeds raised from and the details of the use of proceeds B EEZEEE 2 AERBELEARD
of the Placing are as follows: BT
Utilized
proceeds
on the intended
use during the
Approximate year ended
amount to apply 31 March 2023
Intended use on the proceeds REZE Unutilized
of the proceeds as previously —E-= proceeds as at Expected timeline
as previously disclosed =HA=+—H 31 March 2023 for the use of
disclosed FFERE LtEEREEH AZZFZ=% unutilized proceeds
SR T ERBREN BREAMBPEAR RERANME =ZA=+—H SAKSAMBREN
HERZ ERANBNEHE ME  ADAMBIRE FEHRR
a. For development on margin HK$2,000,000 HK$0 HK$2,000,000 The unutilized proceeds
business 2,000,000/ 7T 0BT 2,000,000/ 7T are expected to be
ARERERFRER utilized by December
2023
KRB P15 SRIETE AR
RZEZ=F+=A
AT E) A
b. For development on asset HK$1,570,000 HK$540,000 HK$1,030,000 The unutilized proceeds
management business 1,570,000/ 7T 540,000/ 7T 1,030,000/ 7T are expected to be
AREREEETEER utilized by December
2023
KRB P15 SRIETE AR
RZTEZ=F+=A
AT E) A
c. For development on money HK$22,000,000 HK$0 HK$22,000,000 The unutilized proceeds
lending business 22,000,000/ 7T 0B TT 22,000,000/ 7T are expected to be
AREREMEER utilized by December

d. Financing the private equity
and/or securities investment
opportunities in Hong Kong
and the PRC

BERETBRA LR E A
FRERER SEHRE
mezEe

e. General working capital

RiE—R2EES

HK$22,730,000
22,730,000/ 7T

HK$8,520,000
8,520,00078 7T

HK$22,730,000
22,730,000/ 7T

HK$8,520,000
8,520,00078 T

During the period from the date of completion of Placing and
up to 31 March 2023, the net proceeds were being used
according to the purposes as stated in the Placing of New Shares
Announcement, and there were no material change or delay in the

use of the net proceeds.

HK$0
08 7T

HK$0
08 7T

2023
REHTERETERE
RZZTEZ_=F+=A
A &) A

Not applicable
A iE A

Not applicable
TEA

REEEHEZKARE-_T-_=F=A4
=t+—BIEHE AERBEFRREEHN
BRAEMARZRER  FAEHRIEFE LA
R S NI B R IR R AR

B Al AR A A
—E-=FEH
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EEENWEIN (&)

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to Shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balances.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes corporate bonds, lease liabilities, loans, cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
which comprises issued share capital and reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure regularly. As part of
the review, the Directors consider the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital, and take appropriate
actions to adjust the Group’s capital structure. The overall
strategy of the Group remains unchanged during the years ended
31 March 2023 and 2022.

For certain subsidiaries of the Group, they are regulated by
the Securities and Futures Commission (the “SFC”) of Hong
Kong and are required to comply with certain minimum capital
requirements according to the rules of SFC. Our management
monitors, on a daily basis, the subsidiaries’ liquid capital level to
ensure they meet with the minimum liquid capital requirement in
accordance with the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Financial
Resources) Rules. The range of liquid capital is from HK$100,000
to HK$3,000,000 or 5% of their total adjusted liabilities, whichever
is higher.

One of the subsidiaries of the Group is a licensed insurance
intermediary under the Insurance Ordinance and is required to
maintain a minimum net asset value of HK$300,000 at all times.

There is no non-compliance of the capital requirements of the
Group members imposed by the respective regulators during the
years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES AND GEARING RATIO

During the Reporting Year, the Group mainly financed its
operations by cash generated from operating activities and

proceeds from fund raising activities.

As at 31 March 2023,
current liabilities were approximately HK$369,299,000
(2022: approximately HK$492,586,000) and approximately
HK$177,169,000 (2022: approximately HK$321,401,000)
respectively, while the current ratio was about 2.08 times (2022:
1.53 times).

the Group’s current assets and

As at 31 March 2023, the Group’s aggregate cash and cash
equivalents amounted to approximately HK$111,748,000
(2022: approximately HK$190,418,000), of which approximately
82.50% was denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) (2022:
approximately 57.09%), approximately 11.88% was denominated
in United States dollars (“USD”) (2022: approximately 39.90%),
approximately 5.50% was denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”)
(2022: approximately 3.01%), and approximately 0.12% was
denominated in SGD (2022: nil), representing approximately
30.26% (2022: approximately 38.66%) of total current assets. As
at 31 March 2023, the Group had no bank borrowing (2022: bank
loans with accrued interest in approximately HK$100,458,000).

During the Reporting Year, no financial instruments were used
for hedging purposes. As at 31 March 2023, the gearing ratio,
measured on the basis of total borrowings as a percentage of
equity attributable to owners of the Company, was approximately
12.40% (2022: approximately 70.85%).
was mainly due to repayment of corporate bonds and bank loan.

The decrease in ratio

The debt ratio, defined as total debts over total assets, was
approximately 37.69% (2022: approximately 59.01%).

During the year ended 31 March 2022 and 2023, no additional
corporate bond was issued.

EEENWEIN (&)

RAREFE AEETREBEERRH
EEZRENEBEELTHMBRBRNE
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RZEZ=F=ZRA=+—H AKEB 2R
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EEENWEIN (&)

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

As at 31 March 2023, the Group held financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of approximately HK$71,491,000 (2022:
approximately HK$5,391,000), with net loss on these financial
instruments at approximately HK$4,630,000 (2022: approximately
HK$3,151,000).

As at 31 March 2023, none of each individual underlying
investment of the above mentioned investments constitutes 5% or
above of the total assets of the Group.

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

The Company has a significant investment in Starlight Financial
Holdings Limited (“Starlight”), an associate of the Company.

Starlight and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Starlight Group”)
are principally engaged in the provision of loan financing and
advisory services in Hong Kong and Mainland China. In particular,
the Starlight Group is able to operate business relating to small
and micro enterprise loans and personal consumption loans in
Chonggqing.

On 22 August 2012, Gold Kingdom Holdings Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired 25% equity interests
in Starlight at a consideration of approximately HK$64,131,000.

The fair value of the investment as at 31 March 2023 was
HK$99,647,000, representing approximately 20.94% of the
Company'’s total assets as at 31 March 2023. The performance of
the Company’s investment in Starlight Group during the Reporting
Year is disclosed in note 18 of this report.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Over the past year, global financial markets have been sluggish
due to a combination of geopolitical tensions and high interest
rates. The economies of Hong Kong and Mainland China
continued to be negatively impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic,
with a notable slowdown. The loan financing and advisory services
of the Starlight Group have also been affected.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Looking ahead, with the reopening of borders between Hong
Kong and Mainland China, the business environment and market
demand are gradually recovering and the economic activities in
general are steadily getting back on track. The management of
the Starlight Group expects to seize the opportunities and bring
returns to the shareholders of the Starlight Group by continuing to
operate the existing business with focus and prudence.

The Company’s investment in the Starlight Group represents a
passive and low to mid risk level investment for the Company. As
at the date of this report the Company has no plans to alter the
level of its investment in the Starlight Group.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND
DISPOSAL

There was no material acquisition or disposal of the Group during
the Reporting Year.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities (as at 31 March 2022: nil).

CHARGE ON THE GROUP’S ASSET

As at 31 March 2023, no asset of the Group was subject to any
charge (as at 31 March 2022: Nil).

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has properly put in place credit management policies
which cover the examination of the approval of client’s trading
and credit limits, regular review of facilities granted, monitoring of
credit exposures and the follow up of credit risks associated with
overdue debts. The policies are reviewed and updated regularly.

FOREIGN CURRENCY FLUCTUATION

During the Reporting Year, the Group mainly used Hong Kong
dollars in its business transactions. The Board considers that the
Group’s foreign currency exposure is insignificant.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2023,
(2022: 69 employees). The related employees’ costs for the
Reporting Year (excluding Directors’ remunerations) amounted
to approximately HK$36,115,000 (2022: approximately
HK$43,987,000). The Group remunerated employees based on
the industry practice and individual’s performance. Staff benefits

the Group had 55 employees in total

include contributions to retirement benefit scheme, medical

allowance and other fringe benefits. In addition, the Group
maintains the share option scheme for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants based on their
contributions. For details of the share option scheme, please
refer to the section headed “SHARE OPTION SCHEME” in the

Directors’ Report of this annual report.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAMES

On 13 September 2022, the Board proposed to change the name
of the Company from “China Fortune Financial Group Limited
Ee MEBAR AR to “GoFintech Innovation Limited

S Al#F BB AR (the “Change of Company Name”). The
Board considered that the Change of Company Name will better
reflect the Group’s direction of future development and provide
the Company with enhanced corporate image and clearer identity.
The Change of Company Name was approved by the shareholders
at the extraordinary general meeting held by the Company on 14
October 2022. For details, please refer to the announcements
of the Company dated 13 September 2022 and 14 October
2022 and the circular dated 20 September 2022 relating to the
proposed Change of Company Name.

The Certificate of Incorporation on Change of Name was issued
by the Registrar of Companies in the Cayman lIslands on 21
October 2022 confirming that the Change of Company Name has
become effective. The Certificate of Registration of Alteration of
Name of Registered Non-Hong Kong Company was issued by
the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong on 21 November 2022
confirming the registration of the new names of the Company in
Hong Kong under Part 16 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
DR. LIU ZHIWE]

Dr. LIU Zhiwei, aged 55, was appointed as an executive Director,
the Chairman, a member of the Remuneration Committee and the
chairman of the Nomination Committee in August 2022. He is also
a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Dr. Liu obtained
a bachelor’s degree in Industrial Management Engineering from
Zhe Jiang University in 1989. He furthered his studies in Graduate
School of the People’s Bank of China between 1989 and 1992
and obtained his master’s degree in international finance. In 2007,
he obtained a doctoral degree in Economics & Law from Hunan
University. Dr. Liu completed a professional course for Financial
CEO at Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business in 2010 and
further completed the China CEO Global Studies Program at
Shanghai Jiaotong University in 2016. Dr. Liu is the father of Mr.
Liu.

Dr. Liu has over 20 years of experience in financing, securities
investment and capital market. He is currently an executive
director and chairman of the board of directors of Wealthking
Investments Limited (“Wealthking Investment”, listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange). He is also the chairman
of the supervisory committee of Purekind Fund Management
Co., Ltd. Dr. Liu was the chief executive officer of Wealthking
Investment from December 2021 to March 2022 and from
April 2019 to December 2020 respectively. From June 2016 to
June 2018, he was an executive director and the president of
Wealthking Investment. From December 2015 to June 2016, he
was a nonexecutive director of Wealthking Investment.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
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Dr. Liu served as a non-executive director of Shanghai Zendai
Property Limited (listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange)
from February 2010 to December 2012 and was the vice chairman
of Chang’an International Trust Co., Ltd (formerly known as Xi’an
International Trust Co., Ltd) from November 2008 to April 2011.
He was a supervisor of Bohai Leasing Co., Ltd. (“Bohai”, formerly
known as Xin Jiang Hui-tong (Group) Co., Ltd, listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange) from December 2005 to December
2008 and the chairman of the board of directors and general
manager of Bohai from September 1998 to January 2001. He
also served as a general manager of the merger and acquisition
department of Guosen Securities Co., Ltd (listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange) from July 1997 to August 1998 and a general
manager of the investment banking department of China Great
Wall Securities Co., Ltd (listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange)
from July 1995 to June 1997.

MR. LIU HAOYUAN

Mr. LIU Haoyuan, aged 29, was appointed as a non-executive
Director in August 2022 and was redesignated to an executive
Director in November 2022. He was a member of each of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee from
August 2022 to March 2023. He is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Liu obtained a bachelor’s degree in
Mathematics & Computer Science from Boston University in 2018
and further obtained a master’s degree in Computer Science from
University of Southern California in 2019. Mr. Liu is the son of Dr.
LIU Zhiwei, the chairman of the Board, an executive Director and
a substantial shareholder of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Liu has experience and knowledge in asset management,
fintech, artificial intelligence and project management. He is
currently a director and chief executive officer of a private
company in Singapore and manages investment in real estate,
digital assets, private equity, and secondary market stocks in
Singapore. He was a project manager of a proprietary algorithmic
trading firm in the United States of America and an intelligent
information technology firm in the People’s Republic of China from
February 2020 to February 2021. He was also a research assistant
in the department of Technology Innovation and Entrepreneurship
in University of Southern California from September 2018 to
December 2019.

MR. HUA YANG

Mr. HUA Yang, aged 47, was appointed as an executive Director,
a member of each of the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee in March 2023. He was appointed as
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company in January 2023.
He has extensive experience in assets management,
investment,

equity
insurance, and business administration. He is a co-
founder and a partner of Source Capital Management Co., Ltd.

BRERNEBREBR AT

private equity investment fund approved by the China Insurance

), the first insurance-company-backed

Regulatory Commission, from March 2015 to June 2022.
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EECHMABEE (&)

Mr. Hua joined the Group in October 2017 as a non-executive
Director and was redesignated as an executive Director and was
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company between March 2018
to April 2020. Mr. Hua was a managing director of a subsidiary of
the Group from April 2020 to 31 January 2023. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Hua was the general manager of Sun Life Everbright
Ltd. from March 2012 to March 2015.
During the period from 1997 to 2012, he had held various senior

Asset Management Co.,

positions with insurance and securities companies and had
completed various initial public offering projects and share placing
projects, as well as corporate bonds issuance for a number of
companies, etc.

Mr. Hua graduated with a bachelor’s degree in economics and
management from Beijing Forestry University in 1997. He also
obtained an executive master of business administration degree
(EMBA) from Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business in 2005.

MS. SUN QING

Ms. SUN Qing, aged 62, was appointed as an executive Director
in April 2020. She joined the Group in August 2019 and is
responsible for human resources and administrative management
of the Group. She is also a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Group. Ms. Sun graduated from Beijing Correspondence
College of Finance and Commerce in 1988 majoring in industrial
accounting. Ms. Sun also obtained the accountant qualification
awarded by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC in 1994.

Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Sun worked in Everbright
Securities Company Limited (listed on both the main board of the
Stock Exchange and the Shanghai Stock Exchange) for nearly
20 years, mainly responsible for the company’s finance, human
resources and comprehensive back office management. She has
over 20 years of working experience in the financial industry and
has extensive experience in various management tasks such as
finance, auditing and human resources.

Ms. Sun was a non-executive director of IBO Technology
Company Limited (listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange) from July 2020 to February 2021.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
MR. HAN HANTING

Mr. HAN Hanting, aged 38, was appointed as an executive
Director and a member of the Nomination Committee in October
2017. He was re-designated as a non-executive Director
and ceased to be a member of the Nomination Committee in
September 2018. Mr. Han joined the Company in 2015 and was
the chief operating officer of the Company from November 2016
to September 2018. Mr. Han was an investment manager of a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group during the period from 2009
to 2013. Mr. Han obtained a bachelor’s degree from University
of Warwick majoring in Mathematics, Operational Research,
Statistics and Economics in 2006.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Han had worked as a researcher in
CCB International Securities Limited. During the period from May
2013 to May 2016, he was an executive director of Momentum
Financial Holdings Limited (formerly known as Infinity Financial
Group (Holdings) Limited, listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange). Mr. Han has more than 10 years of experience in
investment banking industry and had successfully led merger and
acquisition projects for a number of Hong Kong listed companies.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

EECHMABEE (&)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

MR. CHAN KIN SANG

Mr. CHAN Kin Sang, aged 71, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director and a member of the audit committee
of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) in July 2014. He
was further appointed as a member of each of the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee in December 2022.
Mr. Chan is currently a partner of Kwan & Chow, Solicitors (a law
firm which provides various services including corporate matters
and litigations). Mr. Chan obtained a bachelor’s degree in Laws
from the University of Hong Kong in 1979 and a postgraduate
certificate in Laws from the University of Hong Kong in 1980. He
has been a practising solicitor in Hong Kong since April 1982
and has been admitted as a Notary Public since April 1997 and a
China-appointed Attesting Officer since January 2000. Mr. Chan
has also been a Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors
since August 2004.

Mr. Chan is currently a non-executive director of Sino Harbour
Holdings Group Limited (listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange). He is also an independent non-executive director of
Huakang Biomedical Holdings Company Limited (listed on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange) and Pak Tak International Limited
(listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange).

Mr. Chan has served as a senior partner of Messrs. Peter K.S.
Chan & Co., Solicitors and Notaries. Over the past three years,
Mr. Chan was the chairman of the Appeal Tribunal (Buildings
Ordinance Cap.123) from February 2007 to November 2021. He
was a director of Guanghe Landscape Culture Communication
Co., Ltd., Shanxi (listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange) from
June 2016 to October 2020 and was a nonexecutive director
of Pan Hong Holdings Group Limited (listed on the Singapore
Exchange) from August 2006 to March 2020. He was also an
independent non-executive director of Luxking Group Holdings
Limited (listed on the Singapore Exchange) from June 2005 to
October 2019.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

MR. CHIU KUNG CHIK

Mr. CHIU Kung Chik, aged 38, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in March 2017. He was re-designated
from a member of the Audit Committee to the chairman of the
Audit Committee in March 2020. He is also the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Chiu graduated from the University of Chicago
with a bachelor’s degree in Economics. He has extensive
experience and knowledge in investment banking, capital
financing, corporate restructuring, merger and acquisition,
complex transaction structuring, etc. Mr. Chiu currently serves
as an independent non-executive director of Shandong Hi-Speed
New Energy Group Limited (formerly known as Beijing Enterprises
Clean Energy Group Limited, listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange). He is also a non-executive director of Link
Holdings Limited (listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange).

From 2008 to 2015, Mr. Chiu worked with UBS AG in the
investment banking department in its Hong Kong office, primarily
focusing on advising large scale corporate clients on their capital
market activities. During the aforesaid period, he had completed
a number of high-profile capital market transactions, merger and
acquisition transactions as well as debt financing transactions.

MR. L] GAOFENG

Mr. LI Gaofeng, aged 49, was appointed as an independent
nonexecutive Director and a member of each of the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee in October 2017. Mr. Li graduated from Henan Institute
of Finance and Economics with a bachelor’s degree in Economics
majoring in Investment Management in 1995. He further obtained
a master’s degree in Economics majoring in International Finance
from Tianjin University of Finance and Economics in 1998. Mr. Li
is a nonpracticing member of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

Mr. Li has worked in the insurance and securities sectors for many
years and has rich experience in finance, investment and investor
relations. He worked for Sun Life Everbright Life Insurance Co.,
Ltd. for several years and served as the deputy general manager,
chief financial officer and chief investment officer. He also held
senior management positions with the financial institutes such as
securities companies and mutual funds in the PRC.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERES

The Directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note
35 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2023 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 155 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2023 (2022: nil).

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property and equipment of the
Group during the Reporting Year are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND CONVERTIBLE
BONDS

Details of movements in the share capital and convertible bonds
of the Company during the Reporting Year are set out in notes 30
and 28 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the Reporting Year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 158 of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company’s distributable
reserve is approximately of HK$65,058,000 and HK$72,158,000
as at 31 March 2023 and 2022 respectively.
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DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group did not make
any charitable donations.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements
and reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page 288 of this
annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2023 is set out in the section headed “MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS” on pages 10 to 38 of this annual
report. These discussions form part of this Directors’ Report.
Description of the principal risks and uncertainties faced by the
Group can be found throughout this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2023, as far as the Board and
the management are aware, there was no breach of or non-
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group
that has a significant impact on the business and operation of the
Group.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its employees and customers to meet its short-
term and long-term business goals. During the year ended
31 March 2023, there was no material and significant dispute
between the Group and its employees and customers.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to operate in compliance with the
applicable environmental laws as well as to protect the
environment by minimizing the negative impact of the Group’s
existing business activities on the environment.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
EEEREE (F)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s original share option scheme was adopted on
19 August 2011 (the “2011 Scheme”), which was expired on
18 August 2021 and replaced by a new share option scheme
approved by the Shareholders on 2 September 2021 (the “2021
Scheme”). A summary of the 2021 Scheme is set out below:

1. PURPOSE

The purpose of the 2021 Scheme is to enable the Company
to grant options to selected participants as incentives or
rewards for their contribution to the Group.

2. PARTICIPANTS

The Board (which expression shall include a duly authorised
committee thereof) may, at its absolute discretion, invite
any person belonging to any of the following classes of
participants, to take up options to subscribe for Shares:

(i)  any employee;
(i) any business associate;

(i) any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to the
Group or any invested entity; and

(iv) any shareholder of any member of the Group or any
invested entity or any holder of any securities issued by
any member of the Group or any invested entity.

The eligibility of any of the above classes of participants to
the grant of any option shall be determined by the Board
from time to time and on a case-by-case basis subject to
the Board’s opinion as to, among others, their contribution
or potential contribution to the development and growth of
the Group or invested entity.
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TOTAL NUMBER OF SHARES AVAILABLE
FOR ISSUE UNDER THE 2021 SCHEME
AND THE PERCENTAGE OF THE ISSUED
SHARES THAT IT REPRESENTS AS AT
THE DATE OF THIS ANNUAL REPORT

As approved by the Shareholders at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 2 September 2021 (the
‘2021 AGM”), the scheme limit of the 2021 Scheme was
approved to allow the Company to grant share options for
up to 91,530,788 Shares, representing 10% of the total
number of Shares in issue as at the date of the 2021 AGM.

The total number of Shares available for issue under the
2021 Scheme as at the date of this annual report was
91,530,788 Shares, representing approximately 6.94% of the
Shares in issue as at the date of this annual report.

MAXIMUM ENTITLEMENT OF EACH
PARTICIPANT

Unless approved by the Shareholders, the total number of
Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the share
options granted to any grantee (including both exercised and
outstanding share options) in any 12-month period up to
the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares then in
issue.

For any grant of share options under the 2021 Scheme to
a Director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company, or any of their respective associates shall be
approved by independent non-executive Directors (excluding
any independent non-executive Director who is the grantee
of the options in question).

For any grant of share options to a substantial shareholder
of the Company or an independent non-executive Director,
or any of their respective associates, would result in the
Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all share
options already granted and to be granted (including options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the
12-month period exceed 0.1% of the Shares then in issue
and with an aggregate value in excess of HK$5 million,
the proposed grant is also subject to the approval by the
Shareholders.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
EEEHRESE (H)

PERIOD WITHIN WHICH THE SHARES
MUST BE TAKEN UP UNDER AN OPTION

The period during which the share option may be exercised
is determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, save
that no share option may be exercised more than 10 years
after it has been granted.

MINIMUM PERIOD FOR WHICH AN
OPTION MUST BE HELD BEFORE IT CAN
BE EXERCISED

Unless the Board otherwise determines and states in the
offer of grant of an option to a Participant, there is no
minimum period for which a share option granted under the
2021 Scheme shall be held before it can be exercised.

AMOUNT PAYABLE ON ACCEPTANCE OF
THE OPTION AND THE PERIOD WITHIN
WHICH PAYMENTS SHALL BE MADE

HK$1 is payable by the grantee to the Company upon
acceptance of the share option which must be accepted
within 28 days from the date of offer.

BASIS OF DETERMINING THE EXERCISE
PRICE

The subscription price in respect of any share option shall be
determined solely by the Directors, which shall not be less
than the higher of (i) the closing price of Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant of the share option, which shall be a business day; (ii)
the average closing prices of Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 Business Days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the share option;
and (i) the nominal value of the Shares on the date of grant
of the share option.
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9. REMAINING LIFE OF THE 2021 SCHEME

The 2021 Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period
of 10 years from its adoption date until 2 September 2031,
subject to the early termination provisions contained therein.

The remaining life of the 2021 Scheme is 8 years 3 months.

No share option was granted, exercised, lapsed or cancelled
during the year ended 31 March 2023 under the 2021 Scheme.

Accordingly, the number of Shares that may be issued in respect
of options granted under the 2021 Scheme of the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2023 divided by the weighted
average number of Shares in issue (i.e. 1,055,102,000 Shares) is
nil.

The number of options available for grant under the 2021 Scheme
as at 1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023 are 91,530,788 and
91,530,788, respectively.

As at 31 March 2023, the Company did not have any outstanding
share options granted but yet to be exercised under the 2021
Scheme.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report relating to the Share
Option Scheme and the issue of Convertible Bonds, no equity-
linked agreement was entered into during the year ended 31
March 2023.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
EEEREE (F)

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2023 and up to the
date of this Directors’ Report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. XIE Zhichun (Chairman)
(resigned on 22 August 2022)

Dr. LIU Zhiwei (Chairman)
(appointed on 22 August 2022)

Mr. ZHU Yi (Chief Executive Officer)
(resigned on 15 September 2022)
Mr. HUA Yang (Chief Executive Officer’)

(appointed on 24 March 2023)
Ms. SUN Qing
Mr. LIU Haoyuan
(re-designated on 29 November 2022°)

1 Mr. HUA Yang was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer with
effect from 4 January 2023.

2 Mr. LIU Haoyuan was appointed as a non-executive Director with
effect from 22 August 2022 and was re-designated to an executive
Director with effect from 29 November 2022.

Non-executive Director

Mr. HAN Hanting
Mr. CHEN Zhiwei

(removed on 11 November 2022)
Mr. WU Ling

(retired on 27 September 2022)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Kin Sang
Mr. CHIU Kung Chik
Mr. LI Gaofeng
Mr. LIU Xin
(retired on 27 September 2022)
Mr. ZHAO Gen
(appointed on 22 August 2022 and resigned on 7 December 2022)
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Pursuant to Article 99 of the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles of Association”), any Director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
Board shall hold office only until the next following general
meeting of the Company (in the case of filling a casual vacancy)
or until the next following annual general meeting of the Company
(in the case of an addition to the Board) and shall then be eligible
for re-election at that meeting.

Accordingly, Mr. HUA Yang will hold office until the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) and, being
eligible, offer himself for re-election at the AGM.

Pursuant to Article 116 of the Articles of Association, at each
AGM one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three (3), the number nearest
to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director, including those appointed for a
specific term, shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.

Accordingly, Mr. HUA Yang, Mr. LIU Haoyuan, Mr. CHAN Kin Sang
and Mr. LI Gaofeng shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming AGM
and, being eligible, offer themselves (except Mr. LIU Haoyuan) for
re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

As Mr. LIU Haoyuan does not offer himself for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM due to his personal business commitments, he
shall retire as an executive Director.

Mr. CHEN Zhiwei was removed as a non-executive Director on
11 November 2022 by passing of an ordinary resolution of the
Company on the extraordinary general meeting held on the same
day.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
EEEHREE (R)

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 39 to 45
of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Company has entered into employment contracts or letters
of appointment with each of the Directors for a specific term,
subject to the renewal provisions contained therein and retirement
by rotation and re-election at the AGMs. None of the Directors
proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has employment
contract or letter of appointment with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him as a
Director in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in
which judgment is given in his favor, or in which he is acquitted.

The Company has maintained Directors’ liability insurance during
the year ended 31 March 2023 and up to the date of this annual
report which provides appropriate cover for the Directors.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND

DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2023, the interests and short positions of each
of the Directors or chief executive of the Company and their
associates in the Shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFQ”)), which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
which were required pursuant to section 352 of the SFO to be
entered in the register maintained by the Company referred to
therein, or which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:

LONG POSITION IN THE SHARES AND

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
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UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY: =
Approximate
Total interest  percentage of
Interest in  in Shares and the issued
Interest in underlying underlying share capital of
Name of Director Capacity Shares shares shares  the Company
RERH K EAAT
REBER S HERHGZ BRTRE
EEps 51 RRBzER 2 mER BRBSH
Dr. LIU Zhiwei (“Dr. Liu") Mot Beneficial owner 320,051,000 - 320,051,000 24.28%
MEEEL ([WEL]) ERBEAA
Note: B 5E
The percentage of shareholding was calculated on the basis of the REBDHLIBEARATINR -_ZET-_=F=4

Company’s issued share capital of 1,317,967,885 Shares as at 31 March
2023.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
EEEHREE (R)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, none of the
Directors nor the chief executive of the Company, had or was
deemed to have any interests or short positions in the Shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO) or
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein; or were required, pursuant to
the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “DIRECTORS’ AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY”, at no time during the year ended 31 March 2023
was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors and the chief executive of
the Company, their respective spouse or minor children (natural or
adopted) to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS" MATERIAL
INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “ISSUE OF CONVERTIBLE
BONDS” under the “MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS”
section of this annual report, the section headed “CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS” under the “DIRECTORS’ REPORT” section of this
annual report and under “related party transactions” as set out in
note 32 to the consolidated financial statements, no transactions,
arrangements or contract of significance to which the Company,
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or an
entity connected with the Directors or the controlling shareholders of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended
31 March 2023.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the interests of the
Directors in the business which compete or are likely to compete
either directly or indirectly, with businesses of the Group
(“Competing Businesses”) as required to be disclosed pursuant
to the Listing Rules were as follows:

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
EEEHREE (&)

EENHEFEB2ER

RBE-Z-_=F=-A=+t—RHLLEFE"

EENEERARAERERKEEXBEHRF X
ARG F2EZB ((BRBREB )P HEAR

BEEMARABATHREZEamsuiE T :

Description of

Name of Director Name of company Competing Businesses  Nature of interest

EEpgs ACEE ! BEEBHE EaiE

Dr. Liu (Executive Director)  Wealthking Investments Limited Debt Investment and As an executive director and chairman
Equity Investment of Wealthking Investments (Note)

MEL (MITES) ENERERAT BRERENRERE EMBEARAZHTESRER (M)

Note:

Dr. Liu ceased to be the chairman of Wealthking Investments with effect
from 8 June 2023.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors was interested in
any business apart from the Group’s businesses which compete
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with businesses
of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)

EETEHEE (A)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’

INTERESTS

As at 31 March 2023, as far as is known to the Directors and
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO, the substantial Shareholders
(other than a Director or a chief executive of the Company) who
had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying shares
of the Company were as follows:

LONG POSITION IN THE SHARES AND

TERRER

R-_ZE-_=F=ZA=+—H BEEMH
MARE AR AR % 5 & B B 1§ 553361%
BAFEZERMRS TERE (AR
RIEBRITHRAERBRIN RAR ARG X
HERDF#EE 2 EmsAR T

/EZK 2 AR 17 RIBE IR 17 2 4F

UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY: Y=
Approximate
Total interest  percentage of
Interest in in Shares and the issued share
Interestin  underlying underlying capital of the
Name of Shareholders Capacity Shares shares shares Company
R4 R LR N
RR® REBERG HBERGZ BRITRE
BRREE 2 EL) 2B ZER HER BREA L
Jadehero Limited (“Jadehero”) MoV Beneficial owner 80,000,000 - 80,000,000 6.07%
ERARLA([BR]) 8y EaEBA
Southlead Limited (“Southlead”) MV Interest of controlled corporation 80,000,000 - 80,000,000 6.07%
FEARLR([HmE]) REHEERR
Santo Limited (“Santo”) M " Beneficial owner 141,643,000 - 141,643,000 10.75%
Santo Limited ([ Santo |) %V EREBA
WHOLE ADVANCE LIMITED Interest of controlled corporation 221,643,000 - 221,643,000 16.81%
(“Whole Advance”) "o ")
BEERAR ([RB]) W) REGEEER
Liberal Expansion Limited Interest of controlled corporation 221,643,000 - 221,643,000 16.81%
(“Liberal Expansion”) "t "
Bl AR AR ([FEsh]) ey REHEERR
Mr. ZHAO Xu Guang (‘Mr. Zhao") ™' Interest of controlled corporation 221,643,000 - 221,643,000 16.81%
M EE (THEE]) 8y REtEERR
Star Banner Development Company Beneficial owner 70,000,000 - 70,000,000 5.31%
Limited (“Star Banner”) o2
ERERERAR([ERBR]) "2 BEHEEA
Mr. YU Dongge (‘M. Yu”) tete2 Interest of controlled corporation 70,000,000 - 70,000,000 5.31%

TREXE ([THRE]) 2

GoFintech Innovation Limited
Annual Report 2023

REHEEERE



Notes:

1. As at 31 March 2023, Jadehero beneficially held 80,000,000
Shares and Santo beneficially held 141,643,000 Shares. Jadehero
is owned as to 80% by Southlead. Southlead was deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Jadehero. Southlead and Santo
are wholly-owned by Whole Advance. Whole Advance is wholly-
owned by Liberal Expansion which in turn is wholly-owned by Mr.
Zhao. For the purpose of the SFO, Mr. Zhao, Liberal Expansion and
Whole Advance were deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
Jadehero and Santo.

2. Star Banner is directly held as to 100% by Mr Yu. By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. Yu is therefore deemed to be interested in any Shares in
which Star Banner is interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, the Directors
were not aware of any substantial Shareholder (who was not
the Director or chief executive of the Company) who had an
interest or short position in the Shares or underlying shares of
the Company which was required to be entered in the aforesaid
register pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements and are also referred to in
the section headed “CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS” under the
“DIRECTORS’ REPORT” section of this annual report. These
related party transactions are connected transactions under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Company has complied with the requirements in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules in respect of such transactions.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company had the following connected
transactions, certain details of which are disclosed in compliance
with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

[A) CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS EXEMPT
FROM THE CIRCULAR (INCLUDING
INDEPENDENT FINANCIAL ADVICE]
AND SHAREHOLDERS APPROVAL
REQUIREMENTS

Acquisition of Shares in Wealthking Investments

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company
dated 14 February 2023.

On 14 February 2023, the Company, through a broker,
acquired an aggregate of 28,500,000 shares in Wealthking
Investments (the “Acquisition”), representing approximately
0.296% of the issued shares of Wealthking Investments, at
the aggregate consideration (before transaction costs) of
approximately HK$9,981,000 (representing an average price
of approximately HK$0.3502 per share) on the open market.
Prior to the Acquisition, the Company had no interest in
Wealthking Investments.
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The Company had been actively looking for opportunities in
financing private equity and/or securities investment in Hong
Kong and the PRC.

Based on the reasonable judgment on the development
prospects and investment value of Wealthking Investments,
the Company considered that the future prospect of
Wealthking Investments was promising and the Acquisition
represented an investment opportunity which would bring a
profitable return to the Company. It was also considered that
the Acquisition could strengthen the business collaboration
between the Company and Wealthking Investments and
achieve considerable synergy effects in terms of client base
and business activities, including but not limited to Type 1,
Type 6 and Type 9 regulated activities the Group licensed to
carry out under the Securities and Futures Ordinance as well
as investment, money lending and margin financing services.

As at the date of the Acquisition, Dr. Liu, an executive
Director, directly held approximately 25.45% shareholding in
Wealthking Investments and was interested in approximately
25.56% of Wealthking Investments. Accordingly, the
Acquisition constituted a connected transaction of the
Company under Rule 14A.28(1) of the Listing Rules. As
each of the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the
Acquisition was less than 25% and the total consideration
was less than HK$10,000,000, the Acquisition was subject
to the reporting and announcement requirements but was
exempted from the circular, independent financial advice
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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(B) FULLY EXEMPT CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Investment Management Agreement

Pursuant to an investment management agreement dated
13 September 2022 (the “Investment Management
Agreement”), Fortune Asset Management Limited (“Fortune
Asset”), a subsidiary of the Group, was appointed as the
investment manager of Wealthking Investments to provide
investment management services for a period commencing
on 13 September 2022 to 12 September 2025. Under
the Investment Management Agreement, Wealthking
Investments would pay Fortune Asset a management fee
and performance fee. The management fee for the first year
of the Investment Management Agreement was calculated at
0.012% per annum of the net asset value of the Company.
From the second year, the management fee would be
calculated at such other percentage figure as agreed
between Wealthking Investments and Fortune Asset. The
performance fee was calculated by reference to the increase
in the net asset value per share of Wealthking Investments.

During the Year, the management fee paid/payable by
Wealthking Investments under the Investment Management
Agreement to Fortune Asset was HK$643,000 (2022: nil).

Wealthking Investments is regarded as a connected person
of the Company by virtue of Rule 14A.08 of the Listing
Rules because Fortune Asset is the investment manager
of Wealthking Investments. The Investment Management
Agreement constitutes a continuing connected transaction
of the Company. As all the applicable percentage ratios
with reference to the largest annual cap of the Investment
Management Agreement are less than 5% and the total
consideration is less than HK$3,000,000, the Investment
Management Agreement is fully exempt from shareholders’
approval, annual review and all disclosure requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

All of the connected transactions entered by the Company above
have complied with the applicable disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and/or administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
was entered into or existed during the year ended 31 March 2028.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share was held by the public as at the
latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 March 2023, revenue attributable to the
5 largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately
44.18% of the Group’s total revenue. The Group’s largest
customer accounted for approximately 19.13% of the Group’s
total revenue.

The Group is a provider of financial services. In the opinion of
the Directors, it is therefore of no value to disclose details of the
Group’s suppliers.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates (as defined
under the Listing Rules) or any Shareholders (which, to the
best knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the
Group’s five largest customers during the year ended 31 March
2023.
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Details of the retirement benefit scheme of the Group and the
employer’s retirement benefit costs charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for
the year ended 31 March 2023 are set out in note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities
throughout the year ended 31 March 20283.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing Shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company’s compliance with the corporate governance codes
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 70 to
100 of this annual report.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING YEAR

PROPOSED REFRESHMENT OF GENERAL
MANDATE

As at the date of this annual report, approximately 100% of the
existing general mandate (the “Existing General Mandate”)
granted at the annual general meeting of the Company held and
convened on 27 September 2022 by the ordinary resolution of
the Shareholders to the Directors to allot, issue and deal with not
more than 219,661,577 Shares has been utilised.
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The Company has proposed to refresh the Existing General
Mandate for the Directors to allot, issue and deal with new Shares
not exceeding 20% of the aggregate number of the issued Shares
as at the date of passing of the relevant ordinary resolution(s) at
the extraordinary general meeting of the Company to be held on
Tuesday, 11 July 2023 at 11:00 a.m..

At the EGM held on 11 July 2023,
approving the refreshment of Existing General Mandate was duly
passed by the Shareholders by poll at the EGM.

the ordinary resolution

For further details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 14 April 2023 and 11 July 2023, and the circular
of the Company dated 20 June 2023.

References are also made to (i) the announcement of the
Company dated 30 June 2023 in relation to the delay in
publication of the annual results for the year ended 31 March
20283 and suspension of trading in the shares of the Company;
(i) the announcement of the Company dated 30 June 2023 in
relation to the publication of the unaudited management accounts
of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2023; (iii) the
announcement of the Company dated 27 July 2023 in relation to
the publication of the annual results for the year ended 31 March
20283; and (iv) the announcement of the Company dated 27 July
20283 in relation to findings of the internal control review and
resumption of trading in the shares of the Company (collectively,
the “Announcements”).

As at the date of this annual report, save as specifically disclosed
in the Announcements and this annual report, the Group has no
significant events occurred after the Reporting Year which requires
additional disclosures or adjustments.
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TAXATION OF HOLDERS OF SHARES
HONG KONG

The purchase, sale and transfer of Shares registered in the
Company’s Hong Kong branch register of members will be subject
to Hong Kong stamp duty. The current rate charged on each of
the purchaser and seller (or transferee and transferor) is 0.13% of
the consideration or, if greater, the fair value of the Shares being
bought/sold or transferred (rounded up to the nearest HK$ 000).
In addition, a fixed duty of HK$5.00 is currently payable on an
instrument of transfer of Shares.

Profits from dealings in the Share arising in or derived from Hong
Kong may also be subject to Hong Kong profits tax.

CAYMAN ISLANDS

Under the present Cayman lIslands laws, transfers and other
dispositions of Shares are exempt from Cayman Islands stamp
duty.

CONSULTATION WITH PROFESSIONAL
ADVISERS

Intending holders and investors of the Shares are recommended
to consult their professional advisers if they are in any doubt as
to the taxation implications (including tax relief) of subscribing
for, purchasing, holding, disposing of or dealing in Shares. It is
emphasized that none of the Company or its Directors or officers
will accept any responsibility for any tax effect on, or liabilities of,
holders of Shares resulting from their subscription for, purchase,
holding, disposal of or dealing in such Shares.
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CHANGE OF DIRECTORS’
INFORMATION UNDER RULE 13.51B(1)
OF THE LISTING RULES

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the change in

Directors’ information of the Company since 29 November 2022
(i.e. the date of the Board’s approval of the interim results for the
six months ended 30 September 2022) to 27 July 2023 (i.e. the
date of the Board’s approval of the annual results for the year
ended 31 March 2023) were as follows:

Mr. ZHAO Gen resigned as an independent non-executive
Director and a member of each of the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee
with effect from 7 December 2022 due to his other business
commitments which require more of his attention and
dedication.

Mr. CHAN Kin Sang was appointed as a member of each of
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee
with effect from 7 December 2022.

Mr. HUA Yang was appointed as the chief executive officer
of the Company with effect from 4 January 2023 and was
further appointed as an executive Director, a member of
each of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee with effect from 24 March 2023.

Mr. LIU Haoyuan ceased to act as a member to each of the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee
due to change in work arrangement with effect from 24
March 2028.

Mr. CHIU Kung Chik was appointed as a non-executive
director of Link Holdings Limited (listed on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange with the stock code: 8237) with effect from
2 May 2023.
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Save as disclosed above, there is no other change in the
Directors’ information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules since 29 November 2022 (i.e. the
date of the Board’s approval of the interim results for the six
months ended 30 September 2022) to 27 July 2023 (i.e. the date
of the Board's approval of the annual results for the year ended
31 March 2023).

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. CHIU Kung Chik (chairman of the Audit
Committee), Mr. CHAN Kin Sang and Mr. LI Gaofeng.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed the internal controls and financial reporting matters
including the review of the audited consolidated financial
statements and annual results of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2023.

AUDITOR

The Company and Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited (“Grant
Thornton”) could not reach a consensus on the audit fee for the
financial year ended 31 March 2022. Accordingly, Grant Thornton
was not proposed to be re-appointed upon its retirement as the
auditor of the Company at the 2021 AGM.

On 20 July 2021, as recommended by the Audit Committee, the
Board has resolved to propose the appointment of BDO limited
(“BDO”) as the Company’s auditor the year of 2021 following the
retirement of Grant Thornton.

BDO has been re-appointed as the auditor of the Company in the
2022 AGM to hold office until the conclusion of the next annual
general meeting of the Company.
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The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2023 were audited by BDO which will retire at
the conclusion of the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will be proposed to
the Shareholders to re-appoint BDO as auditor of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, there has been no change in auditor of

the Company in any of the preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board

HUA Yang
Director

Hong Kong, 27 July 2023
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TEERBE

The Company’s commitment to the highest standards of
led by the
Chairman, assumes overall responsibility for the governance of the

corporate governance is driven by the Board which,

Company, taking into account of the interests of the Shareholders,
the development of its businesses and the changing external
environment.

The Company believes that good corporate governance is
fundamental in ensuring that the Company is well managed in the
interests of all of its Shareholders.

The Company has adopted the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
COMPLIANCE

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company has
complied with all code provisions and, where appropriate, met the
recommended best practices of the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transaction. Having made specific enquiry of
all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have complied with
the required standards set out in the Model Code throughout the
year ended 31 March 2023.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is collectively responsible for formulating of the
Group’s overall strategy, reviewing and monitoring the Group’s
business operations and performance, preparing and approving
financial statements, considering and approving material contracts
and transactions as well as other significant policies and financial
matters. The Board takes the responsibility to oversee internal
controls and risk management systems and to review of the
effectiveness of such systems, monitoring the performance of
the senior management and determining the policy for corporate
governance. The Board also gives clear directions as to the
powers delegated to the senior management for the day-to-day
operation, business strategies and administrative functions of the
Group.

BOARD COMPOSITION

As at 31 March 2023 and up to the date of this annual report, the
composition of the Board was as follows:

Non-executive Director

FUTES

Executive Directors

BITES

TEERHRE (&)

EET

E=ZeHFAEHAASE 2 BERE -
B MEBARECEHZEEMKE R
HEHEMBHRER - EEMMEEREL
ARG UWREBEERRMVBER-
EZg R ERNSERRARERE R
FoURIZFRRZBRE AREE
EREEBERANBTLEEABRR -E
ZeNTRERTESREEEERAEE
AEEE XBRBRITHRBEZE NG
T EAREIER

EFS AKX

NRZBE_=F=A=+—BREEAXF
WA EEg2HEKDT

Independent non-executive Directors

BUFHTES

Mr. XIE Zhichun (Chairman)
(resigned on 22 August 2022)
BEERE (£E)
(RZFZZFNNA=+=HF)

Mr. HAN Hanting

BHELL

Dr. LIU Zhiwei (Chairman)
(appointed on 22 August 2022)

Mr. CHEN Zhiwei

(removed on 11 November 2022)

Mr. CHAN Kin Sang

RigLrkst

Mr. CHIU Kung Chik

NEREL (2E) RERLE BRAELE
(RZFZZF)NNAZF+-HEZF) (RZFZZF+—FA+—H#HEE)

Mr. ZHU Yi (Chief Executive Officer) Mr. WU Ling Mr. LI Gaofeng

(resigned on 15 September 2022) (retired on 27 September 2022)

KREE (BEHTE) REXE FRgtst
(RZEZZFNATHAFE) (RZFZZFAHAZF+HRE)

Mr. HUA Yang (Chief Executive Officer’) Mr. LIU Xin

(appointed on 24 March 2023) (retired on 27 September 2022)

EGEEE (BEEHTE) BIMmEE
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ERER®RE ()

Executive Directors Non-executive Director Independent non-executive Directors
HTES FUTES BYBITES
Ms. SUN Qing Mr. ZHAO Gen
(appointed on 22 August 2022 and
resigned on 7 December 2022)
BERL HRTAE

Mr. LIU Haoyuan
(re-designated on 29 November 2022?)
MEERLE
(RZBZZF+—AZ1TLAHFF)

1. Mr. HUA Yang was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer with 1.

effect from 4 January 2023.

2. Mr. LIU Haoyuan was appointed as a non-executive Director with 2.

effect from 22 August 2022 and was re-designated to an executive
Director with effect from 29 November 2022.

(RZFE-—#)\A-+-HEZIR
R-FE-—F+-F+HFE)

EGAFEEB _T_—F - ANBAREZ
EREFHITE -

MERE4s TN A =-+=H
HEZTAENTES BT
F+—A-t+hBREEATARNITES -

The Chairman and the independent non-executive Directors T EEBY K ITEETLEEAMEELE
have met at least once every year without the presence of other EEBRESHBER T BFEZRIEIT—
Directors and the management and such meeting was held on 29 X &@#FH M EHECR T -_—_F+— A
November 2022. T+ BT
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS,
COMMITTEES MEETINGS, GENERAL

MEETING AND DIRECTORS’
ATTENDANCE RATE

Number of Board meetings, committees meetings and general
meetings held during the year ended 31 March 2023 and the

attendance rate of the individual Directors are set out below:

TEERERE (&)
EE2SR ZETEH
%ik%i%ﬁlﬁ RESH

REE

—EC=—F=-A=+t—BLFE

4= — =< —
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REZHEUARBENES 2 HFEXHT

wmT
Audit Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings
Directors (“BM”) (“ACM”) (“RCM”) (“NCM”) (“GM”)
Exg B i R’E
8% Z£E88E ZE99F 25923 BRAE
34 (&% (TE ™ (MR#
EENE &32]) ZBEgg®]) ZBEggR]) ZEggRl) ([RRXE))
Executive Directors HBITES
XIE Zhichun' (Chairman) BER(LE) 2/2 N/ATNE A 2/2 2/2 0/0
LIU Zhiwei? (Chairman) MEE(FE) 15/16 N/AT i@ 5/5 4/4 4/4
ZHU Y& (Chief Executive Officer) X B(BEHTE) 4/4 N/ATiE 2/2 2/2 0/0
HUA Yang?* (Chief Executive Officer) E BEEHTE) 11 N/A 733 A 0/0 11 0/0
SUN Qing 7 B 18/18  NATEMA N/AT 8 P N/AT 8 4/4
LIU Haoyuan® HIE=3 =3 15/16 N/A 8 5/5 3/3 4/4
Non-executive Directors FHTES
HAN Hanting BHE 1718 NATEA N/A 73 F N/A i 4/4
CHEN Zhiwei® bR & &e 89  NATERA N/AT 38 F N/ATER 3/3
WU Ling’ 2 % 4/6 N/A 7~ F N/A T A N/A 7~ 0
Independent non-executive BYFHTES
Directors
CHAN Kin Sang? B fee e 16/18 3/3 1/2 1/2 4/4
CHIU Kung Chik HAE 16/18 3/3 7/7 6/6 4/4
LI Gaofeng ey 16/18 3/3 7/7 6/6 3/4
LIU Xin® 2 fRe 5/6 1/1 2/2 2/2 1/1
ZHAO Gen'™ AR 8/9 11 3/3 2/2 3/3
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EXRERRE ()

10.

Mr. XIE Zhichun resigned as an executive Director, the Chairman
of the Board, a member of the Remuneration Committee and the
chairman of the Nomination Committee with effect from 22 August
2022.

Dr. LIU Zhiwei was appointed as an executive Director, the
Chairman of the Board, a member of the Remuneration Committee
and the chairman of the Nomination Committee with effect from 22
August 2022.

Mr. ZHU Yi resigned as an executive Director, the Chief Executive
Officer and a member of each of the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee with effect from 15 September 2022.

Mr. HUA Yang was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer
with effect from 4 January 2023. He was further appointed as
an executive Director and a member of each of the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee with effect from 24
March 2023.

Mr. LIU Haoyuan was appointed as a non-executive Director
and a member of each of the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee with effect from 22 August 2022. He was re-
designated to an executive Director with effect from 29 November
2022. Mr. LIU Haoyuan ceased to act as a member to each of the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee with effect
from 24 March 2023.

Mr. CHEN Zhiwei was removed as a non-executive Director with
effect from 11 November 2022.

Mr. WU Ling retired as a non-executive Director with effect from 27
September 2022.

Mr. CHAN Kin Sang was appointed as a member of each of the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee with effect
from 7 December 2022.

Mr. LIU Xin retired as an independent non-executive Director and
a member of each of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee
and Remuneration Committee with effect from 27 September 2022.

Mr. ZHAO Gen was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director and a member of each of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee with
effect from 22 August 2022. He resigned as an independent non-
executive director and a member of each of the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee with
effect from 7 December 2022.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence as
required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers that all independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

The biographical details of all existing Directors are set out in
the section headed “BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS”
of this annual report. Save as disclosed in that section, none of
the Directors has any relationship (including financial,
family or other material/relevant relationship(s)) with other Board

business,

members.

OPERATION OF THE BOARD

The Board is provided with relevant information concerning
matters to be brought for its decision. Regular board meetings
are held at approximately quarterly intervals and at least 14 days
notice will be given to the Directors before each board meeting is
held. Board papers are dispatched to the Directors at least 3 days
prior to the meetings.

Directors have to declare their interests before the meetings in
accordance with the Articles of Association. Directors who are
considered to have a conflict of interest or material interests in
the proposed transactions or issues to be discussed will not be
counted as the quorum of the meeting and are required to abstain
from voting on the relevant resolutions.

The Company maintains the minutes of the board meetings for
inspection by Directors.

There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Board
and the Executive Committee of the Company (the “Executive
Committee”). Decisions on important matters are reserved to
the Board while decisions on the Group’s general operations
are delegated to the Executive Committee. Important matters
including but not limited to major acquisitions and disposals,
connected transactions, annual budgets, approval of annual and
interim results, other significant operational and financial matters

and those affecting the Group’s strategic policies.
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RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES
AND CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD AND
MANAGEMENT

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control
of the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads
and provides direction to the management by laying down
strategies and overseeing their implementation, monitors the
Group’s operational and financial performance, and ensures that
sound internal control and risk management systems are in place.

All Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and

including independent non-executive Directors,

effective functioning. The independent non-executive Directors are
responsible for ensuring a high standard of regulatory reporting of
the Company and providing a balance in the Board for bringing
effective independent judgement on corporate actions and
operations. Independent non-executive Directors are invited to
serve on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and

the Nomination Committee.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information
of the Company and may, upon request, seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the

Company’s expenses for discharging their duties to the Company.

According to the code provision under the CG Code requiring
directors to disclose the number and nature of offices held
in public companies or organizations and other significant
commitments as well as their identity and the time involved to the
Company, the Directors update the Company regarding offices
held in public companies and organisations, and other significant
commitments on a regular basis.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

The Board reserves for its decisions on all major matters relating
to the approval and monitoring of policy matters, overall strategies
and budgets,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict

internal control and risk management systems,
of interests), financial information, appointment of directors and
other significant financial and operational matters of the Company.
Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board,
directing and coordinating the daily operation and management of
the Company are delegated to the management.

DIRECTOR INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Newly appointed Directors are provided with briefings and
orientation on their legal and other responsibilities as a Director
and the role of the Board.

Information package comprising the latest development in laws,
rules and regulations relating to the duties and responsibilities
of Directors will be forwarded to each Director from time to
time for their information and reference. “A Guide on Directors’
Duties” published by the Companies Registry of Hong Kong,
and “Guidelines for Directors” and “Guide for Independent Non-
Executive Directors” published by The Hong Kong Institute of
Directors have also been forwarded to each newly appointed

Director for their information and reference.

In addition, the Company has also from time to time provided
information and briefings to Directors on the latest development
of the laws, rules and regulations relating to Directors’ duties and
responsibilities. The Company has, on an individual basis, advised
Directors on queries or issues arising from the performance of
their duties.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, one in-house seminar
on the topic of “Report of the Board of Directors of GoFintech
Innovation Limited on Updates on Listing Rules” was provided
by the Company to its Directors on 29 November 2022. Besides,
individual Director who had participated in other continuous
professional training organized by professional bodies and/
or government authorities also provided the Company with his
records of continuous professional development. Such training
records were kept by the Company.
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The Directors’ knowledge and skills are continuously developed
and refreshed by the following means:

(1) Participation in in-house seminars and/or briefings provided
by the Company relating to the updates on legal and
regulatory, corporate governance requirements and industry-
related issues;

(2) Participation in the continuous professional training
seminars/conferences/courses/workshops organized by
other professional bodies and/or government authorities on
topics relating to directors’ duties and/or their respective
professionalism; and

(3) Accessing and/or reading, via the Internet, the materials
relating to the latest development in laws, rules and
regulations in relation to the directors’ duties and
responsibilities, corporate governance, business and industry
developments, and finance industry, as well as watching
videos prepared by the Stock Exchange in relation to the
aforesaid topics.
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During the year ended 31 March 2023, all the Directors REBE-_ZT-_=F=-A=+—HItFE"

participated in continuous professional development and the FIBEZRD2MBEZELE HBFS

relevant details are set out below: FHAT

Training(s)

Members of the Board received

EE=gNE 2EZE2EI

Executive Directors HITES

XIE Zhichun (Chairman) fRER (FE) (3)
(resigned on 22 August 2022) (R=ZFZZFNNA=F+=HFF)

LIU Zhiwei (Chairman) MER(FE) (1&(3)
(appointed on 22 August 2022) (RZFZZFNAZFZHEZE)

ZHU Yi (Chief Executive Officer) K BR(BEHTE) (3)
(resigned on 15 September 2022) (R=ZFZZ—F A+ HHFE)

HUA Yang (Chief Executive Officer’) 2 I (EEHTE) (3)
(appointed on 24 March 2023) (R=ZFZ=ZF=ZH=FWHEZ()

SUN Qing " B (1)&(3)

LIU Haoyuan MEER (1)&(3)
(re-designated on 29 November 20222) (REZE-—F+—H =+ BT

Non-executive Directors FHITES

HAN Hanting EHE (1)&(3)

CHEN Zhiwei (removed on 11 November 2022) REE (R-—FE-—#+—HA+—H (3)

wEER)
WU Ling (retired on 27 September 2022) R B(RZFEZZFAA=-1+H 3)
RIF)

Independent non-executive Directors BIYKHITES

CHAN Kin Sang PR f& 4 (1), 2)&(@3)

CHIU Kung Chik HBAE (1)&(3)

LI Gaofeng Fal& (1)&(3)

LIU Xin (retired on 27 September 2022) 2 MR=ZFZZFAHA=1+H 3)

RIE)
ZHAO Gen (appointed on 22 August 2022 and #H B (R=ZEFE-—F A =-+=H (1)&(3)

resigned on 7 December 2022)

Notes:

BEZERR=

e

=

Fr-—HEHEE)

BT -

1. HUA Yang was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer with effect 1.

from 4 January 2023.

2. LIU Haoyuan was appointed as a non-executive Director with 2.

effect from 22 August 2022 and was re-designated to an executive

Director with effect from 29 November 2022.
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LIABILITY INSURANCE FOR THE
DIRECTORS

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover in
respect of possible legal actions against its Directors and officers.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Code Provision C.2.1 of the CG Code states that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. The roles of the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company are currently
performed by Dr. LIU Zhiwei and Mr. HUA Yang respectively.

The Chairman is responsible for taking the lead in formulating the
overall strategies and policies of the Group. He ensures that the
Board functions effectively and all material issues of the Company
are discussed in a timely manner. The Chairman also leads the
Board to establish good corporate governance policies and
procedures for the Group as a whole.

The Chief Executive Officer, supported by the other executive
Directors and the senior management of the Company, is
responsible for the daily business operations and management
of the Group. He monitors the implementation of the Group’s
strategy with respect to the achievement of its business
objectives.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors has entered into letters of appointment with
the Company for an initial term of one year with effect from the
date of appointment subject to the terms of renewal contained
therein and retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance
with the Articles of Association.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Audit Committee are disclosed on
both the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

GoFintech Innovation Limited
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established in October 2005.
It currently comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. CHIU Kung Chik (chairman of the Remuneration
Committee), Mr. CHAN Kin Sang and Mr. LI Gaofeng, and two
executive Directors, namely Dr. LIU Zhiwei and Mr. HUA Yang. The
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee was revised
on 29 November 2023 and are aligned with the provisions set out
in the CG Code. The main duties of the Remuneration Committee
are as follows:

(a)

to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all Directors and senior
management’s remuneration and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy;

to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management. This should include benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office
or appointment;

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive Directors;

to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

to review and approve compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive for
the Company;

to review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure
that they are consistent with contractual terms and are
otherwise reasonable and appropriate;
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(h)  to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved
in deciding his own remuneration; and

(i) to review and approve matters relating to share schemes
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Remuneration
Committee held seven meetings to discuss and deal with the
following major matters:

- to review the remuneration package of all Directors and
senior management;

- to review the effectiveness of the terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee;

- to consider the remuneration packages for the new Directors
and senior management, and make recommendations to the
Board thereon; and

- to consider the plan for reduction of remunerations for
Directors.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, there was no material
matters relating to the share scheme of the Company that
required review or approval by the Remuneration Committee.

Remuneration of Directors and senior management is
recommended by the Remuneration Committee and approved by
the Board with reference to their qualifications, experience, duties
and responsibilities within the Company and the prevailing market
conditions.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established in December 2007.
It currently comprises two executive Directors, namely Dr. LIU
Zhiwei (chairman of the Nomination Committee) and Mr. HUA
Yang; and three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
CHAN Kin Sang, Mr. CHIU Kung Chik and Mr. LI Gaofeng. The
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee was revised on
29 February 2012 and are aligned with the provisions set out in
the CG Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

The main duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

(@) to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

(b) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members
of the Board and may select individuals nominated for
directorship;

() to assess the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors; and

(d) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive.

The Nomination Committee identifies and nominates qualified
individual to the Board for consideration. All newly appointed
Directors are subject to re-election by the Shareholders at the
AGM or at the next following general meeting of the Company
immediately following their appointment pursuant to the Articles of
Association. In considering the new appointment or re-nomination
of Directors, the Nomination Committee will focus their decisions
based on attributes such as integrity, industry experience and
professional and technical skills together with the ability to
contribute time and afford to carry out their duties effectively and
responsibly.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Nomination Committee
held six meetings to discuss and deal with the following major
matters:

- to review the structure, size and composition of the Board;

- to review and assess the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors;

- to discuss the list of Directors who are subject to retirement
by rotation at the annual general meeting of the Company
and make recommendation to the Board on their re-election
as Directors;
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- to review the effectiveness of the terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee;

- to consider the changes of Directors, senior management
and Board committee members and make recommend to
the Board thereon; and

- to review the implementation and effectiveness of the Board
Diversity Policy of the Company for 2022-20283, and set the
gender diversity objectives at the Board level and the Group-
wide employee level.

NOMINATION POLICY

A nomination policy was adopted by the Company in
November 2018 (the “Nomination Policy”’) which sets out
the selection criteria and nomination procedures in identifying
and recommending candidates as Directors for the Board’s
consideration. In assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate for directorship, the Nomination Committee will take
into account (i) the Company’s actual needs, (i) the candidate’s
skills and professional experience that are complementary to the
other members of the Board and (iii) the diversity of the Board,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, etc.

The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy
from time to time and discuss any revisions required, and will
recommend such revisions to the Board for consideration and
approval.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of diversity
of its Board members. It had adopted a Board Diversity Policy (the
“Policy”) in August 2013. All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy and competence. The ultimate decision will be
based on merits and contributions that the selected candidates
will bring to the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

In order to achieve a diversity of perspectives amongst the
structure, size and composition of the Board, when making the
recommendation to the Board for appointment or re-appointment
of Directors, the Nomination Committee will take into account
certain objective criteria such as gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills
and knowledge, and length of service, etc. Besides, it will also
take into account factors based on the Company’s business
model and specific needs from time to time.

In addition, the Policy is reviewed annually to ensure its
effectiveness. The Nomination Committee will discuss any
revisions that may be required, and recommend any such
revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.

The Board is composed of members of different genders to
maintain an appropriate balance of diversity. All appointments of
Directors will be considered against measurable objectives for
the benefits of diversity on the Board with a view to developing a
pipeline of potential successors to the Board to maintain gender
diversity. For the year ended 31 March 2023, the proportion of
male and female members of the Board was approximately 87.5%
and 12.5% respectively, achieving gender diversity on the Board.
The Company’s current goal is to maintain the proportion of
female members on the Board at the current level at least and will
strive to increase the proportion of female directors to achieve an
appropriate balance of gender diversity.

As at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual
report, the ratio of male and female in the workforce of the
Company is approximately 1.33:1. The Company will also ensure
that there is gender diversity when recruiting staff at mid to senior
level and provide such staff with more appropriate on-the-job
training so that the Company will have a pipeline of female senior
management and potential successors to the Board in the near
future.
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BOARD INDEPENDENCE EVALUATION

The Company has established a Board Independence Evaluation
Mechanism which sets out the processes and procedures to
ensure a strong independent element on the Board, which allows
the Board effectively exercises independent judgment to better
safeguard Shareholders’ interests.

The objectives of the evaluation are to improve Board
effectiveness, maximise strengths, and identify the areas that
need improvement or further development. The evaluation process
also clarifies what actions of the Company need to be taken
to maintain and improve the Board performance, for instance,
addressing individual training and development needs of each
Director.

Pursuant to the Board Independence Evaluation Mechanism, the
Board will conduct annual review on its independence. The Board
Independence Evaluation Report will be presented to the Board
which will collectively discuss the results and the action plan for
improvement, if appropriate.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Board reviewed the
implementation and effectiveness of the Board Independence
Evaluation Mechanism and the results were satisfactory.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in April 2001 and currently
comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
CHIU Kung Chik (chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. CHAN
Kin Sang and Mr. LI Gaofeng. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee was revised on 30 December 2015 and are aligned
with the provisions set out in the CG Code. The main duties of the
Audit Committee are as follows:
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

RELATIONSHIP WITH THE COMPANY'S
AUDITOR

(a)

to be primarily responsible for making recommendation to
the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal
of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any
questions of its resignation or dismissal;

to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards. The Audit Committee
should discuss with the auditor the nature and scope of the
audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

to develop and implement policy on engaging of an external
auditor to supply non-audit services. For this purpose,
“external auditor” includes any entity that is under common
control, ownership or management with the audit firm or any
entity that a reasonable and informed third party knowing
all relevant information would reasonably conclude to be
part of the audit firm nationally or internationally. The Audit
Committee should report to the Board, identifying and
making recommendations on any matters where action or
improvement is needed;
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REVIEW OF THE COMPANY'S FINANCIAL
INFORMATION

(d) to monitor the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements and annual report and accounts, half-year report
and, if prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and to
review significant financial reporting judgments contained in
them. In reviewing these reports before submission to the
Board, the Audit Committee should focus particularly on:

() any changes in accounting policies and practices;
(i)~ major judgmental areas;
(i)~ significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

(iv)  the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

(v) compliance with accounting standards; and

(vij compliance with the Listing Rules and legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting;

(e) regarding (d) above:

()  members of the Audit Committee should liaise with
the Board and senior management and the Audit
Committee must meet, at least twice a year, with the
Company’s auditor; and

(i) the Audit Committee should consider any significant
or unusual items that are, or may need to be, reflected
in the reports and accounts, it should give due
consideration to any matters that have been raised by
the Company’s staff responsible for the accounting
and financial reporting function, compliance officer or
auditor;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

OVERSIGHT OF THE COMPANY'S FINANCIAL
REPORTING SYSTEM, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

(f)

to review the Company’s financial controls, and unless
expressly addressed by a separate Board’s risk committee,
or by the Board itself, to review the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems;

to discuss the risk management and internal control
systems with management to ensure that management has
performed its duty to have effective systems. This discussion
should include the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function;

to consider major investigation findings on risk management
and internal control matters as delegated by the Board or
on its own initiative and management’s response to these
findings;

where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-
ordination between the internal and external auditors, and
to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately
resourced and has appropriate standing within the Company,
and to review and monitor its effectiveness;

to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

to review the external auditor’s management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management about
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control
and management’s response;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’s management letter;
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to review arrangements employees of the Company can use,
in confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters. The
Audit Committee should ensure that proper arrangements
are in place for fair and independent investigation of these
matters and for appropriate follow-up action;

to act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company'’s relations with the external auditor;

to report to the Board on the matters set out above; and

to consider other matters, as defined or assigned by the
Board from time to time.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Audit Committee held
three meetings to consider and approve, inter alia, the following

matters:

(@)

to review the half-year and annual financial statements
before submission to the Board, with a focus on compliance
with accounting standards, the Listing Rules and other
requirements in relation to financial reporting of the Audit
Committee;

to review and discuss the effectiveness of the internal
controls system throughout the Group, including financial,
operational and compliance controls, and risk management;

to review the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group and other financial reporting matters;

to review the effectiveness of the terms of reference of the
Audit Committee;

to discuss with the auditor on the annual audit scope; and
to recommended to the Board the re-appointment of BDO

as the auditor of the Group, discuss its independence and
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of BDO.

The Board considered that the risk management and internal

control systems of Company for the year ended 31 March 2023

were effective and adequate.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee was established in April 2017 with
written terms of reference that specifies its authorities and duties.
The working rules of the Executive Committee were revised on
14 April 2023.
the relevant department heads of the Company and is chaired by

It currently comprises all executive Directors and

the Chairman of the Board. The Executive Committee is primarily
responsible for supervising the day-to-day operation of the Group,
implementing business strategies made by the Board and making
investment decisions within its authorities, etc. The Executive
Committee meets as and when necessary.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the following corporate
governance duties:

()  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

(i)  to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(iiiy  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors;
and

(v) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Board has duly
discharged the above-mentioned duties.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the auditor’s remuneration
paid or payable by the Group to BDO in respect of the audit and
other non-audit services were as follows:

B BB B &

HE-_Z_=F=RA=+—HILEE K
SERZBEREMIIEZBERE S sk
R EES 2 ZEMen T :

HK$

BT

Audit services ZH AR 980,000
Non-audit services IEZERTE

— other professional services —H M E R 270,000

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The reporting responsibilities of BDO to the Shareholders are set
out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 148 to 154 of
this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the financial statements for the financial year ended
31 March 2023 and ensuring that such financial statements give
a true and fair view of the affairs of the Group and of the Group’s
results and cash flow and in compliance with the relevant laws
and disclosure provisions of the Listing Rules. In preparing the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
20283, the Directors have selected appropriate accounting policies
and applied them consistently; made prudent and reasonable
judgments and estimates; and have prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. LI Ching Yi (“Ms. Li"), a senior manager of listing corporate
services department of Trident Corporate Services (Asia) Limited,
resigned as the company secretary of the Company on 29 July
2022. On the same day, Ms. LAM Wing Chi (“Ms. Lam”), a
senior manager of Corporate Services Division of Tricor Services
Limited, was appointed as the company secretary of the
Company. Ms. Lam worked and communicated closely with the
Board of the Company. Mr. LIU Haoyuan, non-executive director
of the Company, is the primary contact person of Ms. Lam at
the Company. For the year ended 31 March 2023, Ms. Lam has
undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Board gives high priority to balanced, clear and transparent
communications which allow Shareholders and investors to
understand the Group’s prospects and the market environment in
which it operates. The Company communicates with Shareholders
and investors in different ways to ensure that their views and
concerns are understood and addressed in a constructive way.

In March 2012, the Board has established a Shareholders
communication policy and a Shareholders’ guide is in place to
ensure that Shareholders are provided with ready, equal and
timely access to balanced and understandable information about
the Group. The policy is uploaded on the Company’s website
and has been regularly reviewed during the year to ensure its
effectiveness.

The Company’s website has become the primary platform of
communication between the Company and the Shareholders.
The investor relations section of the website is kept under regular
review by the Company to ensure that information related to
Shareholders is disseminated in an accurate and timely manner.
During the year, the Company convened one annual general
meeting and three extraordinary general meetings. One of the
extraordinary general meetings was convened on the written
requisition of Shareholders. Members of the Board and Board
committees also attended the general meetings of the Company
to answer relevant questions raised at the meetings. Separate
resolutions will be proposed at general meetings for any significant
separate issues.
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The particulars of Shareholders’ rights relating to, inter alia,
putting forward proposals at Shareholders’ meetings, convening
of extraordinary general meetings and making enquiries to the

Group are as follows:

PROPOSING A CANDIDATE FOR ELECTION AS
A DIRECTOR AT THE GENERAL MEETINGS OF
THE COMPANY

Pursuant to Article 120 of the Articles of Association, no person,
other than a retiring Director, shall, unless recommended by the
Board for election, be eligible for election to the office of Director
at any general meeting, unless notice in writing of the intention
to propose that person for election as a Director, signed by a
Shareholder (other than the person to be proposed for election
as a Director) duly qualified to attend and vote at the meeting
for which such notice is given, and a notice in writing signed
by that person of his willingness to be elected shall have been
lodged at the registration office. The minimum length of the period
during which such notices are given shall be at least seven days,
commencing no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and
ending no later than seven days prior to the date of such general
meeting.

To include a resolution relating to other matters in a general
meeting, Shareholders are requested to follow the requirements
and procedures as set out in section 615 of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong). The relevant
Shareholders’ Guide has also been published on the Company’s
website.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

CONVENING OF EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING OF THE COMPANY

Pursuant to Article 72 of the Articles of Association, the Board
may, whenever it thinks fit, convene an extraordinary general
meeting. General meetings shall also be convened on the
written requisition of any two or more members of the Company
deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or,
in the event the Company ceases to have such a principal office,
the registered office specifying the objects of the meeting and
signed by the requisitionists, provided that such requisitionists
held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company. General meetings
may also be convened on the written requisition of any one
member of the Company which is a recognised clearing house
(or its nominee) deposited at the principal office of the Company
in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such
a principal office, the registered office specifying the objects of
the meeting and signed by the requisitionist, provided that such
requisitionist held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which
carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit
of the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting, the
requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them representing more than
one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may convene the
general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that
in which meetings may be convened by the Board provided that
any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of
three months from the date of deposit of the requisition, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the
Company.
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ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

The Board is grateful to Shareholders and other stakeholders for
their views, and welcomes their questions and concerns raised in
relation to the management and governance of the Group.

Shareholders and other stakeholders may at any time send their
enquiries and concerns to the Board by post to the Company
at Units No. 4102-06, 41/F, COSCO Tower, 183 Queen’s Road
Hong Kong or by email to info@290.com.hk for the
attention of the Company Secretary.

Central,

DIVIDEND PoOLICY

A dividend policy was adopted by the Company in November
2018 (the “Dividend Policy”) which sets out the guideline for
distribution of dividends to the Shareholders. The Dividend Policy
aims to strike a balance between the Shareholders’ interests and
the Company’s capital requirement for business operation and
development needs. The recommendation of the payment of any
dividend is subject to the absolute discretion of the Board, and
any declaration of final dividend will be subject to the approval by
the Shareholders at the annual general meeting.

In proposing any dividend payout, the Board will take into
account, inter alia, the Group’s financial results and liquidity,
its business strategies and development plans, as well as other
factors that the Board may consider appropriate.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy from time to time and
may exercise its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend
and/or modify the Dividend Policy at any time as it deems fit and
necessary.

INVESTOR RELATIONS
CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association (in
both English and Chinese) is available on both the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange. During the year ended 31
March 2023, there is no change to the Company’s Memorandum
and Articles of Association.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Company has an internal audit function. Board acknowledges
its responsibility for establishing and maintaining sound and
effective risk management and internal control systems, and
for determining the nature and extent of risk it is willing to
take in pursuing business objectives of the Group. Yet, such
risk management and internal control systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Company has a risk management policy in place to formalize
the procedures in identifying, evaluating and monitoring the
risks which may be encountered by the Group in the course of
business. By tackling the risks in a systematic way, the Board
believes that the same can be minimized or under control at a
reasonable level.

The process used to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks are as follows:

1. each business unit/department identifies the risks that
encountered or may be encountered by them in the course
of business/operation;

2. business units/departments compile a list of risks which
contains the following information for every single risk
identified by them:

(c) measures taken;

(a) risk classification; (b) contents
of risk;

recommendations to deal with such risk, and email this list

(d) risk ranking; and (e)

to the Executive Committee and the Compliance and Risk
Management Department (the “CRM Department”) for
review and assessment;

3. the Executive Committee and the CRM Department discuss,
assess and determine whether further action is required to
be taken against the identified risks or whether such risks
should be reported to the Board;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
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4.  if reporting to the Board is required, the Company Secretary
will send the materials to the Board for discussion and
revert the Board’s decision to the relevant business unit/
department for action/follow up.

Besides, internal control measures and/or procedures have also
been designed and implemented for safeguarding the Group’s
assets against unauthorized use or disposal, maintaining proper
accounting records, and monitoring the compliance with the

applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The Company has a CRM Department to monitor the overall risk
management and compliance issues of the Group on an on-going
risk management and
internal control issues of the Group will be prepared by the CRM

basis. Quarterly reports on compliance,

Department and tabled before the regular Audit Committee and
Board meetings for review and discussion. The Company also
approved the establishment of the Investment Decision and Risk
Management Committee on 28 April 2023 and the adoption of
the Measures and Procedures for Investment Decision and Risk
Management. The Investment Decision and Risk Management
Committee is specifically responsible for investment decision-
making and risk management matters under the guidance of
the Executive Committee. The Investment Decision and Risk
Management Committee meets regularly or when necessary to
consider matters relating to risk management and make decisions.
Modifications and improvements on the existing risk management
and internal control policies will be carried out from time to time
as required.

GoFintech Innovation Limited
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

The Company carries out reviews of its risk management and internal
control systems, having regard to specific corporate and fundraising
exercises that have taken place and the applicable regulatory and
independence requirements, on a regular basis, and does so with the
assistance of independent internal control advisors which conduct
reviews of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group or specific business segments of
the Group on an annual basis. Neither the Company’s reviews nor
the reviews conducted by the independent control advisors have
revealed systemic deficiencies of medium risk or above. The results
of the review were submitted by the independent professional firm to
the Audit Committee for their consideration. The Board, based on the
review of the Audit Committee, considered that the Group’s internal
control system was effective.

The Audit Committee also considers the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s accounting
and financial reporting function, as well as their training
programmes and budgets.

A review for the risk management and internal control system
of the business of securities brokerage and margin financing
is conducting as at the date of this report and the scope of
review includes operation and compliance manual, underwriting
placement procedure, securities margin financing control for the
company, etc. No material issue for the risk management and
internal control system of the business of securities brokerage

and margin financing is identified as at the date of this report.

Hence, the Board considers that the existing risk management
and internal control systems of the Group are effective and
adequate to meet its needs in its current business environment.

INSIDE INFORMATION DISCLOSURE POLICY

To ensure timely, fair, accurate and complete disclosure of inside
information and for compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations, an updated policy on handling the inside information has
been approved by the Board in August 2017, pursuant to which, the
Company has taken a series of procedures to identify and preserve
the confidentiality of the price sensitive information and to disclose
the same to the public in a timely manner, if required. All staff are
also required to observe the code of ethical standards stated in Staff
Handbook to keep non-public information confidential.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Company continues to pursue a proactive policy of promoting
investor relations and communication by maintaining regular
meetings with institutional Shareholders, fund managers and
analysts through different means including meetings, presentations
and correspondence. In an effort to enhance communications with
the Shareholders and investors, the Company maintains a website
(www.290.com.hk) to disseminate information relating to the latest
business developments and all corporate announcements.

The AGM is a valuable forum for the Board to communicate
directly with the Shareholders. An AGM circular was distributed
to all Shareholders at least 20 clear business days prior to the
2022 AGM, setting out the details of each proposed resolution
and other relevant information. Separate resolutions are proposed
at the general meetings of the Company on each substantially
separate issue, including the election of individual Directors.
Shareholders have the opportunity to participate and vote in
general meetings and are informed of the rules and voting
procedures that govern the general meeting.

The 2022 AGM of the Company was held at Units No. 4102-06,
41/F, COSCO Tower, 183 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong. The
Chairman and the chairmen of Board committees, accompanied
by other Directors, attended the 2022 AGM. All Directors of the
Board (except Mr. WU Ling) attended the 2022 AGM. The external
auditor of the Company, BDO limited, also attended the 2022
AGM to answer questions raised by the Shareholders.

Having considered the various existing channels of communication
and the feedbacks from the Shareholders, investors and analysts,
the Board considers that the Shareholders’ communication policy
has been properly implemented and effective during the year
ended 31 March 2023.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

OVERVIEW

GoFintech Innovation Limited (“GoFintech” or the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries collectively referred to as the
“Group”) is pleased to present its Environmental, Social and
Governance Report (the “ESG Report”), which summarised
the environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) initiatives
and accomplishments for the year ended 31 March 2023 (the

“Reporting Year” or “2023").

Founded in 2002, GoFintech is an investment holding company
and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in securities and
insurance brokerage, equity investment and provision of asset
management, corporate finance, margin financing and money
lending services. The Group’s operations are located primarily in
Hong Kong with offices in Mainland China.

ESG investing has been moving mainstream as climate-related
risks reshape the principles of investment decisions. As a
significant player in China’s financial market, GoFintech has been
vigilant on those trends and the impacts that may assert on its
business.

BOARD STATEMENT

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) is pleased
to present the ESG Report of the Group, which reviews the
Group’s ESG initiatives, plans, performance, as well as its
sustainable development in respect of environmental protection,
labour practices, business operations, supply chain management
and other ESG issues for the Reporting Year. As a responsible
corporate, the Group views ESG commitment as part of
its responsibilities and is committed to incorporating ESG

considerations into its decision making process.

R HE8REREKE

ME

HEaHARAR ((BERIFH] sk [FL
Al -ERAMBLAGIGEAKE])MR
ﬁiiﬁlﬁﬁiﬁﬁiﬁ&ﬁi‘*i&i(U“!iﬁ~$:l:
RERBHRE]) EFHEEz_T ==
i—ﬂ—-f——Elu:iT(Mﬁiﬁ’*ﬂir“J
FIZBZ=ZFENRRE e k&R
([RE -HERER])HEHBLKEL -

HZEIFENR ST _F BREER
NE ENBRAREZEREBZTFRRRL
woORERE URRBEEEE X%
BE FEREBEMMERB AEENE
BEBURES UHRPEANBRENS
E‘io

FEEERIEEENRERINFEREREDN
RAIIRIB g RER/RRECK BTN
ERPHEERMSMNEZ2EE HEE
FT—BEHZEBEARAIREEERE
BRE R EBRFEG -

EEEEH

ARAMEZE([ESEMARERSE
BHRE HehEamE ZREER
AEERABREFEERERE STE
MEBEE HEREENMEMERE.
HEekERFEETENRRE HENEAR
B F 8 RERABEER -ER—
ABEEELE AEEHFRE HERE
AAERAEEEN —#o XEONE
RE e ke fHAEERRMAARLR

HEERIMARA
:g_:iiiﬁ

101



102

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

R HEREREKE (A)

THE ESG GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

Regarding the corporate governance, the Group has applied a
top-down approach to manage the Group’s ESG-related issues.
The Board has the overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG
strategies and reporting, as well as overseeing and managing
its ESG-related issues, in achieving green operations for
sustainable development. The Board reviews and confirms the
Group’s ESG-related risks and opportunities, performance,
goals and targets, progress made against ESG-related goals and
targets, management approaches, strategies, priorities of the
Group’s material ESG-related issues, and policies annually with
the assistance of the Group’s designated personnel from the
business and functional departments. With the assistance of ESG
professionals, the Board is equipped with the skills, experience
and knowledge needed for overseeing the ESG strategy of the
Group. The Board also ensures the effectiveness of ESG risk
management and internal control mechanism.

The Group’s designated personnel from the business and
functional departments facilitate the Board’s oversight of ESG-
related issues. They are responsible for overseeing and reviewing
the Group’s ESG-related policies and performance; monitoring
and managing ESG-related risks and opportunities, and the
effectiveness of the ESG management systems; and identifying
and prioritising the Group’s ESG-related issues. They also
propose and recommend to the Board on the Group’s ESG-
related strategies, priorities, goals and targets, and report the
relevant ESG-related matters to the Board annually.

REPORTING SCOPE

The senior management of the Group discusses and identifies
the reporting scope based on the materiality principle and by
considering the core business and main revenue source. This
ESG Report covers all the Group’s business operations, including
subsidiaries in Hong Kong and Mainland China. The Group’s
business segments include securities brokerage and margin
financing, corporate finance, money lending, consultancy and
insurance brokerage, and asset management, covering all of the
Group’s revenue for the Reporting Year. The reporting scope of
this ESG Report is consistent with the reporting scope of ESG
report of the year ended 31 March 2022 (“2022").

GoFintech Innovation Limited
Annual Report 2023
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

The content including data in preparing this ESG Report is
primarily based on the internal policies and documents as well as
information provided by various key stakeholders.

REPORTING FRAMEWORK

This ESG Report serves to provide details of the Group’s ESG
policies and practices of its business in Hong Kong and Mainland
China, which has been prepared and compiled in accordance with
the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the
“ESG Reporting Guide”) set out in the Appendix 27 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rule”) on Main
Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

Information relating to the Group’s corporate governance
practices is set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” of this
annual report.

During preparation of this ESG Report, the Group has applied the
following reporting principles of the ESG Reporting Guide.

Materiality: Materiality assessment was conducted to identify and
prioritise material ESG issues during the Reporting Year, thereby
adopting the confirmed material ESG issues as the focus for the
preparation of this ESG Report. The materiality of ESG issues was
reviewed and confirmed by the Board and senior management
of the Group. Please refer to the section headed “Stakeholders
Engagement” and “Materiality Assessment” for further details.

Quantitative: The standards and methodologies used in the
calculation of relevant data in this ESG Report, as well as the
applicable assumptions were disclosed. The key performance
indicators (“KPIs”) are supplemented by explanatory notes to
establish benchmarks where feasible.

Consistency: The preparation approach of this ESG Report was
substantially consistent with the ESG report of previous year and
explanations were provided regarding data with changes in the
scope of disclosure and calculation methodologies.

This ESG Report has undergone the internal review process of the
Group’s management and has been approved by the Board.
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ESG PRACTICE
THE GROUP’S APPROACH

GoFintech started the ESG journey from its own operations to
ensure full compliance with all applicable laws and regulations,
and aim at becoming a leading player in the sector. During the
Reporting Year, the Group’s Chief Executive Officer (‘CEOQ”) and
Financial Controller (“FC”) continued to take lead in exploring ESG
practices. The Group made commitments in two areas:

1)  Continue green operations within GoFintech

2)  Anticipate and address the Group’s stakeholders’ concerns

In addition, the Group understands that climate change is posing
imminent impacts on the environment and the communities
in which the Group operates.
change, enhance decarbonisation and respond to the Group’s
stakeholders’ concerns, the Group has set targets related to
greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions, waste management and

In order to mitigate climate

energy consumption. The targets were approved by the Board
and the progress towards these targets will be reviewed by the
management, the result of the review is reported to the Board
annually. The Group will continue to work on environmental
protection and minimising its carbon footprint in order to achieve
long-term sustainability of the environment and community
where it operates. Details of the targets are mentioned in the
“Waste
under aspect

sections headed “GHG Emissions and Air Emissions”,
Management” and “Energy Consumption”

“Environment”.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

Stakeholders Engagement

Stakeholders are interest groups who are involved in the
Group’s business and have significant impact on the Group’s
success. GoFintech applied the following principles to assess its
stakeholders and their importance during the Reporting Year:

o Impact on the viability of the Group’s business model

° Impact on the efficiency and reputation of the Group

° Impact on the direction and quality of the Group’s decision-
making

Having two decades’ development, the Group appreciates the
importance of effective communication with external and internal
parties. The Group has built channels in its daily operation to
understand views and expectations of its stakeholders, who are
customers, employees, shareholders, government and regulatory
authorities, suppliers and the community.
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REBE #HERES

Despite travel bans and social distance measures, the Group
managed to keep the same level of communications frequency
through online means including video and audio tools during this
Reporting Year. The table below provides highlights of stakeholder
engagement activities:

AWE (F)

B b
[Tm%
HIHEE -

BEEEMKTES REREBRERD
RT'ﬁﬁlmmWWEﬁﬁ%igﬁ

CeERERMkEETE #5H
BE-TRIHFNELEED

Stakeholders Communication Channels Expectations Management Responses
B & BERE e EEEORE
Customers e Customer service hotline o Integrity o Ensuring contractual obligations
®F and email o High quality services are in place for protection of
o Company website o Complaint handling customers’ benefits and rights
¢ EFPRBAGLEH mechanism »  Collecting customers’ opinion
NS D o HIfE from various channels in
o EERE order to improve customer
o BRFERIEBHS satisfaction
e  HERHTANEL UREER
ST 2
e  NEBRBUEEPER N
RITEFPRER
Employees e Trainings and workshops o Humanity and labour rights e Paying attention to
EE o Performance evaluation or o Occupational health and occupational health and safety,

appraisal
o Internal announcement
. 23 R THES
o BEETEHER

. W_LB/\H:
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safety
o Career development
o Equal opportunity

o ANERBIH#R
o BERERLZ
o  EXUE

LT

creating a comfortable working
environment

o Encouraging employees to
participate in continuous
education and professional
trainings to enhance
competency

o Holding team building function
to increase workplace
collaboration

J Setting up contractual
obligations to protect labour
rights

o IEBERERZE
BN ITIERE

e BEESZERBEEEREXR
ISR Tt 8E

o  BHERERTHUMEELE
EENRE

o HFTARNEERRSIRZ

Bk
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Stakeholders Communication Channels Expectations Management Responses
BHE BERE i) EEEORE
Shareholders o Annual general meeting and Financial performance ° Ensuring efficient
B®R other shareholder meetings ~ ® Information transparency communications and
o Financial reports o Operating risks information disclosure through
o Announcements and management shareholder’s meetings,
circulars o Corporate sustainability annual reports and regular
o REBFARSREMEBR o HHEERR announcements published on
N o  [FEEBE official websites
o HBRE o 2ZERREE e  BBRRRERE FERERE
o RERBH o REURBER EABUEHTENRE
REWERBREERE
Government o Routine reports o Compliance with laws and o Upholding integrity and
and Regulatory o Written or electronic regulations operating business in
Authorities correspondences o Fulfilling tax obligations compliance with law and
BN REE#RE o BITHRE o Cooperation for mutual regulations
o  EAYETESE benefits o Paying tax on time in return
o BETEBERER contributing to the society
o RBIIBKELE o RREACGKRNEERBDET
o  AEENEELA ERRER
o ERAFARELE
Suppliers o Business cooperation o Fair and open selection ° Ensuring contractual obligations
HEn o  HEEAE e Supply chain management are in place to protect mutual
o RERARMEE benefit
o  {HERER o Performing supplier selection
with due care to ensure fair and
open procurement
o  HERHTANEL RERE
M &
o BREFEMAED BRRED
SN
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Sustainable Business Focus

Materiality assessment is a process of identifying and assessing
the ESG issues that are important to the Group’s business and its
stakeholder. With the assistance of the Group’s management and
the designated personnel, a list of material ESG issues has been
identified.

Materiality Assessment

Factors such as business strategic objectives and policies,
industrial standards, legal and regulatory responsibilities have
been taken into consideration for identifying the Group’s material
ESG issues, covering environmental protection, climate change,
operating practices, employment and labour practices.
To prioritise the identified material ESG issues, the Group
conducted a materiality assessment survey during the Reporting
Year. Management and employees of different business units
and departments were invited to evaluate the significance of
the identified ESG issues to the Group’s stakeholders and
its businesses. Based on the results of the survey, the Group

compiled the materiality matrix.

The results of the materiality assessment were reviewed by the
Group’s management, and approved by the Board. The materiality
matrix below mapped out the identified material ESG issues
and their respective level of importance on their influence on
stakeholders and significance on the sustainable development of
the Group. Those material ESG issues reflected are compared
against GoFintech’s own strategic and operational focus to
produce a series of aligned priorities.

GoFintech Innovation Limited
Annual Report 2023

AREXRBER

BEEUHFERFNNETEEAEEBER
REFSNELSEZHMNRE HLEREA
FENARE EAEEERERIEEAER
MBI T AEBEHENE —RINEKRER
B e kERER-

EEMFMA

XBRBEBRRERR TERE XER
EERASAREMNAREERNRE
i?&ﬁiﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬂ%)\%ﬁ%*'ﬁ%
RERE REEL 2EFH BEK
BTEM-

REETERRE HEREAEENERL
R AEBERAREFEETER N
AHERAE AREBEM RPN EEE
RETEBFGEEBINRE tEkE

AEEHRNERASEXTNERE-
REBRSHER AEECRUEEZEIER -

BEENHFTANEREEASEERERESR
B -UEEESHE- U TEZHERET
HEHIHERRE HLERERZEER
HEBHEOHENTE URHAEET
BEZRNEZEE -FIRBAENIRE -

HEekErzECEENEZEFEHZHR

AL EEEHETLER EMEBERELE —XK
FIEEMEBLEEH-



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

High Materiality Matrix

= HEMER

BEIRHAE \
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LEVEL OF INFLUENCE ON STAKEHOLDERS ASSESSMENTS AND DECISIONS
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Energy Consumption Protection
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{i§ HAEEAFERRNOZEIRE =
Based on the result of materiality assessment, GoFintech HREZFEEUTHHNER BSaIFNAE

identified five major sustainable business development priorities
among all material ESG issues, which are shown as below:

° Product Responsibility

o Customer Privacy Protection

o Customer Services

° Anti-corruption

° Employees’ Development and Training

During the Reporting Year, the Group confirmed that it has
established appropriate and effective management policies and
internal control systems for ESG issues and confirmed that

the information disclosed in the ESG Report complies with the
“comply or explain” provisions of the ESG Reporting Guide.
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SUSTAINABLE BUSINESS OPERATIONS

As a financial institution, GoFintech provides services to a wide
range of corporate and private clients who trust it to bring
financial solutions and grow their assets and wealth. The Group
is committed to the quality of its products and customer services
throughout its operations.

Upholding high standards towards the Group’s products and
customer services, Fortune (HK) Securities Limited, a subsidiary
of the Group was awarded the Best Securities Firm in fund
investment in the iIFAST Wealth Advisers Awards (IWAA) 2023.
The award aims to recognise wealth advisory companies and
noteworthy individual advisers for demonstrating excellence
in sales, client service and exemplary business practices in
the wealth management industry over the year. The Group will
continue to provide high-quality products and customer services
to its customers.

The Group abides by a number of laws and regulations including
but not limited to the Listing Rule, Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO”) of Hong Kong, Companies Ordinance of Hong
Kong, Trade Descriptions Ordinance and Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance of Hong Kong. The Group has also developed a
series of internal policies and procedures with regular updates to
ensure strict compliance. During the Reporting Year, the Group
was not aware of any material non-compliance with relevant laws
and regulations in relation to product responsibility and product
quality, including health and safety, advertising, labelling and
privacy matters relating to its products and services provided,
such laws and regulations include but are not limited to the
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance of Hong Kong, the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Protection of Consumer Rights
and Interests, the Product Quality Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China, and the
Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of China.
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PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

Product quality starts with product safety, which is at the core
of the Group’s commitment to all clients. The Group has placed
great importance on due diligence and risk monitoring processes
in product planning and on-going management. Product reliability
is the next layer of quality assurance initiative. It is conducted by a
set of check and balance processes amongst various professional
teams. As the health and safety risks involved in the Group’s
services are not material, the Group is not applicable to disclose
the product recall procedure or the percentage of total products
sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and health reasons.
At operation level, senior officers are assigned to supervise the
daily operation to ensure compliance with the Group’s internal
policies and risk control management requirements. If the Group
is aware of any fraudulent or non-compliance cases including but
not limited to fraudulent GoFintech corporate website, mobile
apps and WeChat group that could lead to fraud or any loss
of the Group’s customers, the Group will report immediately to
the Hong Kong Police and police authorities in Mainland China,
and file a brief with relevant regulators if feasible. Meanwhile,
the Group will make public announcement through external
engagement channels exposing such fraudulent acts in order to
protect its reputation and the interest of customers.

CUSTOMER SERVICES

GoFintech aspires to provide the best customer experience
as it can in product variety, product quality and customer
communications. The Group believes in providing quality advice
and insights to customers and has established a dedicated team
of professionals with diverse experience and in-depth knowledge
of its services. They offer valuable counsel to customers across
the Group’s major service offerings.

The Group’s customer service quality assurance measure is
guided by the principle of transparency. The role of quality
reviewers has been established many years ago with the
designated duty of overseeing the process of customer service,
including assessing service quality through telephone tapes on
sample check basis.
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In addition, the Group actively seeks customer feedback on a
regular basis and closes gaps where possible, as it believes
feedback is a valuable mechanism for building a stronger
customer-oriented corporate culture. Complaints Handling
Procedure is one of the internal policies, providing detailed
processes to follow when dealing with customers’ complaints. A
variety of customer communication channels were set up, such
as telephone hotline and dedicated email address. Both are made
prominently on the client statements to ensure customers are
aware of those channels for their opinions. Once a complaint has
been received, the Group will investigate the received complaint
competently, diligently and impartially, and also offer appropriate
redress or remedial action accordingly. During the complaint
investigation, the client will be kept informed of the investigation
progress as appropriate. During the Reporting Year, the Group
have not received any material complaints (2022: 1 complaint).
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CUSTOMER PRIVACY PROTECTION AND
CYBER SECURITY

Customer’s data privacy is handled with utmost care at GoFintech
and is the most important commitment the Group has made to its
clients. The Group had developed Privacy Policy to comply with
the applicable data protection laws and regulations, including but
not limited to Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance of Hong Kong. It
also ensures that appropriate technical measures are put in place
to protect the personal data against any unauthorised use or
access.

The Group has established a system whereby all data is
categorised, while authorisation on usage, filing, editing and
access are clearly defined. In principle, staff only access client
personal data on a need-to-know basis when opening and
maintaining client’s account. The head of legal department is also
the Group’s Information Security Officer with the responsibility to
ensure the relevance and the enforcement of the Privacy Policy.

During the pandemic, extra network security measures were taken
when some of the Group’s employees had to work from home. It
covered remote access policy and procedures upgrade, intrusion
detection systems and monitoring, virus and malware protection,
vulnerability management, incident response planning, and patch
management.

During the Reporting Year, the Group was not aware of any
received complaints in relation to breaches of customer privacy,
losses or misuse of client’s data. The Group will review its data
protection measures regularly to ensure its effectiveness.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS AND
RESPONSIBLE MARKETING

GoFintech treasures the trust that its clients put into its advice
and service, and the Group has never taken it for granted. The
Group appreciates that ample competition helps improve the
quality of product and service and benefits customers at large.
Therefore, the Group advocates for fair competition and follows
best practice in product and service marketing activities.

RiR HEeRkER/EE (&)

EFREBERERFZZE

BEAFUAZREENTARETEFPEHR
B WHAREHEPFEHNRER A
e NEED Y MLBBERAE T E R
ENERERIER BRETRR (B
AEAER (ALE) RH) - HIRRERE §
TEENRMERREBAERR2RE
] JEA {0 A S AR

AEBCRIAHMBEEMETDEN
g RAEAEEREMA FE ®mER
AEHEERS R L BTHEITRAR
REEFPKRPE EZASHAFTENEN
BAABER ERBFANBEANTRAEE
MEMZEE BRERLERRNEY
PR BT o

TERERDEBEINBELEER ZF5E
MR EER S RBERMEFTT R ARR
RMERLEE RELEERGDE R
AEE BINEHEIUREREAETRE
RABREFE AKELREXDWIE
MEBRILEFPLE BEXIERETFLE
FHE) 3R o A B E B A E BUR R #
HiEARERE B -

A EERBETEH

BEAFCREFPHASEMNEZRE LR
BOEE RABERSEMEAR K&
EERIRIBRZEINESER LR
BEE UMSEBEBEPXa A&
SEREQAFHF YHEERNMREEH
AB T BEREED-

B Al AR A A
—E-=FEH

113



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

R -#HekER/%E (&)

The Group respects the intellectual property rights and strives to
protect intellectual property rights of its own and third parties. All
software installed by the Group are purchased through legitimate
sources. During the Reporting Year, the Group was not aware of
any infringement of intellectual property case.

As a company providing financial services, the Group does not
consider advertising and labeling as a material ESG issues for
it. In the Group’s dealings with its clients, information provided
should be complete, true, accurate, clear, and comply with all
relevant laws and regulations regarding the proper advertising,
including but not limited to Trade Descriptions Ordinance of Hong
Kong.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

As a financial service provider, the Group’s suppliers are mainly
general office supplies providers. In order to provide a fair
assessment of suppliers’ selection, the Group has adopted
relevant policies and evaluated needed services based on
a combination of capability, efficiency, competitiveness and
reputation of the suppliers before entering into the contractual
agreements. If any inconsistency is found between the Group’s
requirements and their act, the Group will suspend the
cooperation until improvement is made.

During the Reporting Year, the Group has engaged a total of 14
major suppliers (2022: 9), all of which have gone through the
aforementioned procurement practices of the Group.

The number of major suppliers by geographical region is as
follows.
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In view of green supply chain management, the Group strives
to engage suppliers who incorporate the consideration
of environmental and social risks into their supply chain
management. The Group periodically evaluates and monitors
the performance of its suppliers to ensure their compliance with
laws and regulations relating to environmental and social policies,
service standards, contract conditions and quality provisions. The
Group also ensures all suppliers have targets in line with its value
in lowering GHG emissions. Any non-compliance with relevant
environmental and social laws and regulations discovered by the
designated personnel from the Group will be promptly reported
to the management. Corrective action plan will be carried out
to remediate the identified risk in a timely manner. The supplier
who continuously fails to meet the Group’s requirement could be
subject to termination of supplier contract.

The Group attaches importance to the environmental impacts of
the purchased goods and services. More environmentally friendly
products or services should be procured by the Group when it
is feasible, to minimise negative impacts on the environment and
human health, and conserve natural resources. The Group also
maintains close communication with its suppliers and service
providers to share the latest knowledge on product quality, as
well as good labour and environmental practices. The Group
will provide the necessary guidance to its suppliers and service
providers on how to implement good environmental and social
practices throughout the supply chain engagement process.

The Group will review the above measures regularly to ensure its
effectiveness.
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BUSINESS ETHICS AND PRACTICE

The Group advocates an operating environment of fairness and
a corporate culture of integrity and honesty. Employees, senior
management and directors are guided with the Group’s principles
of business ethics and integrity.

ANTI/-CORRUPTION AND FRAUD

GoFintech has zero tolerance towards any form of corruption,
bribery, forgery, extortion, conspiracy, embezzlement and
collusion. Anti-corruption policies and procedures are crystalised
in both Code of Conduct and Employee Handbook to drive both
mind-set and behavior change. Head of Compliance and Risk
Management Department leads all related work streams from
policy setting to enforcement.

All employees are required to act in full compliance with all anti-
corruption related internal policies, laws and regulations, including
but not limited to Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of Hong Kong
and the Company Law and Criminal Law of the People’s Republic
of China. Anti-corruption training is mandatory for all employees
including the directors. The Group is promised to provide internal
and external anti-corruption and corporate governance training
and related training materials for its employees and directors
annually. During the Reporting Year, the Group has provided anti-
corruption training materials for its director and employee for their
self-study.

The Group’s operation policy requires:

1. No confidential commercial information of the Group shall
be disclosed, discussed and shared with third parties for
personal interest.

2. All employees are prohibited to give and accept personal,
commercial, regulatory or contractual advantage, by using
the excuse of work or the authority granted from the Group.

3. If any misconducts are found and proven, the Group will
apply disciplinary actions in accordance with set policies.

GoFintech Innovation Limited
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AML AND CTF

GoFintech has taken AML and CTF as one of the most imperative
compliance requirements, and established AML and CTF Policy
and Prevention of Bribery and Conflict of Interest Handling
Guideline with regular updates to ensure that all business
operations comply with relevant laws and regulations. The Group
also formulated relevant policies and measures including customer
acceptance policies, customer due diligence process, ongoing
monitoring, and customer and transaction record keeping to
prevent any breaches throughout the transaction.

The Group also regularly conducts internal training relating to
AML procedure and CTF recent updates on relevant regulation
and other topics related to licensed regulated activities. The
compliance training provided up-to-date information regarding
to AML and CTF, including but not limited to the regulatory
framework, stakeholders’ roles and responsibilities, procedure
and importance of conducting customer due diligence, and the
transaction monitoring system. By doing so, the Group ensures
its employees are equipped with sufficient knowledge and
awareness, regarding to AML and CTF, therefore, minimising the
risk of relevant breaches.

WHISTLEBLOWING MECHANISM

GoFintech formulated a whistleblowing system for employees and
external parties to report any suspected irregularities or doubts
on misconduct. Such report will be raised directly to the Group by
post or email. Upon receiving the report, the Group will conduct
the investigation in a fair and impartial way for every reporting.
If there is any evidence of illegal conduct or breach of laws and
regulations, it shall be referred to the relevant public or regulatory
bodies such as the Hong Kong Police Force, the Independent
Commission against Corruption, the Securities and Futures
Commission, or relevant regulatory body. Disciplinary actions
would be adopted once the guilty or misconduct is proven. The
Group is committed to protecting the identity of whistleblowers
and retaliation against them. Related practices are reviewed
regularly to ensure their effectiveness.
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During the Reporting Year, there were no concluded legal cases
regarding corruptive practices brought against the Group or its
employees, and no reports were received through the Group’s
whistleblowing channels. Also, the Group has not identified any
material non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations in
Hong Kong and Mainland China including but not limited to
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of Hong Kong, the Company
Law of the People’s Republic of China and Criminal Law of the
People’s Republic of China.

EMPLOYMENT AND COMMUNITY
INVESTMENT

THE GROUP’S PEOPLE PoLICY

Talents have long been recognised as one of the major
competitive strengths in financial industry, and GoFintech has
continued its investment to attract and retain talents. The Group
has established the Employee Handbook which build a holistic and
harmony system for employment practice, covering compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.

The Group is committed to promoting equal opportunities
and diversity in recruitment. The Group’s hiring, appraisal and
promotion policies are merit-based regardless of individual’'s
gender orientation, racial background, age, religion, marital status
and so on, and relevant processes are clear and transparent.

During the Reporting Year, the Group has not identified any
material non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations
including but not limited to Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong,
Minimum Wage Ordinance of Hong Kong, Bill of Rights Ordinance
of Hong Kong, Sex Discrimination Ordinance of Hong Kong,
Disability Discrimination Ordinance of Hong Kong, Family Status
Discrimination Ordinance and Race Discrimination Ordinance of
Hong Kong, Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance of Hong
Kong, Employees’ Compensation Ordinance of Hong Kong, the
Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China and the Labour
Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China that would have a
significant impact on the Group.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

The Group recognises its employees’ qualifications, experiences
and work performances by offering attractive remuneration
packages.
reviewed annually and bonuses are paid each year, according to

In order to retain talents, remuneration packages are

the work performance, seniority and contribution to the Group, to
recognise employees’ hard work throughout the year.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group has a total of 55 employees (as
at 31 March 2022: 69). The workforce distributions by gender, age
group, employment type and geographical region are as follows:

‘?‘i%& $&¢(nﬁ)

1= 45

AEBRBEARS DOFMETEELSY
BREERE KRAIHEXRANRRE B
BAZT ARESFROHFMNGE LR
BIERR BERHASENEBMER
AN EXEREEZFNE -

RZTE-_=F=ZA=+—HB AEEHXHF
5543 BT (RMZE-_—_F=ZA=+—H:

694 ) < RIER - FE AR BIFEHL Kt
BEESMEIDMAT

As at 31 March

R=A=+-—H
Categories Al 2023 2022
—Eg-= =

By Gender % B8 5

Male S 34 38
Female z 21 31
By Age Group RERER S D

Under 31 31EE AT 8 16
31-40 31B% £405% 21 30
41-50 4158 2 505% 16 12
Over 50 8 $B505%, 10 11
By Employment Type RERERSES

Full-time a4 55 69
Part-time B - -
By Geographical Region & it @ 8l 5

Hong Kong A 50 62
Mainland China B A 5 7

The promotion of employees depends on their performances,
working ability, intrinsic potential, and the needs of the Group’s
entities. The basis and process for management to determine
promotion, transfer and demotion of employees are clearly defined
to protect the interest of both the employees and the Group. Only
with the appropriate approval, the relevant actions can be carried

out.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

I%iﬁ ’ ?i%'&k :A$E¢ (mﬁ)

Employment termination of employees are arranged in accordance
with relevant laws and regulations. Unreasonable dismissal under
any circumstances is strictly prohibited, dismissal will be based
on appropriate and lawful grounds supported by internal policies
of the Group. During the Reporting Year, the Group’s overall
turnover rate was approximately 59.68%' (2022: approximately
48.00%). The employee turnover rate by gender, age group, and
geographical region was as follows:

ETNEBERIEZEBRBRABEEE
R AEBBREEEMBATTIEERE
BT MREAKEASBEANIIBERMEZ
HONBERGZERET RARESF
B AEEMBRAERL5968% (=%
T ZFE 1 #)48.00% ) o I IER - F AR
k@B SHEERKAENT

2023 2022
TECCFE ey

Turnover Rate? Tk &2
By Gender &% B8l o
Male 3 47.22% 36.59%
Female z 76.92% 61.76%
By Age Group RERAR &2
Under 31 1R A T 91.67% 90.91%
31-40 315% 2405 50.98% 45.07%
41-50 4155 2 505% 50.00% 43.48%
Over 50 8 8505% 57.14% -
By Geographical Region b EE 5
Hong Kong BE 60.71% 52.17%
Mainland China B 1A #h 50.00% -
Note(s): B E
1. The overall employee turnover rate is calculated by dividing the 1. #@EERAZILZXFHFENHBES

number of employees leaving employment during the financial year
by the average number of employees at the beginning and the end
of the financial year, and multiplying by 100%.

2. The employee turnover rate by category is calculated by dividing the
number of employees leaving employment in the specific category
during the financial year by the average number of employees at the
beginning and the end of the financial year in the specific category,
and multiplying by 100%.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

STAFF BENEFIT AND WELL-BEING

The Group has formulated policies in determining the working
hours and rest periods for employees following local employment
laws and regulations. In addition to the statutory benefits, such as
paid annual leave, maternity leave, paid sick leave and marriage
leave, the Group continues to offer employees with causal Fridays,
festival gifts, training subsidy, qualification allowance, travel and
overtime allowance. Qualified members were also offered with
housing allowance under the Group’s Staff Residential Rental
Subsidy program. Various social activities for employees, such
as gatherings and sport activities, were organised regularly with
themes on the importance of health and wellbeing.

The Group offers a variety of communications means with the
staff, for instance, weekly all-staff-meeting and management
meeting. In additional, the Group’s Townhall Meeting is held
regularly. All these channels effectively cascade the Group’s

policies and principles throughout the organisation.

DIVERSITY, EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES AND
ANTI-DISCRIMINATION

To maintain an embracing and collaborative workplace culture, the
Group provides equal opportunities in all aspects of employment
and ensures the workplace is free from discrimination, physical or
verbal harassment against any individual because of race, religion,
colour, gender, physical or mental capability, age, place of origin,
marital status, and sexual orientation. The Group also strives
to ensure that complaints, afflictions and concerns, including
whistleblowing, are dealt with promptly and confidentially. The
Group has zero tolerance for sexual harassment or abuse in the
workplace in any form.

EMPLOYEES HEALTH AND SAFETY

Due to the office-based operation, the Group does not involve
significant safety risks. Nevertheless, the Group does not overlook
the responsibility to safeguard employees’ health and safety.
The Group has formulated various management requirements in
accordance with relevant occupational health and safety laws
and regulations. The relevant health and safety measures and
response plans are clearly stated in the Employee Handbook.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

RR B RERHRE (F)

Acknowledging the relatively longer time spent in front of
computers as the reality of financial industry practitioners, the
Group has provided protective equipment and furniture, such as
ergonomic chairs and lightings, to help relieve body stiffness and
eye stress. Regular breaks during the day with desk-side stretch
exercise have always been encouraged. The management team
will continue to seek feedback from the staff on the support
needed from the Group so that the staff can be more focused and
well-motivated to deliver first-class service to customers.

The Reporting Year was marked with a couple waves of
coronavirus strikes in Hong Kong and mainland China amid a
global pandemic. During the Reporting Year, the Group did not
change its employment policy and did not implement unpaid
leave, so that GoFintech will fight the pandemic together with its
employees and come out stronger.

The Group provided highly sought-after protective measures
for staff, such as face masks and sanitising packages, through
its overseas network. The Group also made flexible work
arrangements including home office for its staff on the basis of no
compromise on customer service quality.

Sanitising measures were put in place in offices when employees
returned to work. Employees’ body temperatures were also taken
regularly, and the Group issued a policy to arrange employees to
go for immediate medical treatment should their body temperature
exceed 37.3T at Group’s expense where necessary. The
Group will review the relevant measures regularly to ensure their
effectiveness.

During the Reporting Year, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with health and safety-related laws
and regulations, including but not limited to Occupational Safety
and Health Ordinance of Hong Kong, Employees Compensation
Ordinance of Hong Kong, the Labour Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
the Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases that would
have a significant impact on the Group. In the past three years
(including the Reporting Year), the Group did not record any cases
of work-related fatalities. In addition, the Group did not record
any work-related injuries nor losses in working days due to work-
related injuries during the Reporting Year (2022: Nil).
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

EMPLOYEES  DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The level of professionalism of GoFintech’s team is its building
block. The Group holds that principle and enables continued
professional training of staff as such that they will play to their
strength and deliver high-quality performance. The Group
encourages staff to participate in external seminars and industrial
events to keep abreast of industry challenges and best practices,
at the same time, the Group offers internal trainings in areas of
legal, compliance, business ethics and other licensed regulated
activities. The Group also offers subsidies on external training

programs, license fees and qualification allowance.

To ensure employees’ professionalism and the service quality
provided,
relating to AML and CTF procedure, recent updates on relevant
regulations and other topics related to licensed regulated

the Group regularly conducts internal trainings

activities. The Group also provides cyber security training to its
in order to prevent any relevant incident leading to
customers’ or the Group’s loss or threat. Employees were taught

employees,

to conduct the best practice and the procedure of timely response
if any breaches are happened.

During the Reporting Year, the Group recorded approximately
34.78%° (2022: approximately 45.71%) of trained employee, with
an average of approximately 3.46* (2022: approximately 2.04)
training hours per employee.

Percentage of Trained Employee®

RNEEE DL

Categories

L)

By Gender BRI E S

Male 3 35.29%
Female z 34.15%
By Employee Category REBERES

Management EBAB 48.00%
General staff —HREL 29.85%

‘?‘i%& $&¢(n\ﬁ)
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Average Training Hours® (hours)
FHENEH(NE)

2022

“E-CFE

39.62% 4.04 2.35
51.92% 2.74 1.72
55.00% 6.34 4.08
43.53% 2.39 1.56
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Breakdown of Trained

Employee’
ZIEE D M7
Categories 2022
il ZEZFE
By Gender &4 B &8l 5
Male 5 56.25% 43.75%
Female z 43.75% 56.25%
By Employee Category REEEBERE S
Management EREN= 37.50% 22.92%
General staff —ET 62.50% 77.08%
Note(s): P 3T
3. The percentage of trained employee is calculated by dividing the 3. TINEEBOSHENEBEEARNRELE

total number of employees who took part in training during the

financial year by the total number of employees during the financial
year, covering the employees as at the end of the financial year and
resigned employees during the financial year, and multiplying by
100%.

The average training hours per employee is calculated by dividing
the total training hours during the financial year by the total number
of employees during the financial year, covering the employees as
at the end of the financial year and resigned employees during the
financial year.

The percentage of trained employees by category is calculated by
dividing the number of employees in the specified category who
took part in training during the financial year by the total number
of employees in the specified category during the financial year,
covering the employees as at the end of the financial year and
resigned employees during the financial year, and multiplying by
100%.

The average training hours by category is calculated by dividing
the total number of training hours for employees in the specified
category during the financial year by the number of employees
in the specified category during the financial year, covering
the employees as at the end of the financial year and resigned
employees during the financial year.

The breakdown of trained employee by category is calculated by
dividing the number of employees in the specified category who
took part in training during the financial year by the total number of
employees who took part in training during the financial year, and
multiplying by 100%.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

LABOUR STANDARDS
Prevention of Child and Forced Labour

In strict compliance with relevant local labour laws and
regulations, the Group prohibits to hire child labour and requires
verifying the age of applicants during the recruitment process.
The Group strictly follows the internal policies, in which all staffs
are required to sign employment contract before employment to
safeguard legal rights of both parties. Furthermore, employees
of the Group work overtime on a voluntary basis to prevent any
breaches of labour standards. Any punishments, management
methods and behaviours involving verbal abuse, physical
punishment, physical abuse, oppression, sexual harassment
against its employees are prohibited for any reasons. The Group
also conducts regular reviews and inspections to prevent any child
labour or forced labour in operation. If the case of child labour
is found, it will be dealt with in the light of the circumstances,
including terminating the employment contracts of the child labour
and reporting to legal authorities. For the case of forced labour,
the Group will terminate the employment contracts of the staff
who is responsible for the cause of the case. The measures will
be reviewed regularly to ensure their effectiveness.

During the Reporting Year, the Group has not identified any
material non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations
relating to child and forced labour, including but are not limited to
Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong and the Labour Law of the
People’s Republic of China that would have a significant impact
on the Group.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group’s business itself does not create a significant
direct impact on or engagement with the community in neither
environmental nor social aspects. However, the Group believes
that contribution to social causes and development of local
communities is part of its corporate social responsibility. It has
upheld the principle of corporate social responsibility throughout
its operations and implemented policy to maintain its community
investment.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

R HEREREKE (A)

During the Reporting Year, the Group has devoted significant
resources to maintain its business operations in the pandemic
and suspended its philanthropic activities. The Group will focus
more on social participation and community investment, especially
related to labour needs and health, and continue to encourage
the employees to actively participate in charitable activities and
voluntary services coordinated by non-profit organisations. The
Group believes that promoting the awareness of corporate social
responsibilities among staffs would not just help the society and
business in general, but more about their personal growth. The
Group welcomes opportunities of sponsorship or partnership
for charity events, and organising volunteer work to support
vulnerable groups in Hong Kong.

ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group is committed to building an environmentally friendly
corporation image. It pursues to minimise resource consumption
and adopts environmentally friendly practices across the business
with the relevant environmental protection policies set for the
Group’s business operations. The Group provides financial
products and services to a wide range of corporate clients and
individual customers. For the Group’s staff to carry out daily work,
the Group rents office spaces which have been furnished with
office equipment. The Group uses electricity, water and waste
management services provided by the leased premises. Due to
the office-based business nature, the Group’s daily operation has
limited environmental impact.

However, the Group proactively implements emissions reduction
and energy conservation measures to achieve efficient use of
resources, enhancing its sustainability development. Various
initiatives have been implemented throughout its operations such
as deploying energy-efficient devices with energy efficiency labels,
minimising the use of paper and reducing water consumption.
Through active monitoring and managing the use of resources, the
Group aims to reduce its carbon footprints as well as its operating

cost.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

During the Reporting Year, the Group has not identified any
material non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations
relating to air and GHG emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste that
would have a significant impact on the Group. The relevant laws
and regulations include, but are not limited to Air Pollution Control
Ordinance of Hong Kong, Waste Disposal Ordinance of Hong
Kong, the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste.
No hazardous waste as defined in the Basel Convention on the
Control of Transboundary Movements of Hazardous Wastes was
generated.

CLIMATE CHANGE MITIGATION AND
ADAPTATION

The Group recognise that climate change has been affecting its
business operations and the Group is exposed to both physical
and transition risks. The Group’s primary responsibility is to
implement environmental policies to reduce its GHG emissions
and the environmental footprint as a whole by ensuring that its
assets and operations are prepared to withstand, or respond
to, expected climate impacts. The Group has initiated a climate
change assessment under the Task Force on Climate-related
Financial Disclosures (“TCFD”) framework to identify and
mitigate the potential climate-related risks that may arise from its
business operations. These risks mainly stem from the following
dimensions:

PHYSICAL RISKS

Climate change leads to the increase of extreme weather events,
such as typhoons, storms and heavy rains, which can disrupt
the daily operations of the Group by causing damages to power
grid and communication infrastructure and hindering and injuring
the Group’s employees during their work, or on the way going to
work. These could result in temporary, permanent or partial halt of
the Group’s business operations, which expose the Group to risks
associated with reduced revenue and higher operational costs
from negative impacts on workforce.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

R HEREREKE (A)

To better manage the above physical risks, the Group has
formulated emergency plan which is reviewed regularly to
response such events, including procedures to approach typhoons
and black rainstorms. The relevant procedures and measures
are outlined in the Employee Handbook. When extreme weather
events occurred or will possibly happen, the senior management
will react according to the plans and timely communicate with the
employees about the work arrangements to ensure staff safety
and operational continuity.

TRANSITION RISKS

The Group anticipates that there will be more stringent climate
legislations and regulations to support the global vision of
carbon neutrality. From a listed company’s perspective, the
Group acknowledges the stricter requirements of climate-
related disclosures. One example is the update of the Stock
Exchange’s ESG Reporting Guide in respect of disclosures
regarding significant climate-related impact on an issuer. The
Group’s business operations may be materially and adversely
affected under the stricter environmental laws and regulations if it
fails to comply with the laws and regulations as applicable to its
businesses from time to time. Negative publicity may also arise
due to failure to meet the compliance requirements for climate
change. The Group’s related capital investment and compliance
costs thus increase.

In response to the policy and legal risks as well as the reputation
risks, the Group regularly monitors existing and emerging trends,
policies and regulations relevant to climate and be prepared
to alert the top management where necessary to avoid cost
increments, non-compliance fines or reputational risks due to
delayed response. In addition, the Group will continue to invest in
and provide funds to climate-friendly companies, which develop
and innovate the climate-friendly products and technologies.
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GHG EMISSIONS AND AIR EMISSIONS

The major sources of the Group’s GHG emissions are direct
GHG emissions (Scope 1) from petrol consumed by company-
owned vehicles, energy indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2)
from purchased electricity consumption in offices, and other
indirect GHG emissions (Scope 3) from paper consumption and
employees’ business travels. To minimise the environmental
impacts of GHG emissions from the Group’s business operations,
the Group has set a target to reduce its GHG emissions intensity
(tCOe/employee) by the financial year ending 31 March 2026
(“2026"), using 2022 as the baseline year (2022: 1.03 tCO,e/
employee). To achieve the target, the Group has taken the
following measures to minimise the GHG emissions from its
business operations:

o Choose the shortest route when vehicles are travelling
between the Group’s operating locations and destinations to
reduce consumption of fuel;

° Turn off engines for idling vehicles;

° Conduct regular vehicle maintenance to ensure efficient use
of fuel;

° Encourage employees to hold video conference call; and

o Encourage all its suppliers to have targets in line with its
values in lower carbon emissions.

The Group has implemented policies including vehicle
management methods to manage the air and GHG emissions from
its operations. Meanwhile, the Group seeks to educate its staff
members to increase the office environmental awareness. Besides,
the Group has active adopted energy conservation measures
which are described in the section headed “Energy Consumption”
under aspect “Environment”.
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During the Reporting Year, the Group’s total GHG emissions
intensity was approximately 0.96 tCO_,e/employee, which was
decreased by approximately 6.80% compared to 1.03 tCO,e/
employee in 2022, remaining on track to achieve the target
set. The Group will continue to monitor its GHG emissions and
implement relevant measures, reduce its GHG emissions intensity
progressively and aim to achieve the target of reducing GHG

emission intensity by 2026.

The Group’s GHG emissions performance was as follows:

GHG Emissions® Unit
BE R e Bfy
Scope 1 — Company-owned vehicles tCO.e

BEN -RAEFAE

Total Direct GHG emission

EERERBHNAE

Scope 2 — Purchased electricity

BE2 —SMNEESD

Scope 3 — Paper consumption and business travel

BES -RFHRERAHEK

Total Indirect GHG emissions

AEREREHNAR

Total GHG Emissions — Scope 1,2 and 3
BEREHNAE-EE1 2K3

Total GHG emissions intensity®

AREREBHNRE
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2023 2022 2021
wtme kA T TR

15.43 17.24 18.05
15.43 17.24 18.05
26.42 28.84 52.36
11.11 24.67 21.87
37.53 53.51 74.23
52.96 70.75 92.28
0.96 1.03 1.14
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Note(s):

8. GHG emissions data is presented in terms of carbon dioxide
equivalent and are based on, including but not limited to, “The
Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A Corporate Accounting and Reporting
Standards” issued by the World Resources Institute and the World
Business Council for Sustainable Development, “How to prepare an
ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental
KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange, “Global Warming Potential
Values” from the Fifth Assessment Report (AR5) of the United
Nation Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change, and the “2022
Sustainability Report” published by the HK Electric Investment.

9. As at 31 March 2023, the Group had a total of 55 (as at 31 March
2022: 69; as at 31 March 2021: 81) employees. These data are also
used for calculating other intensity data.

The major source of the Group’s air emissions is company-owned
vehicles. Although the Group considers that the air emissions
are insignificant due to the Group’s business nature, the Group
has adopted various vehicle control measures to minimise the
pollutants emitted during its business operation that are described
above in this section.

During the Reporting Year, the Group’s total air emissions was
decreased compared to 2022. The main reason for the decrease
was the implementation of vehicle control measures by the Group
to reduce air emissions by company-owned vehicles. The Group’s
air emissions performance was as follows:

Air Emissions™ Unit
BER M B
Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) g
AALYI(NOX) R
Sulphur Oxides (SOx) g
T &1L (SOx) R
Particulate Matter (PM) g
ZFH T (PM) =

RiR HEeRkER/EE (&)

B L -

8. ABERBHNRBEBIA_GLRESENTT
X259 DREBE(BHRETRMNERE
RAEARERATFERRIGEES
B CRERBRERTE XS
RBERE) BT ME A E
BRE HEREARME M REH
REMERERES)  BEBREEL
EMZE@BMNERLRTERS (ARS)
M EHRELERE) REBENERE
TR R o2 Al ARRBRE) -

9. HE-ZE-_=ZF=ZF=+—8 A&EEA
HE55% (BE-_T_—_F=R=1+—
H:690% BEZZT-_—F=A=+—
H:81A)RE -ZESHENTARTEX
7 EIE

AEBEREMNIERRARAESR
MR - BEARERRERNERKIEE -
AEEELMERERE MRS BAK
B RIREBRTEEGE R L EEE
EBREPHRASRYRERE  XRA
B b #t

REABEFE FNEBNERFREER
T FEAMRL  EERHRAE
EEEERITHEBARSRGHEEE
9 B FE SRHE P o AN 5 B A BE RUBE R IR 40
T

2023 2022 2021
ot St T FE - E-—4F

3,899.94 4,358.18 4,880.07
85.27 95.29 98.00
287.14 320.88 359.31
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Note(s):

10. The calculation method of air emissions and the related emission
factors were based on, including but not limited to, “How to
Prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange.

SEWAGE DISCHARGE

As the Group does not consume a significant volume of
water during its daily operation, its business activities did not
generate material discharges into water during the Reporting
Year. Moreover, both the water supply and discharge are solely
controlled by the building’s management office, and so it is
considered that the provision of water withdrawal and discharge
data or sub meter for the Group as a individual occupant is
not feasible. More water conservation measures are described
in the section headed “Water Consumption” under aspect
“Environment”.

WASTE MANAGEMENT
Hazardous Waste

In view of the Group's business nature, the Group did not
generate a material amount of hazardous waste during the
Reporting Year. Where it is required to handle hazardous waste,
the Group will independently store and transport the hazardous
waste to third-party professionals for safe and legal processing.

Non-hazardous Waste

The non-hazardous waste generated by the Group is mainly office
paper from daily business operations. During 2022, the Group
has set target to maintain the total non-hazardous waste disposal
intensity (tonnes/employee) at the level of 0.02 tonnes/employee
for 2023. To achieve the target, the Group has taken various
measures to minimise the environmental impact and promote
“green office” concept. In particular, the Group promotes “think
before you print” attitude in order to encourage paperless offices
by facilitating the use of electronic means for communication
such as intranet, email, internal workflow system. Relevant waste
reduction measures include:

° Digitalise the business operation to reduce printing and
paper copies;

GoFintech Innovation Limited
Annual Report 2023

GEX

10. BERBEMAWEETERBBBERRERT
AR (BFEETRR) B EM (0
AmERE HEREARE MR
REMARERERERESD -

JTIKBE

HRARBEEREZEBRETLERE
K- AR AREFEEEBEBE K
R EAEHT - SIN HKRPKER
MY EEREES  BURBEIRMHARE (F
AERIEF) M BUK &K BUR D 5 E
B-BZWEHKEREAR REIER
B [7KROERE] — 8 e

B EE
HEBRY

ERNAEENEBEE AEBERARSE
FREIBELTAEREEY WEEKEE
BEERYE AEEE8EEEYB LG
FREXGEZNTEERBULT LR
BIRHEEIE -

BEREY

AEBEANBEZTEVIZREREERR
LERPNPRAERR- R _T__FE-
AEEEHERR E_T_=—FEKAE
BEEBEVEETE (W EERFES
ZEB0.02ME /KT - BEMZ A F K
SECEREBREEREHRENEE
THREZERAEINBR -AEER
MREIEDNM=82X FEITKRHA
BFEBAIA PIOANEBE B A
THERERESS USBE&LERD A
3 BRI R 5 HE B AE

e BEBLESFILURDITERE
EA



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

. Encourage duplex printing and reusing any single-side
printed papers;

° Set up recycling bins to collect recyclable products; and
° Encourage employees to reduce the use of one-off products.

During the Reporting Year, the Group’s total non-hazardous waste
disposal intensity was approximately 0.02 tonnes/employee,
which was at a similar level of 2022 (0.02 tonnes/employee),
staying at a low level. The Group has achieved the target of the
total non-hazardous waste disposal intensity it set in 2022. The
Group will continue to monitor the amount of non-hazardous
waste it generated and implement relevant measures, reduce its
non-hazardous waste intensity progressively. For the year ending
31 March 2024 (“2024”), the Group aims to achieve the target of
maintaining the total non-hazardous waste disposal intensity at
the level similar to 20283.

The Group’s waste disposal performance was as follows:

Non-hazardous Waste Unit
BEEY B
Office paper tonnes
/NN ]
Total non-hazardous waste disposal tonnes
BERVZEEAE W

Total non-hazardous waste disposal intensity tonnes/employee

REEBNRERE /&8

i%iﬁ‘?‘i%&k $&¢(nﬁ)

s HBMEEITHLE®REREMTEH
R

o MELWMAKER BUER: &
e WEEEBMAER—RMEEM-

RABREFE AEBBESENEET
EAANEGZEE0RME BT - —FF
(0.02M8 B E)M/KTEMHEE HERBER
KE-AEBEEREN-_ZS__FER
EHNBREEEYEEREAR AEEE
BEERHELNEESREMEENE KA
FWEML/ﬂ9ﬁ$%%%‘FW$E
EMEEEREE T -_NMF=A=1+—
Etﬁ&ﬂ_g_lﬁﬁnﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂ
EEVEERERARFREE _T _=FF
A BKF -
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2023 2022 2021
et T —FF _—F-—FF%

0.99 1.35 1.47
0.99 1.35 1.47
0.02 0.02 0.02
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ENERGY CONSUMPTION

The major sources of the Group’s energy consumption were
direct energy consumption from petrol consumed by company-
owned vehicles and indirect energy consumption from purchased
electricity used in the offices. The Group has implemented
company-owned vehicles management methods to reduce its
energy consumption by company-owned vehicles. To minimise the
environmental impacts of energy consumption from the Group’s
business operations, the Group has set target to reduce the total
energy consumption intensity (kWh/employee) by 2026, using
2022 as a baseline year (2022: 1,499.24 kWh/employee). To
achieve the target, the Group encourages employees to establish
energy-saving habits at offices and has also implemented various
energy saving measures including:

° Replace intelligent lighting control system with light emitting
diode (“LED”) bulbs;

° Maintain indoor temperature at 25.5C;

° Conduct regular maintenance to avoid possible unnecessary
energy usage;

° Use electronic devices in energy-saving mode where
possible;

° Switch off the monitors during lunch hours;
° Turn off the light when leaving the offices; and

° Lower the brightness of the monitor screen.

GoFintech Innovation Limited
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During the Reporting Year, the Group’s total energy consumption
intensity was approximately 1,728.70 kWh/employee, which
was increased by approximately 15.31% from 1,499.24 kWh/
employee in 2022. The main reason of the increase of total energy
consumption intensity was the number of employees as at 31
March 2023 using as the intensity base for 2023 was decreased
significantly compared with the employees number as at 31 March
2022, which is using as the intensity base for 2022. The Group
is in progress to achieve the target of reducing the total energy
consumption intensity. The Group will continue to monitor its
energy consumption and implement relevant measures, reduce its
energy consumption intensity progressively and aim to achieve the
target of reducing the total energy consumption intensity by 2026.

The Group’s energy consumption performance was as follows:

Types of Energy" Unit
ERER Efu
Direct energy consumption — Petrol kWh
BR&RERE TN TRE
Indirect energy consumption — Purchased kWh
electricity
AEERERE-NEED TR
Total energy consumption kWh
RERHEEER TR&
Total energy consumption intensity kWh/employee
REREREE TRE/ER
Note(s):

11.  The unit conversion method of energy consumption data is
formulated based on the Energy Statistics Manual issued by
International Energy Agency.

i%iﬁ‘?‘i%&k $&¢(nﬁ)

RABREFE AEENBERERE
EHAESREEN7T870TER R _-F
::iFME%E§1w9m¥HﬁWM
#4915.31% B R BRERE N £ B
Elﬁﬁ_?__i A=+—HBHM1E
BAB(REZZS_=FEREFENRE
MIBRR_ZE-_—_F=A=+—HHEE
A (AEZZSFEXREFENER)
AIUE R D o AN B IE 7535 20 B TR K 48 6
RERERENER AEEKEEERH
BERBREERAYERABRE R ZPRE
HEREEZE UFEFRR_Z-_REFE
FERBEAR R EEZENEZ.

AEBMBERBEERIRMOT

2023 2022 2021
St T FF —E-—4F

56,218.50 62,824.23 64,602.64
38,860.00 40,623.00 65,450.00
95,078.50 103,447.23 130,052.64
1,728.70 1,499.24 1,605.59
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WATER CONSUMPTION

The Group’s water consumption is minimal as it operates in office
premises of which both the water supply and discharge are solely
controlled by the building’s management office, and therefore the
provision of water withdrawal and discharge data or sub-meter
for the Group as an individual occupant is not available. Target for
water efficiency is also not presented as water consumption data
is not applicable. Yet, the Group promotes water-saving practices
in the workplace by encouraging its employees to reduce water
use in order to raise the awareness on water conservation,
including:

° Conduct regular maintenance and repair of toilet flushing
system;

° Remind employees to turn off taps tightly after using to avoid
dripping of water;

° Use water-saving appliances in water facilities where
possible;

° Notify relevant department if problems are found to avoid
wasting water resources; and

° Post water-saving reminders in pantry and toilets to remind
employees on water conservation.

USE OF PACKAGING MATERIALS

Since the Group is principally engaged in the provision of financial
services, packaging is not involved in the usual course of the
Group’s business, and therefore the use of packaging materials
during the Reporting Year is not applicable.

GoFintech Innovation Limited
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WORKING ENVIRONMENT

The Group has implemented different policies to govern the
impact on the environment of its operations. To enhance working
efficiency, the Group is committed to providing employees a
comfortable and green workplace. Office areas are inspected
regularly to ensure that a good working environment is
maintained. Once the Group has promptly found problems within
the workplace, precautionary measures will be taken to minimise
the potential harm to employees. In addition, the Group monitors
the indoor air quality of the workplace regularly, and cleans air-
conditioning systems regularly to maintain good indoor air quality.

ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT
INDEX OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE

R -#HekER/%E (&)
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AR R R e RER ALY E
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RXFT (REBE-HERE

BHERES) AR RS

Mandatory Disclosure Requirements Section/Declaration
BEEERE -8 1

Governance Structure The ESG Governance Structure
ERRE RE HERERAEREE
Reporting Principles Reporting Framework
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Reporting Boundary Reporting Scope
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Aspects, General
Disclosures and
KPIs

BEH —REER
BERAMER

Description

g

Section/Declaration

-0 1

Aspect A1: Emissions

BEA:HERY

General Disclosure

—REE

KPI'A1.1

B SR4E IR IR AT

KPI'A1.2

BB EMIRIRAL.2

KPI' A1.3

BB EMIEIRALS

KPI' A1.4

G E N IEIZAL.4

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating
to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous
and non-hazardous waste.

BRBRIORERBYN RKRLOEES BF

MEEERVHNELEFH:

(@) BE: MK

() BFHETAFTERATENHBEEERRRIN

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.
BEr e 5 M AE B BE B BUE

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2)
greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
E%(%ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ(%ﬁlz)“ =REBHEME (M
MEAE) R (WER)BE (MASEEELN FIAR
paEtHE ) o

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and,
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

FEXBEEEEMRE (UEE) R (WER)ZE
(MAEESEMN -  SHERBTE) -

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and,
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

FTEEEEFEEYHE (UETE) R (NER)RE
(M BESEMN SHERXBETE) -
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Environmental
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Environmental — GHG
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HER

Environmental — GHG
Emissions and Air Emissions

RE-LERBHBIMER

BEDR

Environmental — Waste
Management
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Emissions — Waste
Management
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RiIE - HE8RE

awE (&)

KPls Description Section/Declaration
BEH —REER

BERAMER it B B9

KPI A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken Environmental — GHG

BB A MIRIRA1S

KPI A1.6

P AE IR IRA1.6

to achieve them.
WA LM E R ER AERIEER
7 25 5% o

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous

R FTERER

wastes are handled, and a description of reduction
target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

AR AEERBEEREZEYN A RIEMPTE] LA
WEE B IR R AEDELBFAERIA R -

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

EBEHA2 : ERER

General Disclosure

— R
KPI A2.1

8 S 45 AR IZ A2.1

KPI A2.2

Bt 4B IR IZA2.2
KPI A2.3

BB B IZA2.3

KPI A2.4

PSR IR A2.4

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including
energy, water and other raw materials.
EREAEIR (BFERIR KEEMERERME) B BEE
Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type
(e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in "000s)

and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

RERE D MEE&/iﬁEm/<w$ REOm) 48
HE(LTETERAZE) REE (WAGEE$L -
BERMEETHE) -

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit
of production volume, per facility).

BREKEREE (MABESEM BERMTHE) -
Descr|pt|on of energy use efficiency target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them.

A PEI IR RERAB R AR R REIELER
FTERER &Y 22 8% -

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s)
set and steps taken to achieve them.

it SREGE A KR ER B ER R - LRI Z 8 A
K B R R REDE L BRI 5

Emissions and Air Emissions
RE-AERBEHMEESR
HERR

Environmental — Waste
Management

RIB-BEYER

Environmental

IRIE
Environmental — Energy
Consumption

RIE—gEIRH R

Environmental — Water
Consumption
BRIR—KIRHFE
Environmental — Energy
Consumption
RIE—GLIRERE
Environmental — Water
Consumption
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Aspects, General
Disclosures and
KPIs

BE - —REER
BERAMER

Description

g

Section/Declaration

-0 1

KPI A2.5

PSR IR A2.5

Total packaging material used for finished products (in
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit
produced.

HRmAMBEEMHANEE (UG E) &
BAEEBAMhE-

(zn@Em)

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

BEA3 BERRXRARER

General Disclosure

—MRIE
KPI A3.1

FA S8 48 IR 1R A3 1

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts
on the environment and natural resources.
MEZETAHRBERRAEREXNERNZENBRER -
Description of the significant impacts of activities on
the environment and natural resources and the actions
taken to manage them.
HMEREHHIRBERRAERNERAZERDK
RMEREETENTH-

Aspect A4: Climate Change

EHA4 RIZE 1L

General Disclosure

—RIWE

KPI A4.1

8 S 45 AR IZ A4 1

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant
climate-related issues which have impacted, and those
which may impact, the issuer.
BRINEHERRAIGEEHETAEETXENEKX
RIREBEEEHBER

Description of the significant climate-related issues
which have impacted, and those which may impact,
the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.
B RAREEHBETAEETENERRIRA
MEE REHTH-
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Description

g

Section/Declaration

-0 1

Aspect B1: Employment

EmEB1:ER

General Disclosure

—REE

KPI B1.1

B8t 4 IR 1= B1.1

KPI B1.2

PSR IR B1.2

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating
to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and
other benefits and welfare.

ERFMEk@gE BEREA THERE RH FF

e % - IR DA K H 4558 K tE A1 |9

(a) BE: K&

() BTHEHTABERTENMERBERE LA
B}

Total workforce by gender, employment type (for

example, full-or part-time), age group and geographical

region.

MR ERAL (MR  Fidn kiR

ElomEEESE-

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and

geographical region.

BRI FRRERN R REI BB RARL K-

Employment and Community
Investment

BEIEREE

Employment and Community
Investment — The Group’s
People Policy
BRERMMERE -TNEED
AT B

Employment and Community
Investment — The Group’s
People Policy
BREEEERE -AEED
AT BUEK

HE= R AR A A
SEBECC-FFR
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
RE #E@RERHS (HF)

Aspects, General
Disclosures and

KPIs
B - —REER
BARAMIER

Description

g

Section/Declaration

-0 1

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

EEB2 #EHEZZE

General Disclosure

—RIWE

KPI B2.1

8§t 4B IR 1= B2.1

KPI B2.2

P M IR IR B2.2

KPI B2.3

RS EMIEIEB2.3

Information on:
(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that

have a significant impact on the issuer relating

to providing a safe working environment and

protecting employees from occupational hazards.

FRRRZ2THEREMREREBLBELREEN:

(@ HEX: K&

b) BTHETABEATE

a e

EARRR R R RO

Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in

each of the past three years including the reporting

year.

BE-F(BEBEFRE)EFRAITHNABRL

Lost days due to work injury.

HIBERIERE-

Description of occupational health and safety

measures adopted, and how they are implemented and

monitored.

WAFTRMNBRERREZ 2 L REBERTR

ERNEe

GoFintech Innovation Limited
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Employment and Community
Investment — Employees’
Health and Safety

BELTREE -REER
e

Employment and Community
Investment — Employees’
Health and Safety
BRERMMERE-EERER
Hie

Employment and Community
Investment — Employees’
Health and Safety
BEIMERE - EERE
HZE

Employment and Community
Investment — Employees’
Health and Safety
BREMMERE-EERRE
He



Aspects, General
Disclosures and
KPIs

BEH —REER
BERAMER

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
HERERHE (&)

B2 45

Description

g

Section/Declaration

-0 1

Aspect B3: Development and Training

FEEB3 : #EREZI

General Disclosure

—RIWE

KPI B3.1

B SRE IR 1R B3

KPI B3.2

Bt 4B W FE1EB3.2

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills
for discharging duties at work. Description of training
activities.
ERRAEERITIERENMNBRRENEEK -H
MmIFHEE -

The percentage of employees trained by gender and
employee category (e.g. senior management, middle
management).

R RESER (&
EonXilEER S
The average training hours completed per employee by
gender and employee category.

BERE TREEEZ)

BRI MEB BRI S
2o

BREETREIN TR

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

EHEB4 : & T%#E|

General Disclosure

—RIWE

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
preventing child and forced labour.

BRAIEE TR blss T :

(a) BE: R

(b)) BTHEHTABERTENMEEER LA
B}

Employment and Community
Investment — Employees’
Development and Training

BELTRERE-REER
K sgal

Employment and Community
Investment — Employees’
Development and Training

BREREEREE-EEER
S8 gl

Employment and Community
Investment — Employees’
Development and Training

REMMEREE-EBEER
S8zl

Employment and Community
Investment — Labour
Standards

BELERRE -5 TER

HEERIMARA

g‘:iiﬁ
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

R HEREREKE (A)

Aspects, General
Disclosures and

KPls Description Section/Declaration

BEH —REER

BERAMER Rt =30 1.

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment Employment and Community

practices to avoid child and forced labour.

AR AENIEEB4 MWl BEEMNNEEAREET RRHIST -
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices
when discovered.

MBEMIEEBL2 HAGERRERBAREREGRBNAMEIN LR -

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[EEBS5 : ftEHEER

General Disclosure  Policies on managing environmental and social risks of
the supply chain.

— = EREHEENREMESREREER -

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region.

RARAEIEIEBEY RMEE DM HEHEE -

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,
number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

MREMIEEBs.2 WA AHERRERNED  AERTEBEN MK

EEHE URBBERITRERT A

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they
are implemented and monitored.

RSB MIE1EB5.3 MM AEARHEEGERGNRE LSRR
B ARERNITRERT &

GoFintech Innovation Limited
Annual Report 2023

Investment — Labour
Standards

BEI&TERE -5 TEA
Employment and Community
Investment — Labour
Standards

BREMMERE -5 TER

Sustainable Business
Operations — Supply Chain
Management
AREXBEE-—HERE
B

Sustainable Business
Operations — Supply Chain

Management
ARERGEE—HERE
2

Sustainable Business
Operations — Supply Chain
Management

AREEGEE—HERE
5]

Sustainable Business
Operations — Supply Chain
Management
AREEGEE-HERE
Pt



Aspects, General
Disclosures and

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

RiIE - HE8RE

awE (&)

KPls Description Section/Declaration
BEH —REER

BERAMER it B B9

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote Sustainable Business

BB 4B IR IEB5.4

environmentally preferable products and services when
selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

At PRE H IR (2 (8 2 R RIRE fn R IRAG V18 1 -
AR BBERITRERT A

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

EEB6 - EmEE

General Disclosure

—REE

KPI B6.1

8§t 45 W F5 12 B6.1

KPI B6.2

PSR W IR 12 B6.2

Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating
to health and safety, advertising, labelling and
privacy matters relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress.
BRAfMEERNMRBONERELZS BE S&EK
LS B DA KRR T R
(@ HEX: K&
() BTHEHTABERTENMEEER LA
Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to
recalls for safety and health reasons.

EEXRCEXER
WH B2

Number of products and service related complaints

mEh AT EEREHRMAD

received and how they are dealt with.

BREBARERLKREORFEE AREH T L.

Operations — Supply Chain
Management

AREEGEE-HERE
Pt

Sustainable Business
Operations

ANEEGEE

Sustainable Business
Operations — Product
Responsibility

ARFEEGEE-—EmaE
Sustainable Business
Operations — Customer
Services

AREEBEE-EPR%

HEERIMARA
:g_:iiiﬁ
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

RE HERE

Aspects, General
Disclosures and

awE (&)

KPls Description Section/Declaration
BEH —REER

BERAMER Rt =30 1.

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and Sustainable Business

B8 2 4 N FE 12 B6.3

KPI B6.4

B2 4 N FE 12 B6.4

KPI B6.5

BA 5248 MBS B6.5

protecting intellectual property rights.

Mg E R ARE S ERABNED -
Description of quality assurance process and recall

procedures.

B EREBRENEMDKET -

Description of consumer data protection and privacy
policies, and how they are implemented and monitored.

il OH B & BB RE AR K
B

R ARBRERITRE

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

EEB7 . KES

General Disclosure

—RIWE

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

BRABIEBRRR - B  MEGF L BER

(a) BE: R

() BTHBTABERTENHBEIRNROIN

GoFintech Innovation Limited

Annual Report 2023

Operations — Intellectual
Property Rights and
Responsible Marketing
AIRFEEG S E - MBAERE
&E BEEEH
Sustainable Business
Operations — Product
Responsibility, Customer
Services
ARFEETG S E -
T -BFPR%

Sustainable Business

EmA

Operations — Customer
Privacy Protection and Cyber
Security
EETES/ 2T B
REREELZ R

EFPRLE

Business Ethics and Practice

BEERLEER



Aspects, General
Disclosures and

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
RE H#E8RERKRS (&

)

KPls Description Section/Declaration
BEH —REER

BERAMER it B B9

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt Business Ethics and

RA SR 45 512 BT 1
KPI B7.2
BE S A5 B 1EBT7.2

KPI B7.3

PS4 IR IEBT.3

practices brought against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the
cases.
RERPANEETAREBERLEIEELENES
FAARGHEE MFAER-

Description of preventive measures and whistleblowing
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored.
P S M R R RIZ T - A RABBARIT REER 5% o
Description of anti-corruption training provided to
directors and staff.

W REF B TRENREISHE -

Aspect B8: Community Investment

EEBS . HERE

General Disclosure

—REE

KPI B8.1

PR B4R IR 1S B8

KPI B8.2

BB E IR IR BS.2

Policies on community engagement to understand the
needs of the communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.

BN R2ERTREEMETRFZMBER
XBEBEERLE = ABUR -

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education,
environmental concerns, labour needs, health, culture,
sport).
HIERER (#E REFE BIHER -BER-
Xfb-8EF) -

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the
focus area.

EEIHEMBAER (WEEHFRE) -

Practice — Whistleblowing
Mechanism

BEICEY &Pl Xl
Business Ethics and Practice

HEBELER

Business Ethics and Practice
— Anti-corruption and fraud,
AML and CTF
AEBEBREREER-RESR
RERGEE - ROE B R R ZEE

Employment and Community
Investment — Community
Investment
BELAERERE - HRERE
Employment and Community

Investment — Community
Investment

BELERRE-HRRE

Employment and Community
Investment — Community
Investment

BREHREE -HERE

HEERIMARA

A

To=FFR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZBMBRES

IBDO

TEE 1 +85222188288
{8H : +85228152239

Tel : +8522218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
BETHER11155
KRAI2518

www.bdo.com.hk

To the members of GoFintech Innovation Limited (formerly
known as China Fortune Financial Group Limited)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
GoFintech Innovation Limited (formerly known as China Fortune
Financial Group Limited) (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 155 to 287, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

GoFintech Innovation Limited
Annual Report 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

BURBMBES (&)

FARETSRE

FAREFFASRERMANEXHE R
REAYPRGEAMBRENBETRA/E
ENFH-ZFFTHERMEABEES
MBHRERLERBMEGENE RSEE
MEM I EHZSFEREEFHNER -

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

The Key Audit Matters
BERETEE

Expected credit losses on loan and trade receivables

BRERREZEBURA2ABREEER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMWETNNEEZSE

Refer to notes 2.17 and 21 to the consolidated financial statements and the key sources of estimation

uncertainty in note 4

BRI EIREN 217 R21 A KRB it a1 5 TR E 2 + Z KR

At 31 March 2023, the Group’s loan and trade
receivables of approximately HK$42,644,000
net of expected credit losses of approximately
HK$19,510,000 on aggregate.
RZEZ=F=ZRA=+—H EBESEZEKER
K8 5 MW R T4 /42,644,00078 7T - & HI Bk 78 B
S EE1B12%84919,510,000% 7T

Assessing the expected credit losses of loan and trade
receivables requires the management’s judgement
and uses of estimates in determining the probability
of default occurring by considering the aging of
receivables, historical payment record and loss
experience, fair value of collaterals and forward-looking
information.
AEERERLRESREEFZEARAGEEFERTE
IR E 1 HIE R AT BB E B EKIERRE -
BENREHELEELR ERRO R FERATE
MEHEEEEENN A -

Our audit procedures to assess sufficiency and
appropriateness of expected credit loss allowances
included the following:
BMTEERNCEEREREN RS ENMEZ NS
ARFEETIIEE:

- inquired management regarding credit policies,

and evaluated the controls that management has
established to oversee and keep track of loan
and trade receivables;
AREEEREHGEERE WA HERERE
EMIRHE W E KK E 5 EWERRM &L=
HEE YN

- tested on a sample basis, the values of collaterals

including pledged securities and properties of
margin financing accounts and mortgage loans
respectively;

DHBEEEANRAFRERRERE MIZBERNE
Ao EE BREWRESFNYE:

- reviewed and questioned on a sample basis,

credit profiles and reports of selected customers;
DA AEEREERPNERERRREE
TERMER:

HE= R AR A A
SEC-FER
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
BYURBHBRES (F)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) Eg ﬁ}; % %1_ E IE (#)

The Key Audit Matters (Continued) How the matter was addressed in our audit (Continued)

BRESEE(H) BEMWESTNFEEZSER (K)

Expected credit losses on loan and trade receivables (Continued)
ERERKRESFEWERZABEERHE (&)

Refer to notes 2.17 and 21 to the consolidated financial statements and the key sources of estimation
uncertainty in note 4 (Continued)

BRHEE N BEBERN Z2.17R21 A R} italaat THHEEZ T ZX)F (&)

We identified expected credit losses of loan and trade - reviewed expected credit losses individually for
receivables as a key matter due to significant balances the rationale and indicators, and questioned the
and the extent of estimation involved. basis leading to the loss; and
ZRIERBEBARTERT P LHE KR F A EEEMNEREESENNIEEELRER I
HEKEFRRESIEREFNBREEBERTE R HEBERBEEELDRRE: &

B E T EIR

- assessed the estimated future cash flows by

examining the historical repayment records,
historical loss rate of trade and loan receivables,
information regarding the current creditworthiness
and any significant changes in credit quality of
the debtors, and the adjustments to forward
looking information.
FRABRETRATEELHE BREXRESHREK
ANELEHEX BEBABINEERGEELER
R E RS BB E R A KBTI & BT
AAARARBEERE -

GoFintech Innovation Limited
Annual Report 2023



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.

BAZBMBEE (&)

Hft & #

EFAHEMENBE - AMERE
B BERRFWAAEMEBEER HEESH
BREREMBLEBEHOZBEMBR SR
9|\o

BHPUGEUBEHRRNERLTREH
ER AT EREBRTAT AN

S Y 1A
%ni%unﬁﬂ °

RBEAEREMBREMS  RANEER
BIEEMER RELBRERET ZEEM
EMEREGAMBHRRAKMES
BEFRTHEOBRABEEANT  HEU
FEEAHERRM - EREMERATHT
1 B PIRBAEMERBERE R
BB ERSAEBESE-BLUMT &M
BEREMEEMER.

EERGREMHRRAE
ENEME

EZRARERBEBTESFMASRMN
ERUBREERMEE CRAEDD) &
BEAETREGEVBERRELEEM
DAWHHR ARG EEFTARHBENH
FAAMEE NERRGEAVBHRETF
EHARNRFFAERMEBMERNBRR

[

;)l[o

ERESEVHERRE EFA B
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MTRBEFELEABNER ARE
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B BEEEBRERIFLELE HHEEM
EREMBER TR

EFXREEE ESEVKREER-F
REEERUE T HBEERTHEE-

BEAHERAR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
BB HRES (&)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our terms of
our engagement and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

GoFintech Innovation Limited
Annual Report 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuea

° conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

° evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a2 manner that achieves fair presentation.

° obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

BAZBMBEE (&)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
BURBEHRES (&)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants
Chan Wing Fai

Practising Certificate no. P05443

Hong Kong, 27 July 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GcEREmENRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 # %

Lfth 2 W am R

CE =A==+ —HIFFE

2023 2022
—s=-= —E- =
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
&R FATT
Revenue WA 5, 6 26,943 58,487
Net investment losses BB FR 10 (4,630) (3,151)
Cost of brokerage and other services #& 42 B2 EH b iR 75 ~ B K (6,012) (24,942)
Other income H bl A 7 3,330 2,146
Expected credit losses (“ECL”) EWEFKE FEWEERZ
on loan and trade receivables, net EHEESE ([BHEE
BBl 8 (16,717) (5,425)
Impairment loss BB RS 18 (1,005) (17,586)
Staff costs B TR 10 (42,575) (51,702)
Other operating expenses Ha g 10 (13,916) (25,770)
Finance costs LR YN 9 (5,136) (11,570)
Share of profits/(losses) of associates J& 1k B & X &)@ &, (E518) 855 9)
Share of losses of joint ventures EiE&ERREE - (12)
Loss before tax BRBLATE R 10 (58,863) (79,534)
Income tax credit FRiS T & 11 8 225
Loss for the year rFEERFE (58,855) (79,309)
Other comprehensive income Hib2E W=
Items that may be reclassified BEE A ER TR E 1B am R
subsequently to profit or loss: EH :
Exchange differences arising on BREBINEBEEZELZR
translation of foreign operations (123) 144
Share of other comprehensive JE(hE N B M2 mE
(expense)/income of associates (FA%) k= (6,254) 2,605
Share of other comprehensive e & AR HMEEE
income of joint ventures - 43
Release of share of other HERNBREGEE QR
comprehensive income of joint HEzmilis
ventures upon disposal - 68
(6,377) 2,860
Total comprehensive expense AEELHEHBXERE
for the year (65,232) (76,449)
HK cents HK cents
Al AL
Loss per share for loss ARABEBANELEEZ
attributable to owners of BREE
the Company
Basic BN 14 (5.58) (8.66)
Diluted b 5 14 (5.58) (8.66)

HE= R AR A A
—EC-FFR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B IR R

As at 31 March 2023 R —ZZE - =#¢=H=+—H

2023 2022
—E-= —_=__
Notes HK$’000 HK$’ 000
B 7 FE&T FAT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property and equipment YE KRB 15 - -
Goodwill HE 16 - -
Other non-current assets HiIEmB & E 17 6,815 6,978
Interests in associates AN RNEC] D - 18 99,647 105,046
Interests in joint ventures REERNRZER 19 - -
106,462 112,024
Current assets REBEE
Financial assets at fair value EAFEIAERE
through profit or loss (‘FVTPL”) (BAFEIIAEBRE])
ZEMEE 20 71,491 5,391
Loan and trade receivables JEWE RN E 5 EWIRER 21 42,644 98,264
Contract assets BREE 22 17 -
Other receivables, deposits and Hih R I - ZE Rk
prepayments T8 -+ 2B 23 6,346 21,006
Tax recoverable A] Ui 2§ 3R 151 2,171
Bank balances and cash — trust RITHEBNIBS - 55 24(a) 136,902 175,336
Bank balances and cash — general ~ SRIT&SNIRE - — K 24(b) 111,748 190,418
369,299 492,586
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade payables, other payables B SRR AT 5RE
and accruals T EEE 25 141,682 179,461
Contract liabilities BHAEE 22 - 419
Lease liabilities HEBRE 26 5,468 6,790
Loan payables BB R 27 - 100,458
Convertible bonds Al R (E 5 28 - -
Corporate bonds NAEESH 29 29,185 33,007
Tax payable JEZBIE 834 1,266
177,169 321,401
Net current assets RBEEFEE 192,130 171,185
Total assets less current liabilities EEZAERABHERE 298,592 283,209

GoFintech Innovation Limited
Annual Report 2023



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)
mEMBRRER (K)

As at 31 March 2023 R —ZE =4 =H=+—H

2023 2022
—E_-=F =z
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 7 FET FAT
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Lease liabilities HEBE 26 106 4,831
Corporate bonds NEMEFH 29 2,017 30,519
2,123 35,350
Net assets EEFE 296,469 247,859
Capital and reserves EXRf#EiE
Share capital f& 75 30 131,797 91,531
Reserves w1 164,672 156,328
Total equity DR 206,469 247,859
LIU Zhiwei LIU Haoyuan
MEE MRE
Chairman Director
*E EE

HE= R AR A A
—EC-FFR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

RE

EEBEHE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z —F ==

—F=H=1—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RATHREAEL
Convertible
Share Share Translation bond Special Capital Other Accumulated Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserves  reserve  reserve  reserve losses equity
TRRES
R  RGEE EXRE fiE  BREE EXEE  HERE 2HEE  ERED
HK§000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
Tén  Thn  TExr  TEn  TEr  FEnr  TEn Tér  Tén
At 1 April 2021 R-E--%¥MA-H 91,531 689,003 (3,530) 5,161 13,524 1,863 (3,440) (469,804) 324,308
Loss for the year TEEER - - - - - (19309)  (79,309)
Other comprehensive income for the year: TEREM2ENE:
Exchange differences arising on translation of BEBNEREEZERER
foreign operations - - 144 - - - - - 144
Share of other comprehensive income EEBENTEM2ENE
of associates - - 2,605 - - - - - 2,605
Share of other comprehensive income EhaERRit2ENE
of joint ventures - - 43 - - - - - 43
Release of share of other comprenensive income ~ HEB BB EEALATEL,
of joint ventures upon disposal 2N - - 68 - - - - - 68
Total comprehensive income for the year TEERENGEE - - 2,860 - - - - (79,309)  (76,449)
Lapse of conversion option at maturity (note 28 EIERE R RIER M (M 528) - - - (5,161) - - - 5,161 -
At 31 March 2022 RZZE--%=f=1-H 91,631 689,003 (670) - 13,524 1,863 (3,440) (543,952) 247,859
At 1 April 2022 RZEZ-%RA-A 91,531 689,003 (670) - 13,524 1,863 (3,440) (543,952) 247,859
Loss for the year TEEEE - - - - - - - (58,855) (58,855
Other comprehensive income for the year: TEEEM2ENE:
Exchange differences arising on translation BEBNERELEZERER
of foreign operations - - (123) - - - - - (123
Share of other comprehensive income BN ALb2ENE
of associates - - (6,254) - - - - - 6,254)
Total comprehensive income for the year FEE2ENGESR - - (6,377) - - - - (58,855)  (65,232)
Issue of shares ERki 40,066 73,576 - - - - - - 113882
At 31 March 2023 “ECCEZAS-B 13797 762579 (7,047) - 13524 1860 (3440)  (602807) 296,469

GoFintech Innovation Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

2023 2022
—E-=F -
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 7 FExT FAET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXEWK
Loss before tax B %4 A1 &5 18 (58,863) (79,534)
Adjustments for: KRB T&E:
Bad debt written off on trade o REMBRFIA L
and other receivables bikich=i 10 136 570
Impairment loss BEEE 15, 16 1,005 17,586
Depreciation of property and MEREBITE
equipment 15 - 1,856
Depreciation of right-of-use CRAEEENE
assets 15 - 7,773
Dividend income g B A - (229)
Finance costs B & R AR 9 5,136 11,670
Interest income ) B YA (1,359) (239)
ECL on loan and trade R EFKE FEWEER
receivables, net ZIEBREEERFHE 8 16,717 5,425
Net investment losses B RIEFRE 10 4,630 3,151
Gain on disposal of joint ventures HEAE QA 2 WE 19 - (57)
Share of (profits)/losses of FEEEEZE AR (HF)
associates &8 (855) 9
Share of losses of joint ventures JE1E & & RRIEE - 12
Operating cash flow before EEESEHAIZRERS
movements in working capital RE (33,453) (32,107)
Decrease in other non-current assets £ b 3F 7 81 & & &l 25 -
Decrease in financial assets BAFEINABREZ S
at FVTPL BERD 4,920 93,448
Decrease in loan receivables JE U B FOm 33,574 39,877
Decrease in trade receivables B 5 e W BR TOR 5,329 8,148
(Increase)/decrease in contract assets & £)& & (# ) /@D (17) 519
Decrease in other receivables, Ha W FIE e RBEMNKIE
deposits and prepayments B 14,524 6,528
Decrease in bank balances and RITHEB RIS - FERD
cash — trust 38,434 92,083
Decrease in trade payables, BSREMNEF HMEMNRER
other payables and accruals FEET & R (37,779) (114,449)
Decrease in financial ERAFEINAEBRZERE SR
liabilities at FVTPL BERD - (1,180)
(Decrease)/increase in contract GHEE D) g
liabilities (419) 39
Cash generated from operation KEEBHERS 25,138 92,906
Dividend income received 2R B U A - 229
Income tax refunded R E SR 1,596 1,989
NET CASH GENERATED FROM REXBHBRESFH
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 26,734 95,124

HE= R AR A A
—EC-FFR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
%Aiﬁrﬁ/)lbié‘% ( mﬁ)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 — £ -~ =4 =H=+—H I F/&Z

2023 2022
—E-=H g
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
(=2 TERT FHETT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE
Interest received B UF B 1,359 239
Proceeds from disposal of ﬁgﬁ?ﬁ$1§7ilu\ﬁ@
financial asset at FVOCI PENGEZEREE
FT1S 3B 138 -
Purchases of financial assets E§A$§@$TE§W\TE SER 2
at FVTPL TREE (75,650) -
Purchases of property and BAMEREE
equipment 15 - (130)
Proceeds from disposal of HEAERNEZMEHIE
joint ventures 19 - 1,220
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED &8 (FiH) /Fi8BE &
FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES HEE (74,153) 1,329
FINANCING ACTIVITIES REEE
Redemption of convertible bonds fE [0 A] 2 % (& 5 28 (22,260)
Repayment of loans BEEX (300,000) (522,553)
Repayment of corporate bonds EEARES (32,000) (67,500)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEfHEasE (7,052) (8, 229)
Proceeds from issuance of shares BT 2 TS5k IA 113,842
Proceeds from loans /\/TAZF)??%/JXIE 200,000 461 ,701
Interests paid B FE (5,918) (11,188)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ®BEZBFARSERE
ACTIVITIES (31,128) (170,029)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND ReRESEEYZRLDFRE
CASH EQUIVALENTS (78,547) (73,576)
Effect of foreign currency translation SN E > 222 (123) 144
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS S {IzRE¢RELZEY
AT THE BEGINNING OF
THE YEAR 190,418 263,850
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HFR&HERREZEY:
AT THE END OF THE YEAR,
represented by bank balances BIRTHEBRRES - — R
and cash — general 24(b) 111,748 190,418

GoFintech Innovation Limited
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1.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as
an exempted company with limited liability and its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the corporate information section of this annual
report.

The Company is an investment holding company and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in securities and
insurance brokerage, equity investment, asset management,
corporate finance, margin financing and money lending
services.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency
of the Company. Figures are rounded up to the nearest
thousand unless otherwise specified.

These consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2023 were approved by the Board on 27 July
2023.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These annual consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and the accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

nH

BB RERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 — £ -~ =4 =H=+—H I F/&Z

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continueq)

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are summarised below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented
unless otherwise stated. The adoption of new and
amended HKFRSs and the impacts on the Group’s
financial statements, if any, are disclosed in note 3.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for the
financial instruments classified as at FVTPL and fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”),
which are stated at fair values. The measurement bases
are fully described in the accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates
and assumptions are used in preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. Although these
estimates are based on management’s best knowledge
and judgment of current events and actions, actual
results may ultimately differ from those estimates.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements
are disclosed in note 4.

2.2 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 March each year.

GoFintech Innovation Limited
Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBMRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 2 —F - =F = H=+—HIFFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. = E S5 BXK 4

(Continued)

hiy

2.2 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (continuea) 22 e EE ()
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The WEB AR ABRAEEZEHMNE
Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed, or B-AEEAXXZTHLEE

has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power over the entity, only
substantive rights relating to the entity (held by the
Group and others) are considered.

The Group includes the income and expenses of a
subsidiary in the consolidated financial statements from
the date it gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
and losses on transactions between group companies
are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Where unrealised losses on sales of intra-
group asset sales are reversed on consolidation, the
underlying asset is also tested for impairment from the
Group’s perspective. Amounts reported in the financial
statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted where
necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting
policies adopted by the Group.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (i) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
subsidiaries are carried at cost less any impairment
loss unless the subsidiary is held for sale or included in
a disposal group. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMB|RRME (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —FE = =F =H=+—HIFZ

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
2.2 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (continueq)

The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable at the reporting date. All dividends whether
received out of the investee’s pre or post-acquisition
profits are recognised in the Company’s profit or loss.

2.3 ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence, which is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee but is not control or joint control of those
policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the arrangement. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
relating about relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

GoFintech Innovation Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBMRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 2 —F - =F = H=+—HIFFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. = E S5 BXK 4

(Continued)

hiy

2.3 ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES 23BELNGREE LT

&y

(Continued)

In consolidated financial statements, an investment in
an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised
at cost and subsequently accounted for using the
equity method. Any excess of the cost of acquisition
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of
the associate or joint venture recognised at the date of
acquisition is recognised as goodwill. The goodwill is
included within the carrying amount of the investment
and is assessed for impairment as part of the
investment. The cost of acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange,
of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed and
equity instruments issued by the Group, plus any costs
directly attributable to the investment. Any excess of
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the
cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the determination of
the Group’s share of the associate or joint venture’s
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

Under the equity method, the Group’s interest in
the associate or joint venture is carried at cost and
adjusted for the post-acquisition changes in the
Group’s share of the associate or joint venture’s net
assets less any identified impairment loss, unless
it is classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale).
The profit or loss for the year includes the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
associate or joint venture for the year, including any
impairment loss on the investment in associate or joint
venture recognised for the year. The Group’s other
comprehensive income for the year includes its share
of the associate or joint venture’s other comprehensive
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBRRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 — £ -~ =4 =H=+—H I F/&Z

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.3 ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

(Continued)

Where the associate or joint venture uses accounting
policies other than those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances,
adjustments are made, where necessary, to conform
the associate or joint venture’s accounting policies
to those of the Group when the associate or joint
venture’s financial statements are used by the Group in
applying the equity method.

When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
or a joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in
the associate or joint venture, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate or joint venture. For this purpose,
the Group’s interest in the associate or joint venture
is the carrying amount of the investment under the
equity method together with the Group’s long-term
interests that in substance form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate or joint venture.

After the application of equity method, the Group
determines whether it is necessary to recognise an
additional impairment loss on the Group’s investment
in its associates or joint venture. At each reporting
date, the Group determines whether there is any
objective evidence that the investment in associate
or joint venture is impaired. If such indications
are identified, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as being the difference between the
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) of the associate or joint
venture and its carrying amount. In determining the
value in use of the investment, the Group estimates
its share of the present value of the estimated future
cash flows expected to be generated by the associate
or joint venture, including cash flows arising from the
operations of the associate or joint venture and the
proceeds on ultimate disposal of the investment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

2.3 ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

(Continued)

The Group discontinues the use of equity method from
the date when it ceases to have significant influence
over an associate or joint control over a joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates and joint ventures are stated
at cost less impairment losses, unless classified as held
for sale or included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale.

2.4 GOODWILL

Set out below are the accounting policies on goodwill
arising on acquisition of a subsidiary. Accounting for
goodwill arising on acquisition of investment in an
associate or a joint venture is set out in note 2.3.

Goodwill arising in a business combination is
recognised as an asset at the date that control is
acquired (the acquisition date). Goodwill is measured
as the excess of the aggregate of the fair value of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree (if any) over the Group’s interest in the
net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

If, after reassessment, the Group’s interest in the fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FES5THEK »)

(Continued)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBHRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 — & —

ZF=A=1—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.4 GOODWILL (Continued)

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
(“CGUs") and is tested annually for impairment (note
2.20).

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of gain or loss on
disposal.

2.5 SHARE CAPITAL

2.6

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have
been issued, after deducting any transaction costs
associated with the issuing of shares (net of any related
income tax benefit) to the extent they are incremental
cost directly attributable to the equity transaction.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue arises mainly from the commission income for
securities and insurance brokerage, advisory services
for asset management, corporate finance and interest
income for money lending, margin financing and asset

management.

To determine whether to recognise revenue, the Group
follows a 5-step process:

1. Identifying the contract with a customer
2. ldentifying the performance obligations
3.  Determining the transaction price

4. Allocating the transaction price to the performance
obligations
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mAEMBRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. T ESFTBXK (#)

(Continued)

2.6 REVENUE RECOGNITION (continueq) 2.6 WATER (#)

5.  Recognising revenue when/as performance
obligation(s) are satisfied.

In all cases, the total transaction price for a contract is
allocated amongst the various performance obligations
based on their relative stand-alone selling prices. The
transaction price for a contract excludes any amounts
collected on behalf of third parties.

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over
time, when (or as) the Group satisfies performance
obligations by transferring the promised goods or
services to its customers.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

Commission income for brokerage and margin
financing

The Group provides securities dealing and brokerage,
placing and underwriting services. Commission income
from securities dealing and brokerage, placing and
underwriting services are recognised at a point in
time on the execution date of the trades at a certain
percentage of the transaction value of the trades
executed and the relevant placing and underwriting are
completed.

Dividend income for equity investment

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.6 REVENUE RECOGNITION (continueq)

Advisory services for asset management,
equity investment and corporate finance
services income

The Group provides advisory services for asset
management, equity investment and corporate finance
services which included advisory services and sponsor
services. Depending on the nature of the services and
the contract terms, the revenue for advisory service is
recognised over time based on the services transferred
to customer up to date if one of the following criteria is
met:

- The customers simultaneously receive and
consume the benefit provided by the Group;

- The Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customers control as the asset
is created and enhanced; or

- The Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use and the Group has
a right to payment at an amount that reasonably
compensates it for its performance completed to
date at all times throughout the contract.

Otherwise, the revenue for advisory service is
recognised in time when the service is completed.

The Group treats all sponsor services promised in
the contract as a single performance obligation.
In determining the timing of satisfaction of the
performance obligation, the Group examines its
services on contract basis and considers that it has
a right to payment at an amount that reasonably
compensates it for its performance completed to date
at all times throughout the contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBHRERME (K)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. T ESFTBXK (#)

(Continued)

2.6 REVENUE RECOGNITION (continueq) 2.6 WATER (#)

Advisory services for asset management,
equity investment and corporate finance
services income (Continued)

Sponsor services are recognised over time during
the course of the work performed by the Group, with
reference to the time incurred compared with the time
budget, which depict the Group’s performance towards
satisfying the performance obligation.

Interest income for money lending, margin
financing, asset management and equity
investment

The Group provides services for money lending and
margin financing and invests in debt securities under
asset management business. Interest income is
recognised on a time proportion basis by using the
effective interest method.

Revenue for consultancy and insurance
brokerage

The Group provided consultancy services to customers.
The customers simultaneously receive and consume
the benefit provided by the Group, hence the revenue is
recognised over time based on the services transferred
to customers up to date.

The Group also provided insurance brokerage.
Commission income for insurance brokerage is
recognised at a point in time on execution date of the
insurance contracts executed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBRRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —FE = =F =H=+—HIFZ

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.7 LEASES

Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee

At inception of a contract, the Group considers whether
a contract is, or contains a lease. A lease is defined as
‘a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right
to use an identified asset (the underlying asset) for a
period of time in exchange for consideration’. To apply
this definition, the Group assesses whether the contract
meets three key evaluations which are whether:

° the contract contains an identified asset, which
is either explicitly identified in the contract or
implicitly specified by being identified at the time
the asset is made available to the Group;

° the Group has the right to obtain substantially all
of the economic benefits from use of the identified
asset throughout the period of use, considering
its rights within the defined scope of the contract;
and

° the Group has the right to direct the use of the
identified asset throughout the period of use. The
Group assess whether it has the right to direct
‘how and for what purpose’ the asset is used
throughout the period of use.

For contracts that contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each lease and non-lease component on the basis of
their relative stand-alone prices.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBMRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FES5THEK »)

(Continued)

2.7 LEASES (continuead) 2.7 HHE (#)

Measurement and recognition of leases as a
lessee

At lease commencement date, the Group recognises
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the
consolidated statement of financial position. The right-
of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of
the initial measurement of the lease liability, any initial
direct costs incurred by the Group, an estimate of any
costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset at
the end of the lease, and any lease payments made in
advance of the lease commencement date (net of any
lease incentives received).

The Group depreciates the right-of-use assets on a
straight-line basis from the lease commencement date
to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-
of-use asset or the end of the lease term unless the
Group is reasonably certain to obtain ownership at the
end of the lease term. The Group also assesses the
right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicator
exists.

At the commencement date, the Group measures the
lease liability at the present value of the lease payments
unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group’s incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the
lease liability are made up of fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable payments based on an index or
rate, and amounts expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBRRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —FE = =F =H=+—HIFZ

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.7 LEASES (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of leases as a
lessee (Continued)

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be
reduced for lease payments made and increased for
interest cost on the lease liability. It is remeasured to
reflect any reassessment or lease modification, or if
there are changes in in-substance fixed payments.

When the lease is remeasured, the corresponding
adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset, or
profit or loss if the right-of-use asset is already reduced
to zero.

For any rent concessions which arose as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and which
satisfied the conditions set out in paragraph 46B of
HKFRS 16 “Lease”, the Group took advantage of the
practical expedient set out in paragraph 46A of HKFRS
16 and recognised the change in consideration as if it
were not a lease modification.

The Group has elected to account for short-term leases
using the practical expedients. Instead of recognising
a right-of-use asset and lease liability, the payments in
relation to these leases are recognised as an expense
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of
12 months or less.

On the consolidated statement of financial position,
right-of-use assets have been included in property and
equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mAEMBRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FES5FTHEK =

(Continued)

2.7 LEASES (continuead) 2.7 HHE (#)

Measurement and recognition of leases as a
lessee (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted for
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included
in the cost of right-of-use assets.

2.8 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (HK$), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency of the individual entity
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the reporting date, monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that
date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
reporting date retranslation of monetary assets and
liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated (i.e. only translated using the exchange
rates at the transaction date).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBRRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —FE = =F =H=+—HIFZ

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.8 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

(Continued)

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into
Hong Kong dollars. Assets and liabilities have been
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing rates
at the reporting date. Income and expenses have
been converted into the Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates, or at
the average rates over the reporting period provided
that the exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly.
Any differences arising from this procedure have
been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in the translation reserve in
equity.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation have been treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing rates.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, loss of joint control over a
joint venture that includes a foreign operation, or loss
of significant influence over an associate that includes
a foreign operation), all of the accumulated exchange
differences in respect of that operation attributable
to the Group are reclassified to profit or loss. Any
exchange differences that have previously been
attributed to non-controlling interests are derecognised,
but they are not reclassified to profit or loss.

2.9 BORROWING COSTS

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBMRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. T ESFTBXK (#)

(Continued)

2.10 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 210 1ES 5 7

Retirement benefits EHRER
Retirement benefits to employees are provided through BERKBEMNIDBEBTEMER
defined contribution plans. FHEIR At

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement
benefit plans under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, for all of its employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government.
These subsidiary are required to contribute certain
percentages of its payroll costs to the central pension
scheme.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss as employees render services during the year. The
Group’s obligations under these plans are limited to the
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Short-term employee benefits EHEEER

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the reporting
date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick
leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

BEERZEZFBENERANZH
ZEBRUKER -REERE
AHEE REEHRSE M A= F
Rz TR EFEL -

FBRERS BB BN A
BB TR -

BEAHERAR
SEBECC-FFR

177



178

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBRRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —FE = =F =H=+—HIFZ

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

211 ACCOUNTING FOR INCOME TAXES

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period, that
are unpaid at the reporting date. They are calculated
according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to
the fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the
taxable profit for the year. All changes to current tax
assets or liabilities are recognised as a component of
tax expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on
temporary differences at the reporting date between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and their respective
tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, tax losses available to be carried
forward as well as other unused tax credits, to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit, including
existing taxable temporary differences, will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be
utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither taxable nor accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBMRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FES5THEK »)

(Continued)

211 ACCOUNTING FOR INCOME TAXES L1 e 2 &5t iz HE

(Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period the
liability is settled or the asset realised, provided they
are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss, or in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity if they relate to items that
are charged or credited to other comprehensive income
or directly in equity.

When different tax rates apply to different levels of
taxable income, deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured using the average tax rates that are expected
to apply to the taxable income of the periods in which
the temporary differences are expected to reverse.

The determination of the average tax rates requires an
estimation of (i) when the existing temporary differences
will reverse and (i) the amount of future taxable profit
in those years. The estimate of future taxable profit
includes:

- income or loss excluding reversals of temporary
differences; and

- reversals of existing temporary differences.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are
presented in net if, and only if,

(@) the Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off the recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMB|RRME (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —FE = =F =H=+—HIFZ

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

211 ACCOUNTING FOR INCOME TAXES

(Continued)

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities in net if, and only if,

(@) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities;
and

(o) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either:

()  the same taxable entity; or

(i)  different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets
on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered.

212 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment (other than cost of right-of-use
assets as described in note 2.7) are initially recognised
at acquisition cost. They are subsequently stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any.

GoFintech Innovation Limited
Annual Report 2023

2. FESFTHE 2

21 BB 2B B (#)

AEEEENTBRAFES
SIRERIAE EMELERAER

CE

(@)

ZEBERIEB B BIRITHE
A] LA % B B AR TR & A 2R AD
HITBERELHH &

BT TR E E MRELER IR
BERENRE—HREKE
h DA TS AR ] — TR P U Y
RS

() BE—ERREE: X

(i FERZTRKHAM
(B H £ A B H
P 4E 5 U B K R
MIEER IR BELE
E)NFREERE
R BEREREE
k[R5 IR B E KA
BRENTRERD

=
B

212 Y ER K

W E NG (a2 7pr il 2 2
A #E B B RN BR S ) 70 28 1
BRAER - cPERIEKA
R ITERRERE (NF)
5l B -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBMRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FES5THEK »)

(Continued)

2.12 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continueq) 22 YERR M (#)

Depreciation on property and equipment is provided
to write off the cost less their residual values, if any,
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method, at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements Shorter of remaining

MERREBZIMEAERER
EEFAERFHRARBOTF
R 5 DA 0 8H B SR EL R £R (B
B(WmE) :

HEWMEREKE HIHEHX

lease term or expected 3F 2 TEH

useful life of 3 years A]fsf A AR

ZEEE

Furniture and fixtures 25% per annum REREEEE FF25%
Office equipment 25% per annum WRERME FF25%
Motor vehicles 25% per annum AE FF25%
Right-of-use assets Remaining lease term FREEE #HTHEH

The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods and
useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at each reporting date.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal
is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance, are charged to profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBERRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —FE = =F =H=+—HIFZ

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
213 CLUB MEMBERSHIP

The club membership are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

2.14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (OTHER THAN
GOODWILL)

Acquired intangible assets are recognised initially at
cost. After initial recognition, intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any
subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets, with indefinite useful lives, are tested
for impairment as described below in note 2.20.

2.15 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank -
general and in hand, demand deposits with banks
and short term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of bank
balances and cash as defined in note 24.

Deposits with banks or other financial institutions with a
maturity of more than three months and within one year
at acquisition are classified as short-term deposits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBMRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FES5THEK »)

(Continued)

2.16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 216 2@ T A

Financial assets TREE
Recognition and derecognition SRR AU B

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,
or when the financial asset and substantially all of its
risks and rewards are transferred. A financial liability
is derecognised when it is extinguished, discharged,
cancelled or expires.

Classification and initial measurement of financial
assets

Except for those trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component and are measured
at the transaction price in accordance with HKFRS
15, the Group’s financial assets are initially measured
at fair value, in case of a financial asset not at FVTPL,
plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs
of financial assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

The Group’s financial assets are classified into at
amortised cost or FVTPL or FVOCI. The classification
is determined by both, the entity’s business model for
managing the financial asset and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBRRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —FE = =F =H=+—HIFZ

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continueq)

2. TEGFHHER

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and initial measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

All income and expenses relating to financial assets
those are recognised in profit or loss are presented
within other income and finance costs, except for ECL
of loan and trade receivables and other financial assets
measured at amortised cost which are presented as
separate line item in the profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets

Debt investments
Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if
the assets meet the following conditions (and are not
designated as FVTPL):

- they are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold the financial assets and collect
its contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial assets give
rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

After initial recognition, these are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest income from these financial assets are included
in profit or loss. Discounting is omitted where the
effect of discounting is immaterial. The Group’s bank
balances and cash — trust and general, loan and trade
receivables and other receivables and deposits fall into
this category of financial instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBMRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. T ESFTBXK (#)

(Continued)

2.16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuec) 216 @ T A (#)

Financial assets (Continued)

Subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Debt investments (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets those are held within a different
business model other than “hold to collect” or “hold
to collect and sell” are categorised at FVTPL. Further,
irrespective of business model, financial assets whose
contractual cash flows are not solely payments of
principal and interest are accounted for at FVTPL. All
derivative financial instrument fall into this category.

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading
purposes and on initial recognition of the investment,
the Group elects to designate the investment at FVOCI
(non-recycling) such that subsequent changes in fair
value are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in “Fair value reserve — non-recycling”
in equity.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right
to receive the dividends is established. Dividends are
included in revenue line item in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBRRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —FE = =F =H=+—HIFZ

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2. TEGFHHER

2.16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuec)

Financial liabilities
Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables,
other payables and accruals, loan payables, lease
liabilities, corporate bonds, convertible bonds and
financial liabilities at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities (other than lease liabilities) are initially
measured at fair value, and where applicable, adjusted
for transaction costs unless the Group designated a
financial liability at FVTPL.

Subsequently, financial liabilities (other than lease
liabilities) are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, except for derivatives which
are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships, which are carried subsequently at fair
value with gains or losses recognised in profit or loss.

All interest-related charges reported in profit or loss are
included in finance costs.

Accounting policies of lease liabilities are set out in
note 2.7.

Borrowings [including loan payables and corporate
bonds)

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBMRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FES5THEK »)

(Continued)

2.16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuec) 216 @ T A (#)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Borrowings [including loan payables and corporate
bonds] (Continued)

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
date.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds those can be converted to equity
share capital at the option of the holder, where the
number of shares that would be issued on conversion
and the value of the consideration that would be
received at the time do not vary, are accounted for as
compound financial instruments which contain both a
liability component and an equity component.
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the fair value of the liability component is determined
using the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-
convertible debts. The difference between the proceeds
of the issue of the convertible bond and the fair value
assigned to the liability component, representing the
call option for conversion of the bond into equity, is
included in equity as convertible bond reserves.

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The equity component will remain in equity until
conversion or redemption of the bond.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuec)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Borrowings [including loan payables and corporate
bonds] (Continued)

Convertible bonds (Continued)

When the bond is converted, the equity component of
convertible bond and the carrying value of the liability
component at the time of conversion are transferred
to share capital and share premium as consideration
for the shares issued. If the bond is redeemed, the
convertible bond reserves are released directly to
accumulated losses.

Trade payables and other payables and accruals

They are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

They represent derivative financial instruments and are
recognised at fair value at the end of each reporting
period with gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities of the Group are offset
and the net amount reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position when, and only when,
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBMRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. T ESFTBXK (#)

(Continued)

2.16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuec) 216 @ T A (#)

Determination of Fair Value

The fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair values of quoted
financial assets and financial liabilities in active
markets are based on current bid prices and ask
prices, as appropriate. If there is no active market,
the Group establishes fair value by using valuation
techniques. These include the uses of recent arm’s
length transactions, observable market data, and
other valuation techniques commonly used by market
participants.

The Group uses the valuation techniques commonly
used by market participants to price financial
instruments and techniques which have been
demonstrated to provide reliable estimates of prices
obtained in actual market transactions. The Group
makes use of all factors that market participants would
consider in setting a price, and incorporates these into
its chosen valuation techniques and tests for validity
using prices from any observable current market
transactions in the same instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBRRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —FE = =F =H=+—HIFZ

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.17 IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

HKFRS 9’s impairment requirements use more forward-

looking information to recognise ECL - the “ECL
model”. Instruments within the scope included loans
and other debt-type financial assets measured at
amortised cost and trade receivables and contract
assets recognised and measured under HKFRS 15.

The Group considers a broader range of information
when assessing credit risk and measuring ECL,
including past events, current conditions, reasonable
and supportable forecasts that affect the expected
collectability of the future cash flows of the instrument.

In applying this forward-looking approach, a distinction
is made between:

- financial instruments that have not deteriorated
significantly in credit quality since initial
recognition or that have low credit risk (“Stage 17)
and

- financial instruments that have deteriorated
significantly in credit quality since initial
recognition and whose credit risk is not low
(“Stage 2”).

“Stage 3” would cover financial assets that have
objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date.

“12-month ECL” are recognised for the Stage 1
category while “lifetime ECL” are recognised for the
Stage 2 category.

Measurement of the ECL is determined by a probability-
weighted estimate of credit losses over the expected
life of the financial instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBMRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FES5THEK »)

(Continued)

2.17 IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 211 2@ EERME (&)

(Continued)

Trade receivables (excluded margin financing)
and contract assets

For trade receivables (excluded margin financing), the
Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECL
and recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime
ECL at each reporting date. These are the expected
shortfalls in contractual cash flows, considering the
potential for default at any point during the life of the
financial assets. In calculating the ECL, the Group
established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience and external indicators,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

To measure the ECL, trade receivables (excluded
margin financing) and contract assets have been
grouped based on the days past due. The contract
assets relate to unbilled work in progress and have
substantially the same risk characteristics as the
trade receivables for the same types of contracts. The
Group has therefore concluded that the ECL rates
for trade receivables (excluded margin financing) are
a reasonable approximation of the loss rates for the
contract assets.

The Group measures the loss allowance on other
financial assets measured at amortised cost (including
regulatory deposits, loan receivables, margin financing
receivables, other receivables and deposits and bank
balances — trust and general) equal to 12-month ECL,
unless when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognised is based on significant increase
in the likelihood or risk of default occurring since initial
recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMB|RRME (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 — £ -~ =4 =H=+—H I F/&Z

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.17 IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

(Continued)

Other financial assets measured at amortised
cost

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of default occurring on the financial
assets at the reporting date with the risk of default
occurring on the financial assets at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

- significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions those are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mAEMBRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. T ESFTBXK (#)

(Continued)

2.17 IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 217 THEEERE (%)

(Continued)

Other financial assets measured at amortised
cost (Continued)

- an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
end of each reporting period. A debt instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if it has a low risk of
default, the borrower has strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and
adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfill its contractual cash
flow obligations.

Hi R RHRAH R SR
WE (#)

- EBANEE KEBEIR

MREWERLAHRNE
RAFE L EHEHA
BRI RIE T -

Ew DA EEREMA KA
HRIBC B HIBB0OKRE  N&E
ERREERRA YL ERIA
RABIEN ERNEEEFGIE
EXFHHE2EHMEBR NI
angt - A 55 16 Bl o

e R & s R
TEBIANGERRBE.
AEBRREKEIANEER
% B ) 25 HE AR A SR I R 7 IR
mefmZHRABREE ERAR
BABENERHABRTHAL
BeREET BEBERER
R RBAMES A8 (B
AB)EREBERABITEAS
MBS RERGED  AlE
EEBTANEERRBRBRIE-

HE= R AR A A
—EC-FFR

193



194

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.17 IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

(Continued)

Other financial assets measured at amortised
cost (Continued)

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when contractual
payment are 90 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate. In certain cases, the Group may also
consider a financial asset is default when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account
any collateral held by the Group).

Detailed analysis of the ECL assessment of trade
receivables and other financial assets measured at
amortised cost are set out in note 34(b).

2.18 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT

LIABILITIES

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognizes revenue (see note 2.6) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration under the
payment terms set out in the contract. Contract assets
are assessed for ECL in accordance with the policy
set out in note 2.17 and are reclassified to receivables
when the right to the consideration has become
unconditional (see note 2.16).
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2. FESFTHE 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mAEMBRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 {2 = E = =F=H=+—HIFZE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FES5FTHEK =

(Continued)

b

2.18 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 28 BN EEREGHERE

D

LIABILITIES (Continueq)

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue (see note 2.6). A contract liability would
also be recognised if the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration before the Group
recognizes the related revenue. In such cases, a
corresponding receivable would also be recognised
(see note 2.16).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented.
For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on a
net basis.

2.19 PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of the
obligation can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present value of
the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.19 PROVISIONS (Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
uncertain events not wholly within the control of the
Group, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

The following assets are subject to impairment testing:

° Goodwill arising on acquisition of a subsidiary;

° Property and equipment (including right-of-use
assets);

° Other intangible assets;

° Club membership; and

° The Company’s interests in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures.

Goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite
useful life or those not yet available for use are tested
for impairment at least annually, irrespective of whether
there is any indication that they are impaired. All other
assets are tested for impairment whenever there are
indications that the asset’s carrying amount may not
be recoverable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBMRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 2 —F - =F = H=+—HIFFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. = E S5 BXK 4

(Continued)

hiy

2.19 PROVISIONS (continueq)

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
reflecting market conditions less costs of disposal, and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessment of time value of money and the risk
specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e., a CGU). As a result, some assets
are tested individually for impairment and some are
tested at CGU level. Goodwill in particular is allocated
to those CGUs that are expected to benefit from
synergies of the related business combination and
represent the lowest level within the Group at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purpose
and not be larger than an operating segment.

Impairment losses recognised for CGUs, to which
goodwill has been allocated, are credited initially to the
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be reduced below its individual fair value less cost of
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMB|RRME (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 — & —

ZF=A=1—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.19 PROVISIONS (Continued)

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods. In respect of other assets,
an impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount and only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss
had been recognised.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller
loss, would have been recognised had the impairment
been assessed only at the end of the financial year to
which the interim period relates.

220 IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL

ASSETS [OTHER THAN CONTRACT
ASSETS)

The following assets are subject to impairment testing:
o Goodwill arising on acquisition of a subsidiary;

° Property and equipment (including right-of-use
assets);

° Other intangible assets;
° Club membership; and

o The Company’s interests in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBMRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FES5THEK »)

(Continued)

2.20 IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL 20 2@EE (SHEE

ASSETS ([OTHER THAN CONTRACT
ASSE TS} (Continued)

Goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite
useful life or those not yet available for use are tested
for impairment at least annually, irrespective of whether
there is any indication that they are impaired. All other
assets are tested for impairment whenever there are
indications that the asset’s carrying amount may not
be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
reflecting market conditions less costs of disposal, and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessment of time value of money and the risk
specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e., a CGU). As a result, some assets
are tested individually for impairment and some are
tested at CGU level. Goodwill in particular is allocated
to those CGUs that are expected to benefit from
synergies of the related business combination and
represent the lowest level within the Group at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purpose
and not be larger than an operating segment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBHRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —FE = =F =H=+—HIFZ

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. T ESFTBXK (#)

(Continued)

2.20 IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL 20 FEMEE (EHEE
ASSETS (OTHER THAN CONTRACT BroN) B E ()
ASSE T5} (Continued)
Impairment losses recognised for CGUs, to which REPEBBZHeEAEN
goodwill has been allocated, are credited initially to the MRZBEBEV I AGE
carrying amount of goodwill. Any remaining impairment ZEEHE-BREEREAEKET
loss is charged pro rata to the other assets in the 2RBEENEER A FER
CGU, except that the carrying value of an asset will not HEKANFERAEB(WMAE
be reduced below its individual fair value less cost of BN R F R EBEZL
disposal, or value in use, if determinable. PEZReELASMN 2 HME

EH -

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in 8 2 R EBE A R T 1& E
subsequent periods. In respect of other assets, HEL -HEMEEMS WA
an impairment loss is reversed if there has been a NETEENKE S 2 Mat
favourable change in the estimates used to determine HIRBAEE HEBE TN
the asset’s recoverable amount and only to the extent BE - HEECHREETSE
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the BT EERREEEMED
carrying amount that would have been determined, net EECHREME (KMBRITEK
of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss i) o
had been recognised.
Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in RAPBHEREERRZRE
respect of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent BEIAERTREERERD A
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller FREERZTHEMEHE 2
loss, would have been recognised had the impairment R FERETREFGHET
been assessed only at the end of the financial year to EERBEXNEERRN 2B
which the interim period relates. BINAR -

221 GOVERNMENT GRANTS 221 BT H# B
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair X AT #8 Bh 7R AT & 32 B A5 1 AT IR
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the HZEMBRAEE K EBREAR
grant will be received and the Group will comply with MG AR FEHER -
all attached conditions.
Government grants relating to income is presented B A ZBUT B 25 R &R
in gross under “Other income” in the consolidated AEmkEtzEKERY 2
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive [EMU AL -

income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. T ESFTBXK (#)

(Continued)
222 SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision maker. The chief operating
decision maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the board that makes
strategic decisions.

223 RELATED PARTIES

For the purposes of these consolidated financial
statements, a party is considered to be related to the
Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and if that person:

()  has control or joint control of the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group.

(b) the party is an entity and if any of the following
conditions applies:

() the entity and the Group are members of the
same group.

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBHRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 — & —

ZF=A=1—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

223 RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

(b) the party is an entity and if any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those

family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

NEW AND AMENDED HKFRSs

AMENDED HKFRSs THAT ARE EFFECTIVE
FOR ANNUAL PERIODS BEGINNING
FROM 1 APRIL 2022

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time
the following amended HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA,
which are relevant to the Group’s operations and effective
for the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the
annual period beginning from 1 April 2022.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual

Framework

Amendments to HKAS 16 Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts —

Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020

The Group has not applied any new standard, amendments
or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current year.
The application of the above amended HKFRSs has no
material impact on the amounts reported and/or disclosures
set out in this annual report.

AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS 3 -
“REFERENCE TO THE CONCEPTUAL
FRAMEWORK”

In June 2020, the HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS
3 (Revised), which update a reference to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting without changing the
accounting requirements for business combinations.
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3. NEW AND AMENDED HKFRSs

(Continued)

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 16 - “PROCEEDS
BEFORE INTENDED USE”

The amendment to HKAS 16 prohibits an entity from
deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment any proceeds received from selling items
produced while the entity is preparing the asset for its
intended use (for example, the proceeds from selling samples
produced during the testing phase of a manufacturing
facility after it is being constructed but before start of
commercial production). The proceeds from selling such
samples, together with the costs of producing them, are now
recognised in profit or loss.

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 37 - “ONEROUS
CONTRACTS - COST OF FULFILLING A
CONTRACT”

HKAS 37 defines an onerous contract as a contract in which
the unavoidable costs (costs that the Group has committed
to pursuant to the contract) of meeting the obligations under
the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be
received under it.

The amendments to HKAS 37.68A clarify, that the costs
relating directly to the contract consist of both:

The incremental costs of fulfilling that contract: e.g. direct
labour and material; and

An allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling
contracts: e.g. allocation of depreciation charge on property,
plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract.

ANNUAL IMPROVEMENTS TO HKFRSs
2018-2020

The annual improvements amends a number of standards,
including:

HKFRS 1: Subsidiary as a First-time Adopter

HKFRS 9: Fees in the ‘10 per cent’ Test for Derecognition of
Financial liabilities

HKAS 41: Taxation in Fair Value Measurements
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mAEMBRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 {2 = E = =F=H=+—HIFZE

(Continued)

3. NEW AND AMENDED HKFRSs

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial
statements, certain new and amended HKFRSs have been

published but are not yet effective, and have not been

adopted early by the Group.
Amendment to HKAS 1
Amendment to HKAS 1
Amendment to HKAS 8
Amendment to HKAS 12
Amendment to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2
Amendment to HKFRS 16
Amendment to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28

HKFRS 17 and amendments
to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HK
Interpretations 5 (Revised)

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current®

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants®

Definition of Accounting
Estimates’

Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction’

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies’

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?®

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or
Joint Venture?

Insurance Contracts’

Initial Application of HKFRS 17
and HKFRS 9 -
Comparative Information’

Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that contains
a Repayment of Demand
Clause®
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

ma

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 — & —

3.

PR M (&)

ZF=A=1—HIFE

NEW AND AMENDED HKFRSs

(Continued)

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HKFRSs (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023.

2 The amendments shall be applied prospectively to the sale or
contribution of assets occurring in annual periods beginning
on or after a date to be determined.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024.

The directors anticipate that all of the pronouncements will
be adopted in the Group’s accounting policy for the first
annual period beginning on or after the effective date of the
pronouncement. The directors expected that the adoption
of these new and amended HKFRSs will not have a material
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 2, the directors are required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses
reported and disclosures made in the consolidated financial
statements. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING

JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(Continued)

JUDGEMENTS MADE IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Revenue recognition - sponsor services

Revenue from sponsor services is recognised over time
by reference to the progress of satisfying the performance
obligation at the reporting date. This is measured based
on the time incurred compared with the time budget,
which depict the Group’s performance towards satisfying
the performance obligation. Significant estimates and
judgements are required in determining the accuracy of the
time incurred and the extent of the time budget. In making
the above estimation, the Group conducts periodic review
on the time incurred and make reference to past experience.

Determination of consolidation scope of certain
investments

Management applies its judgement to determine whether the
control indicators indicate that the Group controls related
investment funds.

Consolidation is required only if control exists. The Group
controls an investee when it has all the following: (i) power
over the investee; (i) exposure, or rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and (iii) the ability
to use its power over the investee to affect the amount
of the Group’s returns. Power results from rights that can
be straightforward through voting rights or complicated
in contractual arrangements. Variable returns normally
encompass financial benefits and risks, but in certain cases,
they also include operational values specific to the Group.
These three factors cannot be considered in isolation by the
Group in its assessment of control over an investee. Where
the factors of control are not apparent, significant judgement
is applied in the assessment, which is based on an overall
analysis of all of the relevant facts and circumstances.
The Group is required to reassess whether it controls the
investee if facts and circumstances indicate a change to one
or more of the three factors of control.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING

JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(Continued)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting year, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimation of impairment of loan and trade
receivables, other receivables and deposits and
contract assets within the scope of ECL under
HKFRS 9

Under HKFRS 9, the Group makes allowances on items
subjects to ECL (including loan and trade receivables, other
receivables and deposits and contract assets) based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based
on the Group’s past history, existing market conditions
as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period as set out in note 2.17. As at 31 March
2023, the aggregate carrying amounts of loan and trade
receivables, other receivables and deposits and contract
assets amounted to approximately HK$42,644,000 (net of
ECL allowance and bad debt written off of approximately
HK$19,510,000 and HK$3,000 respectively) (2022:
approximately HK$98,264,000 (net of ECL allowance and
bad debt written off of approximately HK$2,793,000 and
HK$570,000 respectively)), approximately HK$5,664,000
(net of ECL allowance of nil and bad debt written off
of approximately HK$133,000) (2022: approximately
HK$20,159,000 (net of ECL allowance of nil)), and
HK$17,000 (net of ECL allowance of nil) (2022: HK$ nil (net
of ECL allowance of nil)), respectively.

When the actual future cash flows are different from
expected, such difference will impact the carrying amount of
trade receivables and other items within the scope of ECL
under HKFRS 9 and credit losses in the periods in which
such estimate has been changed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING

JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(Continued)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(Continued)
Impairment of interests in associates

The Group determines whether the interests in associates
are impaired required an estimation of the future cash flows
expected to arise and the expected dividend vyield from the
associates in order to calculate the present value. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected, impairment
loss may arise. As at 31 March 2023, the carrying amount
of interests in associates is approximately HK$99,647,000
(2022: HK$105,046,000) and no impairment loss has been
recognised (2022: nil).

Fair value of financial instruments

The Group establishes fair value of financial instruments with
reference to a quoted market price in an active market or, if
there is no active market, using valuation techniques. These
valuation techniques include the use of recent arm’s length
transactions, observable market data and other valuation
techniques commonly used by market participants.

The results of using valuation techniques are calibrated
against industry practice and observable current market
transactions in the same or similar instruments. The Group
assesses assumptions and estimates used in valuation
techniques including review of the quality of market data,
whether markets are active or inactive, other fair value
adjustments not specifically captured by models and
consistency of application of techniques between reporting
periods as part of its normal review and approval processes.
Valuation techniques are validated and periodically reviewed
and, where appropriate, have been updated to reflect market
conditions at the financial reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBERRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —FE = =F =H=+—HIFZ

5. REVENUE

Revenue represents the net amounts received and receivable

for services provided in the normal course of business. An

analysis of the Group’s revenue for the years ended 31

March 2023 and 2022 is as follows:

5. LA

WA B IE & % 7% 18 12 7 P iE AR
1510 2 YR N FE MR IR 2 %8R - N &

BHEZ =1

—E-F=

A=Zt—HLEFERAZTMT

2023 2022
—E-= ==

HK$’000 HK$’000

THERT FHE T

(re-presented)

(&%)

Dividend income g B U A - 229
Income from securities brokerage BAHRRBEBZBA

business 2,913 32,455
Interest income from money lending MEEBZFEWA

business 2,788 8,348
Income from insurance brokerage RBELEL 2 BA

business 700 1,160
Income from asset management BEEBEER KA

business 10,885 4,583

Income from equity investment business A& & E % 2 WA 142 113

Margin interest income from BABLEBZ

securities brokerage business FRA B WA 4,071 4,755

Service income from corporate finance R ERIE 7 IRIE U A 5,444 6,844

26,943 58,487
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBHRERME (K)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

5. REVENUE(Cont/nued) 5. ”&K(%)

The Group derives revenue from the services over time and AEBEBEFEAINE -—RHEBES
at a point in time in the following table. ARG U AR T ©
2023 2022
—BC-=F —EF-—
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
(re-presented)
(&)
Revenue from contracts with customers 12 FE R B S &1 5 ) 3K B
by timing of recognition BERPEHNZBA
Overtime: BERE ] -
Service income from corporate finance 1R @& FTS ARG UL A 2,236 1,100
Income from asset management business & & & 12 ¥ 15 WA 10,651 4,583
At a point in time: RE — b5 2% -
Service income from corporate finance M EELE 7 RIS WA 3,208 5,744
Income from asset management business & & & 1B 2 & AT 15 WA 234 -
Income from equity investment business A% & & £ 7 2 WA 119 -
Income from securities brokerage BARLEBRBRA
business 2,913 32,455
Income from insurance brokerage REBELEBMERA
business 700 1,160
Revenue from contracts with customers &8 B 75 3R &5 2E B 851558
within the scope of HKFRS 15 HEANKBEFPEHZ
WA 20,061 45,042
Other information: H A& H -
Dividend income & B U A - 229
Interest income from equity investment X% & E TS F B U A
business 23 113
Interest income from money lending WEEBAER S A
business 2,788 8,348
Margin interest income from securities BAHBLEBE
brokerage business R A B WA 4,071 4,755
26,943 58,487
UNSATISFIED PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS KEKEBEHNET
The unsatisfied performance obligations are for periods REKBABERH —F AT -0
of one year or less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the BBV BMEEAFE1SHTEST o
transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is REZERENEGHNZIRHEBHER
not disclosed. T AR EE

HE= R AR A A

—E-=EFR i



212

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBHRRWEE ()

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 — £ = =

= EZ A=+ —AILER

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Board, being the chief operating

decision maker, for the purpose of resources allocation and

assessment of segment performance is focus on the type

of services provided. No operating segments identified by

the chief operating decision maker have been aggregated in
arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments

under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

1)

The securities brokerage and margin financing segment
engages in securities brokerage and margin financing
in Hong Kong;

The corporate finance segment engages in the
provision of corporate finance services;

The money lending segment engages in the provision
of money lending services in Hong Kong;

The consultancy and insurance brokerage segment
engages in the provision of consultancy service and
insurance brokerage in Hong Kong;

The asset management segment engages in the
provision of asset management and advisory services
to professional investors; and

The equity investment segment engages in the
management of financial investments.
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Annual Report 2023

2 WRH

/Tf,éfﬁ PEEMFEDFRRME - A
EXEg (X E2ERRA)ERZ
BRTIEPRAAEERSE 28R -1
BEAKBEZAREDHE  T2%
BORRANFPTHETE 2B E 0 8 47
a5
BME AEEREBEFENBERS
HERFe 2 AT ME R EEDEWAT

ﬁ; m

EHRRBLERARBE DG R
%-5 BREEFELENFFRBE

—_
—

2) GBEXEBEDB REH
ART

TERE

3 MEDE REABREHBER
7%

4) BERERBELOH RER
e R ] AR 7S M AR B A AT AR 7S

5) BREEEIM RKERFER
BERHEETE LA AR
K

6) BEREDE
EIPo

ktEEMEE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continueq)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note
2. Segment results represent the results from each segment
without allocation of central administration expenses, office
staff salaries, directors’ remunerations, and other operating
income. This is the measure reported to the chief operating
decision maker for the purposes of resources allocation
and performance assessment. Inter-segment revenue are
charged at prevailing market prices.

For the purposes of current year’s segment presentation, the
segment information of equity investment has been extracted
from asset management due to its significance, accordingly
the comparative figures have been re-presented. In addition,
certain comparative figures have been re-presented in order
to conform to current year’s presentation.

Information regarding the above segments is reported below.

SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by reportable and operating segments.

For the year ended 31 March 2023

6.

N

7R E R 2)

BB 80 2 & FT BRER B M sF2FT i A
SECZEHBURER - »EEEEK
BEDEzEE M ES P RIT
BHY BAZEIIE ZEEHH
REMGELEW At ThmEELER
RARENETERPERKRRF
BZETERE D HEWATHIREIT
mEKE-

AFEND IS - AR AR
REMEXE ENAENEERE
EEETROHLR LB FEEE
BEHME25 - ETHRBEFEE
HENNATEARFREZINRTA

BERLADHz2EHEZ®mMT -

T EBRA R FE A

AEEBTREREEH B2
WA B AT -

BE-ZEZ-=Ff=ZA=+—HLEE

Securities Consultancy
brokerage and
and margin -~ Corporate Money insurance Asset Equity Inter-segment

financing finance lending  brokerage management investment Unallocated  elimination Consolidated

FHELR ERR
FREE  LE¥RE HE  RREE  EEER  RERE AR AREHH &4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn T T TEn Tén T 3 TEn
Revenue WA 6,984 5,444 2,788 700 10,885 142 - - 26,943
Inter-segment income PElELON 303 22,950 - 13 - - - (23,366) -
Net investment gains/{losses) REkE/ (BE)F8 2 - - - (4,642) (10) - (4,630)
Total @it 7,309 28,394 2,788 813 10,885 (4,500) (10) (23,366) 2,313
Finance costs HERE (1) - (1) - (5,124) (5,136)
Impairment loss BEFE - - - (801) - (204) - (1,005)
QOthers it (19,736) (13,948) (5,793) (880) (10,164) (634) (48,101) 23,366 (75,890)
Segment results GEEL (12,428) 14,446 (3,005) (67) (91) (5,134) (53,439) (59,718)
Share of profits of associates EEBE DR 855
Loss before tax BHAER (58,863)
Income tax credit FEHES 8
Loss for the year TEEER (58,855)
RS ERAR

SEBECC-FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBHRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —FE = =F =H=+—HIFZ

> N .
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continved) 6. TEER =)
SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS (continued) TEBRA R EE (@)
For the year ended 31 March 2022 BE-_E-_—_f=-HA=+—-HILEE
Securities Consultancy
brokerage and
and margin Corporate Money insurance Asset Equity Inter-segment
financing finance lending brokerage ~ management investment  Unallocated elimination  Consolidated
FHARR ERR

FREEE  LERE HE  RREE  EEER RERE AR HPEEH &a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
Tin FiEn TEn Tk TiEn Tin TEn Thn FiEn
(re-presented)  (re-presented)
(&E5)  (£E5))

Revenue WA 37,210 6,844 8,348 1,160 4583 342 - - 58,487
Inter-segment income AHEUA 12 - - 82 - - - (94) -
Net investrment losses REFRTE - - - - - (3,151) - - (3,151)
Total @ 37,22 6,844 8,348 1,242 4583 (2,809) - (94) 55,336
Finance costs BERA (13) - (1,273) - (5,460) [&] (11,554) 6,733 (11,570)
Impaiment loss WEES - - - - - - (17,586) - (17,586)
Others it (37,685) (18,496) (5,248) (1,452) (9,306) (40) (26,827 (6,639) (105,698)
Segment results R 476) (11,652) 1827 210) (10,183) 2,852) (55,967) - (79,513)
Share of losses of associates EEBEATESR [
Share of losses of joint ventures EEAERAER (12)
Loss before tax RREER (79,534)
Income tax crecit fEHES 205
Loss for the year TEEER (79,30)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
IIV_\ ji%i&%%'z‘ﬁ?(nﬁ)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 {2 = E = =F=H=+—HIFZE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continueq) 6. D EE R =)
SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES DESEERBE

AREBRABEMEEDHME2I 2
BENBEITWN:

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and
liabilities by reportable and operating segments:

2023 2022
—E-= ==
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHE T
(re-presented)
(fe=75)
Segment assets DEBEE
Securities brokerage and margin BACLEEARBE
financing 220,225 297,397
Corporate finance TERME 3,821 28,379
Money lending HE 25,574 59,536
Consultancy and insurance brokerage B P M AR B 42 1,337 1,052
Asset management BEER 11,692 10,550
Equity investment RERE 82,758 26,739
Total segment assets DEEEELE 345,407 423,853
Unallocated A5 B 130,354 180,757
Consolidated assets HEEE 475,761 604,610
Segment liabilities PEEE
Securities brokerage and margin BERERHAERE
financing 137,616 175,219
Corporate finance TERME 167 1,232
Money lending & - 141
Consultancy and insurance brokerage R R AR AL 42 209 84
Asset management EEER 3,000 3,766
Equity investment RiERE 114 1,919
Total segment liabilities DEBEERE 141,106 182,361
Unallocated RHOE 38,186 174,390
Consolidated liabilities mERE 179,292 356,751

HE= R AR A A

SEBECC-FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBERRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —FE = =F =H=+—HIFZ

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continueq)
SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)

For the purpose of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating segments other
than certain property and equipment for general
operations, other non-current assets (excluded financial
assets at FVOCI), interests in associates, certain other
receivables, deposits and prepayments and certain
bank balances and cash — general; and

° all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
other than certain other payables and accruals, lease
liabilities, corporate bonds, loan and tax payable.

OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION

TEER 2

PDESEEREE #)

REESMERERDED HHEHER
MBS :
e BRET-HREEMELRME

HpERBEE (TEEER
FEIAEME2E YRS 2R
BE) RBERRzHEE &
THEMBERRE e kAN
RIBENNETROEHREER
—RIN FTBEEEEDERER

EnE &
o KBRETHMEMNFALEE

A-HEaE QRERF EX
LREMBEIN-FEREBEED

REZEnE-

Securities Consultancy and
brokerage and insurance
margin financing Corporate finance Money lending brokerage Asset management Equity investment Unallocated Consolidated
BEELRTRRE LERE i ] EARRRER REER RiER® 3R G&
2022 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2023 2022 2023 202
2o QR ERA C3oof B Rl S3oof B C2oof (RSl C3oof e e SECSE kbl C2CCF ke
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK§'000 HKS'000 HKS 000
Tin TR TR TR TR T TR FEL TR TR T Thn TEL
(re-presented)
(#85))
Amounts included inthe measure of - 3t EAHERHAH
seqment resuls or segment assets ~ EEBRAZHE
Addtons to non-curentassets  #RBEEAE
(exclude financial assets) (TaEsREE) 801 90 204 130 1,005 1,090
Bad debt writen offontadeend ~ EHRE{EYEEL
ofher ecehebles HERE 510 - - 3 132 - - - 1 13 510
Depreciation on property and NERRENE
equipment - 89 - 4 - 1,763 1,856
Depreciation on right-of-use assets ~ FEBAENE - - - - 503 7210 - 7
ECL trade receivebles AR BRERER 10,279 2057 1532 682 - - - 11,811 2739
ECL on loan ecelvables hEs BEERER - - - 4906 2686 4,906 268
The amounts regularly provided to the chief operating HE_Z-_=ZFRk-_ZF-__F=A

decision maker but not included in the measure of segment
results or segment assets are not material for both years
ended 31 March 2023 and 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continueq)

INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS

Revenue from customers which individually contributed over
10% of the Group’s revenue during the years ended 31
March 2023 and 2022 is as follows:

TEER 2
FEEFEHH

BE_ 2 - =FK_F-_—"9F=A
—t+t—HIFE KaHEAEERKRA
BEZE10% A EZ2@ERIZEFE Z WA
N

Customer 1 =1
Customer 2 ®F2
Customer 3 ®F3

2023 2022
—E_= —_FT-—

HK$’000 HK$’000

FH& T TFH&T

N/A R i8 A+ 25,524

5,155 N/A i@ F -
2,873 N/A N iE A -

Note: The revenue contributed from customer 1 is derived from the
securities brokerage business, customer 2 and 3 is derived
from the asset management business.

The corresponding revenue did not individually contribute over
10% of the Group’s revenue or did not have any transactions
in the respective years.

GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

The Group’s operations are mainly located and carried out in
Hong Kong. Accordingly, no geographical information related
to revenue has been presented. The following table sets
out information about the Group’s property and equipment,
other non-current assets (excluded regulatory deposits and
financial assets at FVOCI), interests in associates (“specified
non-current assets”). The geographical location of the
specified non-current assets is based on the physical
location of the asset, in the case of property and equipment,
the location of the operation to which they are allocated, in
the case of goodwill, and the location of operations, in the
case of interests in associates.

Wi BP1EMZIRARBEHFELE
HomMEP2RIER ZBA KA
BEEEER-

© o ERRAREEFELEEFHA
SEBATR0% A £k I ST
ERZ 5

1th 55 & #)

REBZEBETERNBTELRE
BEE BB BERAZLE
BF - PRI BBASEY X MK
B HMERDEE (TEBEATR
ERBERAFEIAEMEZEKE 2
TREE) REEQR 2 (48
EXRBEE|) ZEM -BEFR
HEECHWEMNEEREECER
NE - pYEREENEENEDE
MEEZNE RAEMEEREE
fE RBERRZERME ER
ENREEZINE -

HE= R AR A A
—EC-FFR
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuea)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBHRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —FE = =F =H=+—HIFZ

6. DEE R =)

GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION (continueq) 1 EER &)

2023 2022

—_=E_= —E-—
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#& T FAET
Hong Kong &5 84,946 78,169
The PRC H 21,311 33,487
106,257 111,656

OTHER INCOME 7. Ml A

2023 2022

—_=E_= —E -
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#& T FAET
Interest income from financial Institutions <& &b # 4 T 8 U A 1,359 239
Exchange gain, net PE 5 e F 58 128 736
Sundry income (note) MIEWA (FFEE) 1,843 1,171
3,330 2,146

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group recognised i @E T - =F=A=+—HILEE"

government grants of HK$1,260,000 (2022: nil) in respect
of COVID-19-related subsidies in relation to Employment
Support Scheme provided by the Hong Kong government.

-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBHRERME (K)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

ECL ON LOAN AND TRADE
RECEIVABLES, NET

HK$’000
FET
ECL on trade receivables EZREWERR 2
EHEEER 34(b) 11,811 2,739
ECL on loan receivables ERERZ
TEEEEEE 34(b) 4,906 2,686
16,717 5,425
FINANCE COSTS 9. BE KA
2023 2022
—_E_= —E=-=
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FE& T F&TT
Finance charges on lease liabilities HEBGZHEER 194 393
Interests on bank and loan payables RITRERERZFE 1,713 2,755
Interests on other borrowings HEmEEZHE 1 2
Interests on corporate bonds NEIEHFZFE 3,228 7,764
Interests on convertible bonds AR ES 2T E - 656

5,136 11,670

HE= R AR A A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBHRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —FE = =F =H=+—HIFZ

10.LOSS BEFORE TAX 10.BR %1 A &5 18
2023 2022
—E-= —E=-=
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B &E FHET FHET
Net investment losses: REBEFE:
Net losses on financial assets BRATFEIABREZ
at FVTPL TRIEEEEFR 4,630 3,151
Other operating expenses: Hib &<
Auditors’ remuneration 2% B 6 B & 1,250 1,180
Announcement and listing fee RNERETER 592 450
Bad debt written-off on B 5 REAMEWKIEZ
trade and other receivables i £ 12 AR 136 570
Bank charges RITER 104 102
Computer expenses ER - 1,226 1,180
Depreciation on: e
- Right-of-use assets -EREEE 15 - 7,773
— Property and equipment - MEREE 15 - 1,856
Entertainment FEBH & 1,084 1,790
Information and communication fee B EEE 1,429 1,624
Short term lease expenses HHHEERX 234 328
Legal and professional fee FEEREEE 2,923 2,431
Membership fee 2EER 561 68
Office refurbishment WAEBF - 813
Rates and building management fee  Z= il M2 F & 12 & 831 994
Telecommunication fee ERER- 370 415
Travelling expenses EIRFAZ 660 1,506
Other expenses =i 2,516 2,690
Total #BEt 13,916 25,770
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

10.LOSS BEFORE TAX (continueq)

10.BR B AT B 18 ()

2023 2022
—E_-=HF g
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M 3E FET F&ET
Staff costs: BIRA:
— Directors’ remunerations -EE5We 12(a) 8,259 10,409
— Salaries and allowance - FHe NkER 34,857 42,619
— Retirement benefit scheme - ROKTEF T 8 5%
contributions (excluding Directors) (TBEESE) 1,258 1,368
44,374 54,396
Less: Staff costs included in B EFARBKA 2
cost of services B T A (1,799) (2,694)
42,575 51,702
VA
11.INCOME TAX CREDIT M.FEHIEKR
2023 2022
— %: = —_=__
HK$’000 HK$'000
THE T F&ET
Provision for Hong Kong profits tax BEBNGHERE
— Current year -AFE - 174
— Over provision in respect of prior years — &1 F E HBEEEH (8) (399)
Total income tax credit FriSfiif e 42%8 (8) (225)

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year ended
31 March 2023 is calculated at 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) of the
estimated assessable profits for the year, except for one
subsidiary of the Group which is a qualifying corporation
under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. Under the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million
of profits of qualifying entities are taxed at 8.25%, and the
profits above HK$2 million are taxed at 16.5%. The provision
for Hong Kong Profits Tax for this subsidiary was calculated
at the same basis in 2022.

HE-_ZT-_=f=A=+—8H1ItF
EEEMNESHBEERFTFRNMGE
BB RN 216.5% (T = — F:
16.6% )T E MEAEE —FHB A
AI(FISMEMAHFNEBTZEER
EEIBRIN-BRIBEFN SR ERAEH
AEKEREE 2,000,000 BT .2 % F
BT %8.25% =A% v i AR 12,000,000
BT 2 v M IR T EA16.5% aR B o 7%
MBARZEEFGHREBER-Z
T FRBREETE -

HE= R AR A A
—EC-FFR
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11.INCOME TAX CREDIT (continve)

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January
2008 onwards. No provision for the PRC EIT has been made
for subsidiaries established in the PRC as (1) one of the
PRC subsidiaries did not have any assessable profits subject
to PRC EIT Law for the year ended 31 March 2023 (its
assessable profits for the years ended 31 March 2022 have
been fully absorbed by the tax loss brought forward from
prior years); and (2) the other PRC subsidiaries did not have
any assessable profits subject to PRC EIT Law for the year
ended 31 March 2023 and 2022.

The tax charge for the years can be reconciled to the loss

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBHRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —FE = =F =H=+—HIFZ

MAEHRER =)

BEFBECEMGREZ(IEERS
BEDRGEMSHEERIEH -
BE-ZEZENF—A—HBR FRHWEB
NAEZ TR BE25% o AR B Sz 2 M
JB A AL R 5T iR B 1 S TS B
B REAMEF—HFBEMEQ
AREE-_E-_=F=A=+—H
IFFERBPRCERGR AL &
AMERREFN (RE=z2_F ==
FZAZ+—HLEFEZERH &
FMERERFEAE  HIEBESR
HHE) RQEMTRWB AR
BE-_ET-_=#RgR-_ZET-_—_F€=A4
—t+t—HIEFERBFECEMS
T I 488 1 {n] FE AR B 042 )

FEMBARAXAREA R MNEM

before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income as follows:

EEBERZBEHABEERNT

2023 2022
—E-= —_=__
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Loss before tax bR 5 B ES 1B (58,863) (79,534)
Tax at domestic income tax rate of BTG E16.5%
16.5% (2022: 16.5%) (ZE=—%:16.5%)
FTEZBIE (9,712) (13,123)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible RREEME TN RA L2
for tax purpose Mg 190 1,818
Tax effect of incomes not taxable PR S IERBUAZ
for tax purpose M E (836) (767)
Tax effect of share of (profits)/losses of  [E/GEE & N A CGEF|)
associates EEoBBTE (141) 1
Tax effect of share of losses of EEEERREBEZ
joint ventures M - 2
Over provision in respect of prior years B F E BEEEE (8) (399)
Effect of different tax rates of PRC mEKB AR, DA
subsidiaries/branches and TR R 2 K R A% F) 15 B =&
two-tiered profit tax rate -2 (198) (409)
Utilisation of tax losses not recognised  BEBAFERERZ
in previous years 1 7% 5 18 (2,337) (2)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised  FIERRIFEIE 2 Hig & 13,034 12,654
Tax credit for the year FEHEERE (8) (225)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBHRRMEE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

1 1.|NCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)

At 31 March 2023, the Group had estimated unused
tax losses of approximately HK$880,170,000 (2022:
HK$806,970,000) available for offset against future profits,
the tax losses are subject to the agreement by the Hong
Kong Inland Revenue Department. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised for the years ended 31 March 2023 and
2022.

As at 31 March 2023, tax losses of approximately
HK$17,704,000 (2022: HK$21,441,000) attributable to
certain subsidiaries in the PRC had an expiry period of
five years. During the year, tax loss of approximately
HK$4,414,000 (2022: HK$705,000) has been expired.

Under the New EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends in respect of profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures from 1 January
2008 onwards (the “Post-2008 Earnings”). As at 31 March
2023 and 2022, deferred taxation has not been provided for
in the consolidated financial statements as the Company’s
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures did not have
any unremitted earnings and the Group is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference of the
associates.

MNFABHER &)

W—_ZET_ZF#=ZA=+—H8"
AEBERFARDABEEELD
880,170,000 T (=& = =
806,970,000 7T ) A fit K 85 K 2K @
M- BBEEBEEEMNBERRAE-
HE-_S-_=fg-_ZT-_—_€=A1
=T -BLEFE UEBRRELESIE
BE-o

WM-_EBE-_=%=/F=+—8 %
BEFEETHEAR 2REBEEIRE
#917,704,0008 L (Z T = — F :
21,441,000 BL) 2 BRER A
FF-RAFE BEEBAYN
4,414,000 L (=T = = F :
705,000 A7) E@E

BBEFECEMEBHE BT N\E
—A—BRBFBEMEBEAR BEA
AIREEARFBRRONRN (=2
ENFE2BHN])ERKREBUYTE
MR -RZFZ=FR_FT__F=
A=+—H \ENGEEHBHmEF
EHELERIBRE REALNEE 2
MEBAR HEARRAEEARRLE
R AR BE 2 F) - LA K AN 5 B A] 2 )
RN vd-CYi kB v S S

BEAHERAR
SEBECC-FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBERRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —FE = =F =H=+—HIFZ

12.DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
EXECUTIVES" REMUNERATIONS

[A) DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATIONS

Directors’ remunerations, disclosed pursuant to
the Listing Rules, section 383(1) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation, are as follows:

B <=
A) EFM %

BELETMHRA BB (DA
By 383N &R AR (KEE
EMzmER) RO FE2E KR E M
EEZMenT:

Year ended 31 March 2023
HE-E-Z-E=-A=1+-RLEE

NREERSREBAEZ

Contributions
Salaries to retirement
and other Discretionary benefits
Name of directors Fees benefits bonus schemes Total
¢k BHERN
ESns e HugEA BMEEL HE @t
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TiER TER TER TER TER
Chairman £
LIU Zhiwei (note a) MER (MiEa) 73 2,124 - 12 2,209
XIE Zhichun (note b) BES (Mib) 47 1,837 - 7 1,891
Executive Directors HITEE
HUA Yang (note c) 25 (Msc) 3 32 - 2 37
LIU Haoyuan (note d MRE (M3Ed) 142 203 - 6 351
SUN Qing %5 120 910 - 18 1,048
ZHU Yi (note ) K% (Mite) 55 962 - 9 1,026
Non-executive Directors FUTES
CHEN Zhiwei (note f) REE (M) 203 - - - 203
HAN Hanting BRHE 396 33 - 12 441
WU Ling (note g) R& (Kig) 205 - - - 295
Independent non-executive Directors BYFHTES
CHAN Kin Sang Rigs 198 - - - 198
CHIU Kung Chik Fi:YNE] 198 - - - 198
LI Gaofeng FRE 198 - - - 198
LIU Xin (note h) 2Im (B3Eh) 106 - - - 106
ZHAO Gen (note ) B (Fe) 58 - - - 58
2,092 6,101 - 66 8,259
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
IIV_\ ZI- i% $ﬁ '%% B{-J- ? ( nlﬁ )

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

12.EEREREEBEAEZ
[ e D

12.DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
EXECUTIVES" REMUNERATIONS

(Continued)

(A) DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATIONS [A)EEE )

(Continued)

Year ended 31 March 2022
HE-Z-"F=-A=+-HIEE

Contributions
Salaries to retirement
and other  Discretionary benefits
Name of directors Fees benefits bonus schemes Total
ek RINEH
£33 fe  HtEd BB SHEIER @it
HK$'000  HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
THEL THL THET FEL FEL
Chairman iR
XIE Zhichun (note b) BEE (Fiip) 120 4,680 - 18 4,818
Executive Directors HITES
SUN Qing %5 120 924 - 18 1,062
ZHU Yi (note ) KR (Fizke) 120 1,920 - 18 2,058
Non-executive Directors FRTEE
CHEN Zhiwei (note f) REE (M3ED) 360 - - - 360
HAN Hanting BHE 600 36 - 1 647
WU Ling (note g RE (Mig) 600 - - - 600
Independent non-executive Directors BYFHTES
CHAN Kin Sang RiEE 216 - - - 216
CHIU Kung Chik HAE 216 - - - 216
LI Gaofeng = 216 - - - 216
LIU Xin (note h) 2 (MzEn) 216 - - - 216
2,784 7,560 - 65 10,409

Discretionary bonuses were determined with reference
to the Group’s operating results and individual
performance for the years ended 31 March 2023 and

2022.

BIEIEA 2 EARAEEEHE
T _=FRZZZFEZ=F=A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBHRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z —F -~ =4 =HA=+—HIF FZ

12.DIRECTORS” AND SENIOR
EXECUTIVES" REMUNERATIONS

(Continued)

12. é%&%&%’ﬁkéz

[A) DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATIONS [A)EEMWE )

(Continued)

Notes: B 5T -
(a)  Appointed as an executive director and chairman of the @ R-ZZE-_—_F#NA-_+_-H
Board with effect from 22 August 2022. BZARVTESELESYE
EE -
(b)  Resigned all his offices in the Company with effect from by MRZZE-Z—_FNA=+=H
22 August 2022. BAEENARRZ TR
(c)  Appointed as the chief executive officer of the Company () MZEZ=F—FWOBAEZ
with effect from 4 January 2023. Hua Yang was ERRARERHITE -E
appointed as an executive director with effect from 24 WN-ZE-Z=F=A=-+mWMA
March 2023. EZEARPTES-
(d)  Appointed as a non-executive director with effect from ) RZZEZ=—FNA=Z+=H
22 August 2022. Liu Haoyuan was re-designed from BZERFPTEZ -WEER
a non-executive director to an executive director with RZEZZF+—HA=Z+h
effect from 29 November 2022. HEERITESTHAETRAT
=)
(e)  Resigned all his offices in the Company with effect from e RZE__FAAT+HHEE
15 September 2022, FERARRB BB -
()  Removed all his offices in the Company with effect from f W-ZE-_—_F+—A+—H
11 November 2022. Detail refer to announcement dated WEE RN ARE Z AR -
on 11 November 2022. HEBEL2HASRAZS =
FH+—A+—RAzRE
(@) Retired all his offices in the Company with effect from ()] 75/\\:3: “HFNAAZ-TtH
27 September 2022. BEERARRZERS-
(h)  Retired all his offices in the Company with effect from hy RZZTE-Z—FAA-++tH

27 September 2022.

Appointed as an independent non-executive director
with effect from 22 August 2022. Zhao Gen resigned all
his offices in the Company with effect from 7 December
2022.

There was no arrangement under which any directors
waived or agreed to waive any remunerations for
the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022. No
remunerations have been paid to the directors of the
Company as inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office for the

years

ended 31 March 2023 and 2022.

REERARA ZATAB-
() RZEZZFNAZ+=H
BEZAABIIERTEE
BR-ZZE-_—_F+=-A+tH
BAENARRR Z TR

BE_Z-_=FKR=-_FT=_—
—A=+—BHLFE BET
fa] B & PR EE oK [B] B B 3E A fa] B
C R BE_ZTE_=ZFK
—EZF=R=+—H1t#F
E AEBEBEINME TR
REEBIERABEMENME
NE B 2 W sk E R B

{&
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBHRERME (K)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

NREEXRESHREBAELZ
M€ )

12.DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
EXECUTIVES" REMUNERATIONS

(Continued)
(B] FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Bl ZEREMZ AL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the ERAREBRESEIHFATF

BEMEBE(ZE__F M%)
ARRAESE HFEZHMEER
PRI 2P R FRA
JEREBZA(ZE_—_F: =
N ERzBME&mT:

highest in the Group for the year included, two (2022:
two) directors of the Company whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments payable to the remaining three (2022:
three) individuals during the year are as follows:

2023 2022
—Eg-= —_=__

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAET

Salaries, allowances and other benefits % & ~ 2 8f & H 18 6,368 7,152

Discretionary bonuses (R AN 79 1,448

Compensations — Contractual HE -5 841 -
Retirement benefits scheme RIRREFET B R

contributions 50 54

7,338 8,654

The emoluments of the remaining three (2022: three) BRI =ZHB(ZEZZF:=4)

highest paid employees fall in the following bands: EaMEEBEZMENTUAT

#E

Number of individuals

Emolument bands B % &0 &

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000  1,500,001/% JT £2,000,000/% JT 1 1

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 JT £ 3,000,000/ JT 1 -

HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T 2 3,500,0005% 7T 1 1

HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7T £ 4,000,000 JT 1
3 3

HE= R AR A A
—EC-FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBHRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —FE = =F =H=+—HIFZ

13.DIVIDEND 13.1R. &
No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31 HE_ZTZ-_=ZF=ZA=+—H1L*F
March 2023, nor has any dividend been proposed since the EMERNIEZRNEMAMKRE B
end of the reporting year (2022: nil). KB EFERURIMERZZIRE
ARE(ZE__F |&) -
14.L0SS PER SHARE 14.8REE
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share KRR E ARG ZERAERN RS
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the SEEE DR T 8B E

following data:

2023 2022
—E-= —_EF-—
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Loss BB
Loss for the purpose of basic and BIEsTESRELRR
diluted loss per share BEERZEBR (58,855) (79,309)
2022
—_F_—
000
F &%
Number of shares i &vig < Q=
Weighted average number of ordinary RETEEBRERK
shares for the purpose of basic and BEBEEBE L AERK
diluted loss per share InAE 19 2 1,055,102 915,308

GoFintech Innovation Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
IIV_\ ZI- i% $ﬁ '%% B{-J- ? ( nlﬁ )

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

Y I P4 _l_
15.PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 15.MERKRE
Leasehold Office Motor  Right-of-use
improvements equipment vehicles assets Total
HENEEE WAERME RE EREEE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAR FET TEL TET
Cost KA

At 1 April 2021 WZZ--#NA—H 4,854 1,182 1,462 51,150 58,648
Additions HE 130 - - 960 1,090
Disposals/written off HE /M - (38) - (33,377) (33,415)

At 31 March 2022 and RZEZZ8=f=+-H
1 April 2022 KZE--FENA-H 4,984 1,144 1,462 18,733 26,323
Additions RE - - - 1,005 1,005
Disposals/written off HE /M - - - (1561) (1,561)
At 31 March 2023 RZBZ=fE=Zf=+-H 4,984 1,144 1,462 18,177 25,767

Accumulated depreciation and EiHERBE

impairment
At 1 April 2021 R-E-—ENA—H 404 848 1,462 33,803 36,517
Provided for the year FREE 1,618 238 - 7,773 9,629
Eliminated on disposaljwritten off & B ¥ 4% /i % - (38) - (33,377) (33,415)
Impairment loss recognised ERAAESE 2,962 9% - 10,534 13,592
At 31 March 2022 and W-_E--_#=R=+-H
1 April 2022 k-ZE--ENA-H 4,984 1,144 1,462 18,733 26,323
Provided for the year FREE - - - - -
Eliminated on disposal/ HEREHE/HE
written off - - - (1,561) (1,561)
Impairment loss recognised BRRRESE - - - 1,005 1,005
At 31 March 2023 R-E-=(=f=+-H 4,984 1,144 1,462 18,177 25,767
Carrying values REE
At 31 March 2023 R-B-=f(=f=+-H - - - - -
At 31 March 2022 W-E--%#=R=1+-H - - - - -

HE= R AR A A

— = — =

=TSN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBHRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —FE = =F =H=+—HIFZ

15.PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continvesy  15. ¥ ZER 5% 8 ()

As at 31 March 2023, the net carrying amount of right- RZE-_=ZF=ZA=+—8 iAWY
of-use assets included in property and equipment are as EhBBzERAEEECEREERE
follows: W

Depreciation and

Carrying amount impairment

REE RERAE
For the For the
As at As at year ended year ended
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2023 2022 2023 2022
Bz BE
—E-= “E-CF
R-Z2-=%F petdmini:l =f=1+-H By Ehgt
ZA=1-0 ! LEE LERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THTL TER FHL

Office premises, warehouse and BRAEME BER

car parking spaces pak:i - - 1,005 18,307
During the year ended 31 March 2023, total additions to REBZ-_T-_=F=A=+—8H1t
right-of-use assets included in property and equipment FE SFAVERIKEBE2EREE
amounting to HK$1,005,000 (2022: HK$960,000). The ERE % 51,005,000 T (=8
details of lease liabilities as at 31 March 2023 and 2022 are —_—F:960,000ETT) BN _-F
set out in note 26. ZEFRZEZZF=R=+—H

ZHERBEFBHNME6 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBHRRMEE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

15.PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continveq)

IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT
Corporate finance

During the year ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, the
management performed an impairment assessment on
certain property and equipment relating to the corporate
finance operation (the “Corporate Finance CGU”) as the
management concluded there was indication for impairment
due to the challenging business environment and prudent
behaviours of the investors as a result of global capital
market downturn.

The recoverable amount of the Corporate Finance CGU is
determined based on value in use calculation using cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
the management covering five-year period, zero growth rate
is applied to extrapolate the cash flows beyond five-year
period during the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022.
This growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth
forecasts and does not exceed the average long-term growth
rate for the relevant industry. The discount rate applied to
the cash flow projections is 14.39% (2022:13.79%) as at
31 March 2023. Other key assumptions for the value in use
calculation related to the estimation of cash inflows and
outflows which include budgeted sales and budgeted net
profit margin. This estimation is determined based on the
unit’s past performance and management’s expectation for
the market development.

During the year ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, based
on the result of the assessment, the directors determined
that the recoverable amount of the Corporate Finance CGU
is nil and lower than its carrying amount. The impairment
amount has been allocated to each category of property and
equipment such that the carrying amount of each category
of asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value
less cost of disposal, its value in use. Based on the value
in use calculation and the allocation, an impairment of
HK$82,000 (2022: HK$5,437,000) has been recognised for
the year ended 31 March 2023.

15. M =Rt =

B I
TEME

RBEE_E-_ZFR_E-_—_F=
A=+—HIEFE EREHEPE
BMEXBEBENE TWENEE ([4&
YRMERSEEEN]ET T HE
FETHEREERREERE LS
KEAMGEREHREETAE
B -EEERAERUGERETR -

rERMERSEABEMMNAKE S
BMOBBEEREEFEETE 18
AR RERATIEREREE
HERERFHBM 2 RBE - R
BE_ET_=#R_-_ZET-__—_F€=AH4
—t+—HIFE FRASEERERESR
BRI FHENRERE - HIERX
DERBBITEZERBAEE T
SHRBMRBITEZFHRABRE
R-ZE-_=F=ZA=+—H #A813}R
SMEMAMARE B14.30% (=
T ZF18.79% ) AT EFAHEE
FrAzEMEFEREEBE AR
b (BEEEHERRBELNX)
R ETBE Bt DR BEZEMN 2
BERRLEEEZEHEMSGERCE
HAMJE o

BE_ 2 - =FK_F-_—"F=A
= +—HLEFE BEFHLER £
EETPERERSELEEMN 2T
WeemAZT ENEAE -RES
HOPEESER ZMERRE &
HREEMRENEEEITZER
EAFERNENAEN FEEE
FHREEMEFNRSE BREFEH
BEFAEESE EREE-2=_=
FZA=Z+—BUHEFERRRE
82,000/ 7T ( =& = =4 : 5,437,000
BIT) °

HE= R AR A A
SEBECC-FFR
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15.PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continveq)

IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT (continued)

Asset management

During the year ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, the
management performed an impairment assessment on
certain property and equipment relating to the asset
management operation (the “Asset Management CGU”)
as the management concluded there was indication for
impairment due to the challenging business environment
and prudent behaviours of the investors as a result of global
capital market downturn.

The recoverable amount of Asset Management CGU has
been determined based on a value in use calculation using
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by the management covering five-year period, zero growth
rate is applied to extrapolate the cash flows beyond five-
year period during the year ended 31 March 2023 and 2022.
This growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth
forecasts and does not exceed the average long-term growth
rate for the relevant industry. The discount rate applied to
the cash flow projections is 14.08% (2022: 13.76%) as at
31 March 2023. Other key assumptions for the value in use
calculation related to the estimation of cash inflows and
outflows which include budgeted sales and budgeted net
profit margin. This estimation is determined based on the
unit’s past performance and management’s expectation for
the market development.

During the year ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, based on
the result of the assessment, the directors determined that
the recoverable amount of the Asset Management CGU
is nil and lower than the carrying amount. The impairment
amount has been allocated to each category of property and
equipment such that the carrying amount of each category
of asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less
cost of disposal, its value in use. Based on the value in use
calculation and the allocation, an impairment of HK$806,000
(2022: HK$680,000) has been recognised for the year ended
31 March 2023.

GoFintech Innovation Limited
Annual Report 2023

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBRRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —FE = =F =H=+—HIFZ

15. M =Rt =

B )
EESHE

BE-_ZE-_ ="K -_FE-_—"F=f
—t+—BLFE BEECEHETE
HMEEEREBR 2MELKREB (&
EEBRReELEN] ) ETRET
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BUAREHREAMBRERAEHIREE
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T ZFZA=+—H #ARSE
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T ZF:13.76%) st B EAEEFT
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L(BEEEHERBEMANE )L
HEt B R IIRBEZEN 2B
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i 7€ °
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SHENEEMAEHERETEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBHRRMEE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 2 —F - =F = H=+—HIFFE

15.PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continveq)

IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT (continueq)

Money lending

During the year ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, the
management performed an impairment assessment on
certain property and equipment relating to the money lending
operation (the “Money lending CGU”) as the management
concluded there was indication for impairment due to the
challenging business environment and prudent behaviours of
the investors as a result of global capital market downturn.

The recoverable amount of Money lending CGU has been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by the
management covering five-year period, zero growth rate is
applied to extrapolate the cash flows beyond five-year period
during the year ended 31 March 2023 and 2022. This growth
rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts and
does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the
relevant industry. The discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections is 11.93% (2022: 11.44%) as at 31 March 2023.
Other key assumptions for the value in use calculation related
to the estimation of cash inflows and outflows which include
budgeted sales and budgeted net profit margin. This estimation
is determined based on the unit’s past performance and
management’s expectation for the market development.

During the year ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, based on
the result of the assessment, the directors determined that
the recoverable amount of the Money lending CGU is nil and
lower than the carrying amount. The impairment amount has
been allocated to each category of property and equipment
such that the carrying amount of each category of asset
is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less cost
of disposal, its value in use. Based on the value in use
calculation and the allocation, an impairment of HK$20,000
(2022: HK$1,359,000) has been recognised for the year
ended 31 March 2023.

15. M =Rt =

R EFIE (%)
B

BE_ZT-_=-"GRkZFT=-=_F=A
=+—BLFE BEERECERETE
REEB 2 MERZHE (THER
SESEMN#ETRENME DA
REBEREHNRER MBI UKL
EHEAMBGEALAERRNEEZTR
FE MABRARUTFERETR -

WMERESEESBM 2T KB 5T
BEERABEFEET FEMA
JHEREEANNDEREREEME
HARERFHB U RESR ©
HE_ZS_=FK-_FT-_—_F=AHA
—T—BLFE KATHERXER
hAFEHRAENBRESRE WERET)
EREBTECERBAEE T8
HEEEITECFORAERE R
—E=F=ZA=+—H #AR:
MEFTAMBMBEXRR/11.983% (ZF
TZF11.44%) st BERAEBEFR
ﬁﬁz/\mix@ ngﬁifﬁi//w)\&m
L (BEEEHEERBEANE)D
HEt B - IIRIBEZEMN 2B
ARBALREREHMIBER 2 EH
M °

REBEZE-_T-_=Fk-_FT-_— E
A=+—BLLEFE BREFHLE
EERTHNERSELSE uZTW
A@%?'ﬁmﬁﬁﬁiﬂ@i%
PEREZSENZYMERZE &8
%ﬁémﬂém%EEKEﬁmﬁ
ANEBERLEERABEFREERLF
AEEMEPONRSE RIEFEAE
B ER K BE-_T-_=F=A
=+—HIEFE 2 #ERRE20,0007%8
1,359,000 7T ) °

T(ZT -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

nH

BB RERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z —F -~ =4 =HA=+—HIF FZ

15.PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continveq)

/MPA /RMENT ASSESSMENT (Continued)

Brokerage and margin financing

During the year ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, the
management performed an impairment assessment on
certain property and equipment relating to the brokerage and
margin financing operation (the “Brokerage and margin
financing CGU”) as the management concluded there was
indication for impairment due to the challenging business
environment and prudent behaviours of the investors as a
result of Hong Kong capital market downturn.

The recoverable amount of Brokerage and margin financing
CGU has been determined based on a value in use
calculation using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by the management covering five-year
period, zero growth rate is applied to extrapolate the cash
flows beyond five-year period during the year ended 31
March 2023 and 2022. This growth rate is based on the
relevant industry growth forecasts and does not exceed the
average long-term growth rate for the relevant industry. The
discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 14.08%
(2022: 13.21%) as at 31 March 2023. Other key assumptions
for the value in use calculation related to the estimation of
cash inflows and outflows which include budgeted sales and
budgeted net profit margin. This estimation is determined
based on the unit’s past performance and management’s
expectation for the market development.

During the year ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, based
on the result of the assessment, the directors determined
that the recoverable amount of the Brokerage and margin
financing CGU is nil and lower than the carrying amount. The
impairment amount has been allocated to each category of
property and equipment such that the carrying amount of
each category of asset is not reduced below the highest of
its fair value less cost of disposal, its value in use. Based on
the value in use calculation and the allocation, an impairment
of HK$82,000 (2022: HK$5,436,000) has been recognised
for the year ended 31 March 2023.

GoFintech Innovation Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBHRRMEE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 2 —F - =F = H=+—HIFFE

15.PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continveq)

IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT (continueq)

Consultancy and insurance brokerage

During the year ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, the
management performed an impairment assessment on
certain property and equipment relating to the consultancy
and insurance brokerage operation (the “Consultancy
and insurance brokerage CGU”) as the management
concluded there was indication for impairment due to the
challenging business environment.

The recoverable amount of Consultancy and insurance
brokerage CGU has been determined based on a value
in use calculation using cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by the management covering
five-year period, zero growth rate is applied to extrapolate
the cash flows beyond five-year period during the year ended
31 March 2023 and 2022. This growth rate is based on the
relevant industry growth forecasts and does not exceed the
average long-term growth rate for the relevant industry. The
discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 14.16%
(2022: 13.70%) as at 31 March 2023. Other key assumptions
for the value in use calculation related to the estimation of
cash inflows and outflows which include budgeted sales and
budgeted net profit margin. This estimation is determined
based on the unit’s past performance and management’s
expectation for the market development.

During the year ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, based on
the result of the assessment, the directors determined that
the recoverable amount of the Consultancy and insurance
brokerage CGU is nil and lower than the carrying amount.
The impairment amount has been allocated to each category
of property and equipment such that the carrying amount of
each category of asset is not reduced below the highest of
its fair value less cost of disposal, its value in use. Based on
the value in use calculation and the allocation, an impairment
of HK$10,000 (2022: HK$680,000) has been recognised for
the year ended 31 March 2023.

15. M =Rt =

ol 1B ZF 1 (#)
ERRRRER

BHE_Z-_="FRk=-ZT-__F=A1
—t+t—HLEFE BEBEERET
EABERRRESLEER 2MER
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WrEeEDREEAEEFEEE
FEFACReEREBANERE
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REEEAFHHEENRERE -
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’ ﬁ/ﬁuiﬁimugﬁﬁﬁﬁ E’]HEL@T%
MJW):E::¢43m%)ﬁ
EERBEMAzZEMTIZRRE
IE@/AL)\&/AL ( E}E}E%’T HE KRTE
BHNE)NEETHE &b iR
BREMZBERBELREEEYHD
BERAHRME -

REBEZE_TE_=FRk-_FT-__F=
A=+—BLEFE RBREFIHER
EEMTERAIRRBRELESEE
Bz lkEeBEAT ERET
B RELBEPEESHEANZME

RE SHENEEMRENERE
ETEERNERAFEREEK AR
WFBEAEGTHEEMETRTNRS
H-RBEAEEFELIR #E
TR =F=-A=+—HLEFEE
TR E10,0008 L (Z T = ZF -
680,000/ 7T ) °

HE= R AR A A
SEBECC-FFR

235



236

15.PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continveq)

IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT (continueq)
Equity Investment

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the management
performed an impairment assessment on certain property
and equipment relating to the equity investment operation
(the “Equity Investment CGU”) as the management
concluded there was indication for impairment due to the
challenging business environment and prudent behaviours of
the investors as a result of global capital market downturn.

The recoverable amount of Equity Investment CGU has been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
the management covering five-year period, zero growth rate
is applied to extrapolate the cash flows beyond five-year
period during the year ended 31 March 2023. This growth
rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts
and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate
for the relevant industry. The discount rate applied to the
cash flow projections is 14.11% as at 31 March 2023.
Other key assumptions for the value in use calculation
related to the estimation of cash inflows and outflows which
include budgeted sales and budgeted net profit margin.
This estimation is determined based on the unit’s past
performance and management’s expectation for the market
development.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, based on the
result of the assessment, the directors determined that the
recoverable amount of the Equity Investment CGU is nil and
lower than the carrying amount. The impairment amount has
been allocated to each category of property and equipment
such that the carrying amount of each category of asset
is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less cost
of disposal, its value in use. Based on the value in use
calculation and the allocation, an impairment of HK$5,000
has been recognised for the year ended 31 March 2023.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBRRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —FE = =F =H=+—HIFZ

15. M =Rt =

A )
BERE

BHE_ZT_=F=A=+—HItF
B -EEEHEREREXRTERN
ETWELREHE(REREREE
EEBEMDETRERNE THRE
BREZBHHIERZREARATIHE
KEHREETRBER EEERR
S TFERE TR

RERERSELENNTRE S
BORBEREETEET EHM
BreRerREBANDEREREER
ERERFHRECMREBEE - RNEE
TE-ZHE=ZA=+—HIEE &
RAEEREREEBRAFHENE
SREB -WBRERDENBEITEZ
EBRENET TS@BBERITEY
FHRARE - RZT_=F=A
=+—H #AREREMARIR
ER1411% FEFRAEEMAZ
HFTZBREERESRARGL (8
RREHEREEAFNE)NEFE
oz met DRIBEZEN 2 BERR
LEREHMGER 2TEHMIE -

BHE-_ZT-_=F=RA=+—HILH#F
E-RBEFHER ETECTKRER
BReELBMNMNAKECEAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

16.GOODWILL 16.FH &
2023 2022
—s=-= —E-=
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
Gross carrying amount RE#&AE

As at the beginning and end of the year R F ¥ K& F K 3,994 3,994

Accumulated impairment losses REtREEE
As at the beginning of the year R EA) 3,994 -
Impairment loss recognised EERBEEIE - 3,994
As at end of the year RER 3,994 3,994
Net carrying amount REFE - -

The carrying amount of goodwill is allocated to the corporate
finance segment.

The recoverable amount of the corporate finance operation
is determined based on value in use calculations using cash
flow projections based on financial budget approved by the
management covering five-year period, zero growth rate
is applied to extrapolate the cash flows beyond five-year
period during the years ended 31 March 2022. This growth
rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts and
does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the
relevant industry. The discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections is 13.79%. Other key assumptions for the value
in use calculation related to the estimation of cash inflows
and outflows which include budgeted sales and budgeted
net profit margin. This estimation is determined based on the
unit's past performance and management’s expectation for
the market development.

BEZEMERIEZELERED

BB

TEREXEH 2IKRESEDRE
FRABETEET EMAZRS
METER HERE IR E I ERBE R
ERLFHEACZYBRBEE - REE-Z
——HFZA=Z+—HLLFE BBZ
TFEHECREREREER AT
RER W ERTDENIBEEITE 2
REMNET T2BBRMEAITE T
MR RR - HARSHREMAN
BhIE K B13.79% st EE A EEM
AzHMEEZRRZER S KA KRR
E(REREHEREEMLNE)N
et BB - Z AT IRIBZ B 2B
TRALEEEBYHMSER ZEH
7€ °

HE= R AR A A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBERRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —FE = =F =H=+—HIFZ

1 6. GOO DWI LL (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2022, based on the
result of the assessment, the directors determined that
the recoverable amount of the corporate finance CGU is
nil and lower than the carrying amount. Impairment loss

of approximately HK$3,994,000 recognised on goodwill
as the management considered various factors, such as a
challenging business environment and prudent behaviours

of the investors as a result of Hong Kong capital market
downturn that impact on the activity of IPO equity market.

17.0THER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

16. 8 (a0

HE_T-_—_F=ZA=+—HIt#F
B -RBENEER EFETLERM
EReEABUZAREBESEAT
BEREEHE BREEEZERRE
HAE - flinEgREEEKRBARE
BEAMBERERKEETRE
B-RMEEAARAEERENSE
BEKEE W mERRRESE
#93,994,00078 T

17.EMFERBEE

2023 2022
—g-= —E=-=

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

B =E FHET F& T

Club membership g 6,610 6,610

Regulatory deposits ETERE 205 230
Financial assets at FVOCI ERFEIAEMEE

Wz R EE (@) - 138

Intangible asset mEEE (b) - -

6,815 6,978

The regulatory deposits were made with the Stock Exchange
and Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited

("HKSCC”), in relation to the Group’s regulated businesses

in Hong Kong.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

17.0THER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

(Continued)

[A) FINANCIAL ASSETS AT Fvoci

mEMBRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 {2 = E = =F=H=+—HIFZE

17. 5 ERBEE »

(A] & 2FIEIA A MEEH

Financial assets at FVOCI

— Unlisted equity securities

Wzs 2% B /z
2023 2022
—_E_= —_E -

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHE T FHETT
BAFEIAEMEEH

KEZEMEE
- JE TR ARREF - 138

The fair value of the unlisted equity investment is
referenced to the net asset value of the respective

investees as at 31 March 2022.

(B] INTANGIBLE ASSET

R-ZEFE-_—_F=ZA=1+—8"
FETREREZAFEDZ
RERIILE T EEFE-

(B] #IEEE

License right

e BR R
HK$'000
FAET
At 1 April 2021, 31 March 2022, RZZE-——FWMA—H-
1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023 T —F=ZA=+—H"
- FMA—BK
—E-=F#=ZR=+—H
Cost X AR 2,261
Accumulated impairment RETRE (2,261)

HE= R AR A A
—EC-FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBERRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —FE = =F =H=+—HIFZ

17.0THER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 17. 5

(Continued)

(B) INTANGIBLE ASSET (continued)

The intangible asset represents a license right acquired
as part of a business combination of a subsidiary. The
license carries a right to conduct asset management
business in Hong Kong, and has no foreseeable
limit to the period over which the Group can use to
generate net cash flows. As a result, the license right
is considered by the management of the Group as
having an indefinite useful life and is not amortised. It
is tested for impairment annually and whenever there is
an indication that it may be impaired.

During the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022,
the Directors conducted a review on the recoverable
amount of the Group’s license right, which was
determined based on higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use calculation and determined
that the recoverable amount was lower than its carrying
amount, therefore, the carrying amount of the license
right was fully impaired.

18.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

HERBEE o

[B) BIEEE (#)

BREER —BHNBRAREK
BT 2 R - % e
RMEENIREEEEEE
EEEB AKBAURHERA
ERANELAREREFRE L
EARAEHR B AEEE
1P JE 5 b PR A AR A I R & E AT
ERFM BN THH- ERE
SELRBHRA G LRBER
EITRER -

BHE-_ZT-_=-Fk=-FT=-—
—A=t+t—HLEFE EFH
REERRE 2] 0 & 5
TEN ZeBREATFER
HEXALIRFEREBEBETE 2
BEeEErT kErJlRE®
KN EREE AR
ZHREEDBERE-

1. RBERT 2R

2023 2022
—E—-= —F-—

HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#& T FETT

Cost of investments in unlisted RIEEMHE R ZIREKA
associates 64,131 64,131

Share of post-acquisition profits and JE b U B 18 0% A 2 E A

other comprehensive income EEIL e 35,516 40,915
99,647 105,046
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mAEMBRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

18.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES continvey  18.ABEE RN B 2 B ()

Set out below are the particulars of the principal associates TRIIWR-ZE-_=ZFR_FT - =
as at 31 March 2023 and 2022 in the opinion of the FZA=T—BZFEBMEQFF
Directors of the Company, to give details of other associates B ARAEERE RREEMBE
would result in particulars of excessive length: RAIZHBEERERBR IR
Percentage of nominal Proportion of voting
value of issued capital right held by the
Place of Particulars of held by the Group Group at board level
incorporation  issued and AEMBERRT rEEFBESE
Form of and operation  paid up capital RAAEAAL ZRLA
Name of entity entity AMAIRE  BERORER 2022 2022 Principal activities
ERER -4 37 Fed-$oky ERFfE —Eo-F ZTooF TEER
Starlight Financial Holdings Limited Limited liability Hong Kong 234,000,000 ordinary 25% 25% 33% 33%  Investment holding
company shares (note 1) (note 1)
PEENERARELRA ARAR i 234,000,008 & % (BraE1) (Fa1) BARR
City Eagle Holdings Limited Limited liability Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares 25% 25% 33% 33%  Investment holding
company

RAERERAA BRAF B 100 & B R RERR
Chonggqing Liangjiang New Area Limited liability The PRC Registered capital of 25% 25% 33% 33%  Provision of secured financing

Runtong Small Loans company USD30,000,000 services and microfinance

Business Limited* (‘Runtong’) services in Chongging of

the PRC

ERTHINEEREER BRAA e #1174 %30,000,000% T ROEEETREEARE

AR ([HE]) R#BRNEERRE RS
Chongaing Run Kun Management Consulting  Limited liability The PRC Registered capital of 25% 25% 33% 33%  Financial consulting services

Company Limited (‘Run Kun”) company HK$10,000,000
ERERCRERANERAA ((BR]) BRAA HE £ & 410,000,000 7T 5 RS
Treasure Like Holdings Limited Limited liability Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 25% 25% 33% 33%  Provision of loan financing

(Previously known as China Runking company services

Financing Group Limited)
(METBEe N EEEFRAR) BRAF &k RERR RUESTRERS
* The English translation of the Chinese name in this annual * ARERPPNEEHEEE (B

report, where indicated, is included for information purpose HH)EH2E TERAEZPX
only, and should not be regarded as the official English name FEHERECATE-

of such Chinese name.

Note: B 5 -

1. The Group is able to exercise significant influence over 1. REBEAHEARERBAFITE
Starlight and its subsidiaries because it has the power to EATEN REAXEERER
appoint two out of the six directors of that company under RIBZEMINIER X EREEZ R A
the provisions stated in the shareholders’ agreement. NEEBEEFHMAE -

HE= R AR A A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBERRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —FE = =F =H=+—HIFZ

18.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continuea

Treasure Like Holdings Limited, City Eagle Holdings Limited,
Run Kun and Runtong are wholly-owned subsidiaries of
Starlight.

As at 31 March 2023, included in the cost of investments
in associates was goodwill of HK$4,052,000 (2022:
HK$4,052,000) arising on the acquisition of associates.

The summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s material associates, Starlight Group, which is
accounted for using the equity method is set out below.

18.RBE NT 2R (»)

Treasure Like Holdings Limited * ik 78
TRERAT - BEBMEREREAE N
ZEEMBAF -

MR-TE-_=ZF=ZA=+—H BEQ
AIRERABERBEHREAREL
2 F#4,052,0008 T (—Z T - =
4,052,000/ 7T ) °

AEBEABENTENEE (R
SORFNER) 2B ERBER T X

[

ﬂo

2023 2022

—Eg-= ="
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FH&T FE&ET
Current assets B EE 562,350 661,418
Non-current assets FERBEE 36,235 39,451
Total assets BEHE 598,585 700,869
Current liabilities mEaE 215,338 294,968
Non-current liabilities EREBEaE 865 1,922
Total liabilities BERE 216,203 296,890
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

18.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continuea

18.RBE NT 2R »)

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2023 2022

B=E HE

—Eg-= = —

=ZA=1+—0 =

IEFE WHFE

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAET

Revenue WA 49,483 54,041

Profit/(loss) for the year FrmF (E8) 3,420 (36)
Other comprehensive (expense)/income FRNEME2E (FxX) /HiE

for the year (25,017) 10,420
Total comprehensive (expense)/income  FRZME () /RS EEE

for the year (21,597) 10,384

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information
to the carrying amount of the interests in the associates
recognised in the consolidated financial statements is as
follows:

PR BERBRERGEE P HREK
NATHERRBE AR ZER ZRE
BEYERMT:

As at 31 March

R=ZBA=+—8H
2023 2022
—E-=HF —E-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHE T
Net assets of Starlight Group ENEECEEFE 382,382 403,979
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEBRENEEZHBE
in Starlight Group R 75 BTG B 51 25% 25%
95,595 100,994
Goodwill EES 4,052 4,052
Carrying amount of the Group’s AEBRENEEZ
interest in Starlight Group w2 REE 99,647 105,046

HE= R AR A A
—EC-FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBERRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —FE = =F =H=+—HIFZ

19.INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

19.REERNT ZRER

Cost of investments in unlisted RIELETEERT
joint ventures & & A

Share of post-acquisition losses and FE/L W R BB &
other comprehensive expenses FHEHAX

Disposal ael=<

2023 2022
:;ﬁ:E _=__
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FETT
Z

- 1,415

HAh
- (320)
- (1,095)

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group disposed
its entire interest in Shenzhen Qianhai Fortune Financial
Service Company Limited and Shenzhen Qianhai Fortune
Equity Investment Management Co., Ltd. at a cash
consideration of RMB970,000 (equivalent to HK$1,220,000),
resulting a gain on disposal of approximately HK$57,000.

The financial information and carrying amount, in aggregate,
of the Group’s interests in joint ventures that are not
individually material and are accounted for using equity
method are set out below:

e

HE - ZT-__F#=ZFA=+—HLH#F
B AKBECHEERRIITAIES
BERMRBERARKEIBE S
BREREEEARAAI 22 HBE
@ HeNRE A ARMKI70,0007T (18
& 71,220,000/ 7T ) + E A H B W
#957,00078 7T °

BREMmME X TERLZEEET K
ZAEBRERAZMBER KK
HEAEFHINMT

2023 2022
—Egq-= P ——

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET FET

The Group’s share of loss AEEEMEIE - (12)
The Group’s share of other REB E(GH M2 E W

comprehensive income - 43
The Group’s share of total AEBEGEEZEYNERE

comprehensive income - 31

GoFintech Innovation Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBHRERME (K)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

19.INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 19.REERTI 2R =)

(Continued)

2023 2022

—E_=F g
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#& T FATT

Carrying amount of the Group’s interests NEBRZETEKRAEZE AT

in immaterial joint ventures ZHEm Z BREE - -
£ =3
20.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 20.&/&%‘&%%)&%;5%,&&2
2022
—E-= —_EFq_-_—
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FE& T FAET
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEIAEBRERZ
EWMEE
Equity securities listed: ETRAEE S
- in Hong Kong -REE 10,922 5,391
Equity instrument unlisted: EEMBRATA:
- outside Hong Kong - REBEABLAIN 5,115 -
16,037 5,391
Fund investment EeKE 55,421 -
71,458 5,391
Derivative financial instruments PTEemIA 33 -
71,491 5,391
The fair values of the above listed equity and debt securities L ERARBEBEHFLRITES
and derivative financial instruments are determined based MTEZAFEDIBRERBIZA
on the quoted market bid prices available from the relevant FrszmiZE AREBET -
exchange.

HE= R AR A A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBHRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —FE = =F =H=+—HIFZ

21.LOAN AND TRADE RECEIVABLES 21.%”&%%’\&%5@”&&5

FA

2023 2022

—Eg-= =z
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 3E F#& T FAT
Trade receivables g 5 MW ER K (a) 30,397 47,537
Loan receivables — current EUE K — R E (b) 12,247 50,727
42,644 98,264

(A] B 5 BN iR

B RWIRR 2 &g (R TAE

[A) TRADE RECEIVABLES

The followings are the balances of trade receivables,

net of ECL: HEgEEE) T :
2023 2022
—=E_-= =
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FET
Trade receivables from securities REBHFELERZ
brokerage business B 5 YR
— cash clients -ReRF - 24
- HKSCC —BABEER 908 410
- margin clients —-HFREF 40,749 48,257
Trade receivables from KEHEMEB 2EH
other businesses & W BR 3R 3,344 1,639
45,001 50,330
Less: ECL B TEHEEEE (14,604) (2,793)
30,397 47,537
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBHRERME (K)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

21.LOAN AND TRADE RECEIVABLES 21.§WE§K&§%E§WE€E

(Continued) TA (&)
[A) TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) (A) EZ KR (=)

The settlement terms of trade receivables from cash
clients and HKSCC arising from securities brokerage
business are two trading days after trade date. The
Group allows an average credit period of 30 days to its
customers from other businesses.

No aging analysis is disclosed for the Group’s margin
clients as these margin clients were carried on an open
account basis, and only fall due on conditions or on
demand by the Group. The Directors consider that an
aging analysis does not give additional value in the
view of the nature of these receivables.

The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables
(excluding margin clients), net of ECL, as at 31 March
2023 and 2022 based on the invoice date was as

BERRCEBRELEZKRBR
ERPMNEBEBEEMZESE
WERENHRAEERAHRR
MER S H - AEBRHME
BOHEPR T FIH30HMNEE
HA o

HRAKBZFREP HRE
KEFEEIER BERT K
HRBEASEERTAER
WY EREERBERERON -E
ERA ERNZFREREZ
M A Bl 0 AT I EE S
BE-

ENBERSHE S RERER (F7
BREFBRIINR_ZE-_=ZFK
—TE--F=ZA=+—8 (1

follows: RIEHEEESBE) KRBT
W

2023 2022

—E-= ==
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Less than 30 days L HR30H 1,307 493
31 to 60 days 31£60H 315 342
61 to 90 days 61E90H 3 -
Over 90 days 90B M F 413 556
2,038 1,391

HE= R AR A A
—EC-FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBERRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —FE = =F =H=+—HIFZ

21.LOAN AND TRADE RECEIVABLES

(Continued)
[A) TRADE RECEIVABLES (continueq)

Trade receivables from cash and margin clients
are secured by the clients’ pledged securities at
quoted market value of HK$57,941,000 (2022:
HK$560,284,000) which could be realised at
the Group’s discretion to settle any margin call
requirements imposed by their respective securities
transactions. The trade receivables from cash and
margin clients are repayable on demand and bear
interest at commercial rates. As at 31 March 20283,
included in the total trade receivables, HK$28,359,000
(2022: HK$46,170,000) was interest bearing whereas
HK$2,038,000 (2022: HK$1,367,000) was non-interest
bearing. There is no re-pledge of the collateral from
margin clients in both years.

The movement of ECL on trade receivables during the
year is as follows:

2L§WE%&§%@WE

/43 )
(#&)

(A] B ZEWERF &)

RekFREFPZE ZEUE
FUABEFPZEMRBLHIEMISH
B57,941,0008 t (ZF = =
% :560,284,000/% 7T ) 3 - B
AEBEAHEELRBEHEERE
H ULEEAMNERESSa#
NZBEFERGBEH 2 ITRE
BEER-RERFERFZE
SERERATIZREREE I
EEENEGFE - RZ2T=_=
FZA=Z+—R E5REUKE
R HBEE E 28,359,000/ 7T (=
T — — £ :46,170,0008 7T ) B
& m2,088,0008 L (=&
— % :1,367,000/8 7T ) B &t
B-MEFEAFREF 2K
Ry ERER-

FNE S RENER B
EREBMT

2023 2022

—g=-= —E- =
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FHET
At the beginning of the year REA 2,793 54
ECL recognised during the year, net F AR 2 FEH{E EE 1B 11,811 2,739
At the end of the year RER 14,604 2,793

Further details of the Group’s credit policy and credit
risk arising from trade receivables are set out in note
34(b).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBHRERME (K)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

21.LOAN AND TRADE RECEIVABLES 21.§WE§K&§%E§WE€E

(Continued) TA (&)
[B) LOAN RECEIVABLES (B) FE I B 5
2023 2022
—E=-= -z
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FET FETT
Current portion MEER 2
Secured loan receivables R BRI E R 14,139 14,139
Unsecured loan receivables JEUE K I E R 3,014 36,588
17,153 50,727
Less: ECL B TEEEEEE (4,906) -
12,247 50,727

The Group has provided money lending and mortgage
services in Hong Kong during the year. The customers
are mainly individuals. The Group recorded an
interest income from money lending of approximately
HK$2,788,000 (2022: approximately HK$8,348,000),
representing a decrease of approximately 66.60% as
compared with the corresponding period in 2022.

As at 31 March 2023, the secured loan receivables
are secured by all monies, deposits and equity shares
of listed companies with fair value of HK$3,298,000
(2022: HK$2,567,000) in the securities account and
second mortgage over certain property units and
carried interest at a fixed interest rate at 12% to 13%
(2022: 12% to 13%) per annum.

REEBRFREFBRER
BEREERB BMOEPE
EARBEF - ANEEHFNK
& F B U A #492,788,0007% 7T

(ZF = — 5 : 498,348,000/
)R IEZ_FERERAL
66.60% °

RZE-_=F=Z/A=+—8"
FEWEERERTIUABEER
FZHAERE - EREUARAF
8 53,298,000 T2 EmA
AleEmRN(ZE==
2,567,000 ) K& TWHE
2 RIBERT Wik EEF
A E12% E=13% (Z T = =
12% £13% ) 5T B o

HE= R AR A A
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21.LOAN AND TRADE RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

(B) LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued)

As at 31 March 20283, the unsecured loan receivables
are guaranteed by the independent third parties, and
carried interest at fixed interest rate at 12% (2022: 12%

to 15%) per annum.

The amount of loans receivables due from the
largest borrower and the five largest borrowers are
approximately HK$9,087,000 (2022: approximately
HK$22,519,000) and approximately HK$17,153,000
(2022: approximately HK$50,727,000) respectively.

The Group has certain concentration risk on loan
receivables as it has three (2022: five) customers with
outstanding balances of approximately HK$17,153,000
(2022: approximately HK$50,727,000) as at 31 March
2023.

The following is an aging analysis, net of ECL, based
on the loan drawdown date, of the loan receivables
outstanding at reporting date:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBHRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 =L = =F =H=+—HIF&E

21. J?EH&E A% E 5 FEWER

[ 435 )
(g /

(B]) BEIRE 7 (%)

RZTEZ=F=ZA=+—H"
F’EM&Z?&%&WE ?;zlmﬁﬂ
2% (ZEZZ_F :12% &
15% )5t B THZEBILE=
TR

FEW & K&K A KA KGR
,;?x%%lw%%@sa 087, oooﬁéﬁm
(ZZ = =% : 422,519,000/
7T) & #917,153,0008 7t (= &
— % :4950,727,0008 7T ) °

RZEZ=F=RA=+—8"
HRAEB =% (===
FE)BEPHABEGERN A
17,153,000 L (=T = =
#950,727,0007% 70 ) - E It AN &
EEKEFRGFE—TRENSE
R

TREINRXNHEAHEHARER
ZEWERREERENA S
DB (MR BHEER
Ei8)

2023 2022

—E-= ==
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#& T FAT
Less than 30 days L H30H 153 227
31 to 60 days 31260H - -
61 to 90 days 61%290H - -
Over 90 days 90H M E 12,094 50,500
12,247 50,727
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
IIV_\ ZI- i% $ﬁ '%% B{-J- ? ( nlﬁ )

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

21.LOAN AND TRADE RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

21.J?§LI&E

/TA (&)

(B]) BEIRE 7 (%)

% & E 5 W R

(B) LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued)

The movement of gross balance of loan receivables is

as follows:

R E R R R BT

Stage 1 Stage 2 Total
B EMER R
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT THERT THERT
At 1 April 2021 RZEZ—FMA—H 90,768 4,943 95,711
Amounts originated EEZEH 11,928 420 12,348
Amounts recovered or repaid ~ FRWEIH(EE 2 &5
during the year (51,969) (256) (52,225)
Amounts written off S8 B EE BRI
as uncollectible - (5,107) (5,107)
At 31 March 2022 and KW-_ZE__F=A=+—H
1 April 2022 M=ZE--FA—H 50,727 - 50,727
Transfer from stage 1 to BE—BERME_EREE
stage 2 (13,109) 13,109 -
Amounts originated EEZEH 10,976 1,512 12,488
Amounts recovered or repaid ~ FRKEIHEE &5
during the year (43,542) (2,520) (46,062)
At 31 March 2023 RZZE_=F=R=+—H 5,052 12,101 17,153

HE= R AR A A
—EC-FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBHRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 =L = =F =H=+—HIF&E

21.LOAN AND TRADE RECEIVABLES 21.EEL|&E A&k E Z EUWER

(Continued) /TA (%)
[B) LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued) (B) BN E 5L (&)
The movement of ECL of loan receivables is as follows: EURERBHEEBSEYZ D
U
Stage 1 Stage 2 Total
F-KE E_RER B
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TR TR
At 1 April 2021 RZE-—FMHA—H - 2,421 2,421
ECL recognised during the year FRIERZEHEEERE - 2,686 2,686
Amounts written off WsE A EE B RIR

as uncollectible - (5,107) (5,107)

At 31 March 2022 and RZZEZZF=A=+—H
1 April 2022 MZEZ_FWA—H - - -
ECL recognised during the year F AR BHEEEE - 4,906 4,906
At 31 March 2023 KR-ZZE-_=F=A=+—H - 4,906 4,906
The loan receivables are due for settlement at the date ERERREBERBHET
specified in the respective loan agreements. Further HEEHEE - FEAAEEE
details of the Group’s credit policy and credit risk ’gﬂlﬁ&ﬁ“qﬁlﬁ ATELEE
arising from loan receivables are set out in note 34(b). SR E— S HF BN

MMO
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

CONTRACT ASSETS AND 22.5EHNEEREGHNEE
CONTRACT LIABILITIES
2023 2022
—EB-=F =
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FE&ET
Contract assets EHEE
— arising from corporate finance —RELEREREE L
services contracts 17 -
Contract liabilities EHEE
— arising from billings in advance of —RELEREREELHZ
corporate finance services contracts BT 3B - 419

Contract assets related to the Group’s right to consideration
for corporate finance services transferred but not billed at
the reporting date. The contract assets are transferred to
receivable when the right become unconditioned.

Contract liabilities related to the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration before the Group recognises
the services income from corporate finance business.

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS

SMEERAKERE (BN
ERMHAREZ O EREBHK
MR EZEFEE KSR B ER
5 BT I 4 A1 8 B
8 -

ARNAERASETRNBERRA D
ERMEXRD 2 RHBWARBEAE
ZEGFITENERE -

2. HMERARIE -RER
A RIE

2023 2022

—E-=HF —E- =
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHE T F&ET
Other receivables H b fE U I8 2,892 17,927
Interest receivables & R B 63 -
Rental and other deposits HMEKHEMZS 2,709 2,232
Prepayments TET FRIE 682 847
6,346 21,006

Other receivables mainly represent monies placed in various
brokers accounts.

HMEKRAEEIEEFATREL
REHESR-

HE= R AR A A
—EC-FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBERRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —FE = =F =H=+—HIFZ

24.BANK BALANCES AND CASH

[A) BANK BALANCES AND CASH—TRUST

The Group maintains segregated trust accounts with
licensed banks to hold clients’ monies arising from its
securities brokerage and margin financing business.
The Group has classified the clients’ monies as bank
balances and cash - trust under the current assets
of the consolidated statement of financial position
and recognised the corresponding trade payables to
respective clients on the grounds that it is liable for any
loss or misappropriation of clients’ monies. The Group
is restricted to use the clients’ monies to settle its own
obligations.

(B] BANK BALANCES AND CASH —

GENERAL

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the bank
balances and bank deposits carried interest at market
rates ranging from 0% to 4.72% (2022: 0% to 0.5%)
per annum.

25.TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER
PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Trade payables from the securities
brokerage business: JE AR K -

KEBLFREEB2ES

24 BITHGBRES
(A) $RITHBAR B S — (55F

AREBRFERITHARBILIE
AEPUARAREZSELK
HREBEXBELEZEPHIA
AEEBEFPFRADBRER
MBRARRBEER T 2R
TEHEERREE-GFE ARAK
SEEARZEREPKAZEM
BRI BEEE  BAimEE
BRZERASENERER
ZE 5HRIA AR BN
EPRERNEEEARNSER-

(B) RITHBHREEL - — MK

REBEE-_TE-_=#=A=+—
BIEFE - SRIOTEBRETHE
BIEEFEN T0% £4.72% (=
T - _F:0%%E05%)2TH
FIEE B o

25.5 5 FE( IS - H o
REER e E A

2023 2022
— === —=E-

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTET FHETT

— margin and cash clients - HFRERSEP 137,157 172,364
Other payables and accruals HEENRIBERETER 4,525 7,097
141,682 179,461
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

25.TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER
PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (continue)

No aging analysis is disclosed for the Group’s trade
payables to margin and cash clients as these clients were
carried on an open account basis. The directors consider
that the aging analysis does not give additional value in the
view of the nature of these payables.

As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the other payables and
accruals mainly represent accrued bonus and commission to
the staff.

26.LEASE LIABILITIES

The following table shows the remaining contractual
maturities of the Group’s lease liabilities:

25%?@ﬁ$$‘§@@
NREREFTER 2

HRAKRBEZARMREEF IR
EXRBEPEEIER MABRESR
MEFIRNRBZRESNT -EFR

B ERNZERNFBAIMEEER

RZE-_=ZFK-_F-__4=ZAH
—t+—H HEtEMNZKELESER
FERBETIZEAIEARAE-

26 THEE @

TRETAKEEHEREZRGRE
WEIHA

2023 2022
—_Eg-= —_=__
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Total minimum lease payments: &EMHEN KB :
Due within one year — F R E H 5,533 7,005
Due in the second to fifth years E_FERFERFRNRH 107 4,881
5,640 11,886
Future finance charges on lease liabilites FfHE&BE 72 AKX EEH (66) (265)
Present value of lease liabilities HEAEBZIREAE 5,574 11,621
Present value of minimum lease payments: =EHEENMH 7 IRE -
Due within one year —F N EIE 5,468 6,790
Due in the second to fifth years F_FEERFRNIHE 106 4,831
5,574 11,621
Less: Portion due within one year BOETARBABEETZ
included under current liabilities —FRNEIEAE D (5,468) (6,790)
Portion due after one year included FAERBAEETZ
under non-current liabilities —FRINHHLH 106 4,831

HE= R AR A A
—EC-FFR

255



256

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBHRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 — £ -~ =4 =H=+—H I F/&Z

26.LEASE LIABILITIES (continvea) 26 HEE B »
As at 31 March 2023, the Group entered into 3 leases for RZE-_=F=ZA=+—H ~5£H
office premises and warehouse with a range of remaining RMAEMERBEEIINHEE -
lease term of 9 months to 19.5 months. All the leases for Tl ep B Fof@l A =19.518 A - Fr
office premises have the extension option and termination ERAEMEHELHAEEEHRRE
option, the Group considered that no extension option or R PEEE - R_T _=F=H
termination option would be exercised as at 31 March 2023. =t+—B AEERBEITEITE

BHEERRRILEERRE-

As at 31 March 2022, the Group entered into 4 leases for RZEZZF=RA=+—H X&5H
office premises and warehouse with a range of remaining MM AEMWERBER L4 EE
lease term of 4 months to 21 months. All the leases for FABEBENF4E R E1EA - B
office premises have the extension option and termination MAEMEHEEBEEHEERE
option while the leases for car parking spaces only have R F#EERE MpEuESERE
the renewal option, the Group considered that no extension B - RZTE-__F=A=+—8"
option or termination option would be exercised as at 31 AEERBEBTETFEEREER
March 2022. RESAR DIEIEME -
During the year ended 31 March 2023, the total cash %Z;n:_l;__i A=+—H1Lt
outflows for the leases are HK$7,244,000 (2022: FE -HERS ML LT R7,244,000
HK$8,950,000). BT (ZF - -%:8,950,000%
JT) °
£ &
27.LOAN PAYABLES 27.BER
2023 2022
—E-=F —Zg-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FHE T
Bank loans, wholly repayable within —F R ﬁ?ﬁzgsﬁﬁ%ﬂgﬁﬁ'\]
one year or on demand: IRITER
Unsecured ?ﬁﬁ#ﬁ - 100,458
- 100,458
As at 31 March 2023, no loan was borrowed. RZEZ=F=RA=+—80 BERHE
)\jén’%x"
As at 31 March 2022, the unsecured bank loan amounted to RZFZ_F=A=1T—R 28R
HK$100,458,000 borne variable interest rate and guaranteed 100’,458,000/%7E2ﬁﬁﬁ ik ﬁgi%’?
by the corporate guarantee given by a wholly-owned REBMEHE YHARAEZE
subsidiary of the Company, Fortune Finance Limited. The MEBAAERMBAERAAREZ
rate as at 31 March 2022 was 2.83% per annum. A jjﬂ*ﬁdl’zﬁ%ﬁ R-ZF__%F=A

= +—HFEFREE283% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

28.CONVERTIBLE BONDS

The Group employs convertible bonds as one of its sources
of financing.

At reporting date, carrying amounts of the convertible bonds

28. [ R B %

AEBERAIBRKREFEFE-"BHES
R

RSB H - ATEES 2 REEN

is as follows: T

2023 2022
— % == ="
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FET FET
Convertible bonds A 5

— Current - - -
Convertible bond reserve AR E S FEE - -

Particulars of convertible bonds issued during the respective
years were set out as below:

REFEETZABRKRESFBH

FaAT

Issuer earlier

Effective redemption
Issue date Maturity rate Coupon rate interest date Principal right
BIA
BTAH ZIHA FEX ERF= Ae¥  RAEEE
HK$'000
TR
Year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NF
ZA=t-BIEFE
2019 A 5 July 2018 5 July 2021 2% 11.74% 60,000 No
—Z-\¥tAAA 2%+t HAAA it

All of the convertible bonds were unsecured, did not
contained any issuer’s early redemption rights, unless
previously converted, each of the convertible bond shall
be redeemed at 100% of the principal amount outstanding
on the maturity date together with the outstanding interest
payable on the maturity date and any other outstanding
amount due but unpaid under the convertible bonds (if any).

Each of the convertible bonds were convertible to ordinary
shares at the conversion price of HK$0.06 per share upon
its issuance. Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed on
16 October 2020 by the shareholders, every ten issued and
unissued ordinary shares of par value at HK$0.01 each in
the share capital of the Company has been consolidated
into one consolidated share of par value at HK$0.10
each, accordingly, the conversion price per share on the
convertible bonds was adjusted to HK$0.60 per share.

FAENBRERESAEKE YESS
TRBETAZIREBEDE KRS
BoN B RRESFERIIBHREER
BB RS FEM100% B @ - & [ 5 5
HEAEERGANEARATRKE
SETNEMEMEIBERNSE
(mnA) -

ZEMBESFTRETRULIRE
FRRMD0.06B L AR AL BEE IR
BERFEAR-ZZE-ZZTF+A+~AB
B ERABRE AQAFBRAFE+
MEESRO.OVE T B E8IT hAZHE
TERRKRE A M A —REESR.10
BILZ ARG Bt TR ES
JEHBRABERAE AT RIH0.60
P IT

HE= R AR A A
—EC-FFR

257



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBERRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —FE = =F =H=+—HIFZ

28.CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continveq)

28. [ R BEF =)

Movements in carrying amounts of the liability components BEBORETBDCERNEED
and equity components are summarised below. B n T o
2019 A
HK$’000
FAET
Liability components aEHD
At 1 April 2021 RZZEZ—FMWMH—H 21,604
Interests at effective interest rates REBRMEHE ZFE 656
Redemption upon maturity B EAR B O (22,260)
At 31 March 2022, 1 April 2022 and W_E__F=A=+—8"
31 March 2023 :E::iﬂlﬁ—ﬁ&
—E=F=ZA=+—H -
Equity components EEBD
At 1 April 2021 RZZE_—FMA—H 5,161
Lapse of conversion option upon maturity FI) HA B R A R 2K K (5,161)

At 31 March 2022, 1 April 2022 and
31 March 2023

RZZE-_—_F=A=+—8"
—EZ_FWA—HK
B F=ZA=+—H -

29.CORPORATE BONDS

The Group employs corporate bonds as one of its sources
of financing. At the reporting date, carrying amount of
unsecured corporate bonds at amortised cost includes:

29. X AfEH

AEBEKABRESEF-"HEEK
ReoMmE BH WBHKARTRZ
BEERARREFZREERSE:

Current
Non-current

2023 2022
- = —_=__
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT TAET
29,185 33,007
2,017 30,519
31,202 63,526

GoFintech Innovation Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBHRERME (K)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

29.CORPORATE BONDS (continveq) 29. R EIEH =)
Particulars of outstanding corporate bonds at the reporting RBEBHREEQRRESZHEB
date were set out below: BHymT
Annual Effective Carrying
Terms coupon rate interest rate Principal amount
Issue in the year ended BEUTHHLEERRST FH FERR ERFIE r&H REE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET THT
At 31 March 2023 R-B-=#=ZHA=+-H
31 March 2017 —Z—+%=ZfA=+—-H 7-7.5 years 6.5% 9.10%-9.12% 30,100 31,202
31,202
At 31 March 2022 RZZZZF=R=+—H
31 March 2014 —T-mE=A=1+—H 8.5-8.67 years 7% 9.20%-9.24% 20,000 20,551
31 March 2016 i S e =] 7 years 6.5% 9.12% 12,000 12,456
31 March 2017 —Z—+%=fA=+-H 7-7.5 years 6.5%  9.10%-9.12% 30,100 30,519
63,526
These corporate bonds are repayable as follows: i
2022
—E-= ==
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET
Within one year —F AR 29,185 33,007
More than one year but not —F A FERBBERF
exceeding two years 2,017 28,547
More than two years but not MEAEBTBARF
exceeding five years - 1,972
31,202 63,526

HE= R AR A A

—g==gzg 29
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mAEMBRRETE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #;

30.SHARE CAPITAL 30. % 4
Number of
shares Amount
[igng 4= -]
Notes ‘000 HK$’000
B 5+ Fhz FET
Authorised: EE:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each AZE-_—FA—H-
at 1 April 2021, 31 March 2022 —E--F=A=1+—-80k
and 1 April 2022 —E--—#mMA—H
SREEA0E T2 Bl 2,000,000 200,000
Increase authorized share capital 1 000E FE R AR (A) 18,000,000 1,800,000
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each RZEZ=%=RF=+—H
at 31 March 2023 FREBE10B T2 L BR 20,000,000 2,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each RZE-—FmOA—FH"
at 1 April 2021, 31 March 2022 —E--F=ZA=t+—HK
and 1 April 2022 —E-_FMA—H
BREE.108B T2 L BR 915,308 91,531
Issue of share BT (B) 183,000 18,300
Issue of share BITHR D ©) 219,660 21,966
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each RZE_=F=A
at 31 March 2023 =t+—BA8kREE
010/ T2 & R 1,317,968 131,797
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

30 . S HAR E CAP I TAL (Continueqd)

(A)

INCREASE OF SHARE CAPITAL

In March 2023, the Company passed a proposed
resolution to approve the increase of authorized
share capital of the Company from HK$200,000,000
divided into 2,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each to
HK$2,000,000,000 divided into 20,000,000,000 shares
by the creation of additional 18,000,000,000 shares.

(B) ISSUE OF SHARE

(cl

In September 2022, a total of 183,000,000 ordinary
shares with a nominal value of HK$0.10 each were
issued upon completion of the subscription of which
53,000,000 ordinary shares were subscribed by a
close family member of one of the directors while
remaining 130,000,000 to independent third parties.
The net proceeds received by the Company from the
subscription was approximately HK$56,730,000.

ISSUE OF SHARE

In January 2023, a total of 219,660,000 ordinary shares
with a nominal value of HK$0.10 each were issued
upon completion of the placing to independent third
parties. The net proceeds received by the Company
from the placing was approximately HK$56,820,000.

31.RESERVES
[A) SPECIAL RESERVE

The special reserve of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value of the shares of
the subsidiaries acquired and the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued for the acquisition under the
corporate reorganisation of the Group.

30. 1R A (=)
[A] 1250/ 7K

R-ZTE-_=ZF=F AQAEB
—ERERABR HEHEER
%8 9M8,000,000,000/% B 153+ #5
XA RVA TE B 7K B3200,000,000
ot (9 52,000,000,000%
FR0.10B T W AR 1D ) 18
%£2,000,000,0008 7t (H A
20,000,000,0000% f% 15 ) °

(B) Z1THK 17

RZTEZZFNA RRES
15 (E F153,000,0000% & 8 %
HM—RBESFZHHRE MR
T130,000,000% & 38 A% A & 32
F=FRE)THE 6B E
77183,000,000/% & A% E {80.10
BT EBR - ARAIRRE
EEWBMZAABREBEFELY
56,730,000/ 7T °

(C] ZFITIR

RZBZ=F—A REKRA
BYFE=—FEEERNE &
& % 17219,660,0000% & A% & &
0.10/8 7L 2 E Ak - N QR AC
EEPRRZABREFEFER
#756,820,00078 JT °

31.(# 5
(A] 135k 215

AEEZERFERBERBEARE
BeRREHE KENER
B 2 B 40 5 62 L U B = TR
TARBIRPDZEEMERZ
ZE-e

HE= R AR A A
—EC-FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBERRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —FE = =F =H=+—HIFZ

31.RESERVES (continuea)
[B) CAPITAL RESERVE

The capital reserve represents the contributions made
by the then controlling shareholder under the corporate
reorganisation of the Group.

[C) OTHER RESERVE

The other reserve mainly represents premium arisen
from the acquisition of additional 20% equity interest in
Fortune Financial Capital Limited at cash consideration
of HK$1,793,000, additional 25% equity interest
in Fortune Wealth Management Limited at cash
consideration of HK$1,125,000 from non-controlling
interests on 18 May 2012 and 10 January 2013
respectively and additional 20% equity interest in & 58
AR ORY) B R R E at cash consideration of
RMB100,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$114,000)
from non-controlling interest on 30 November 2016.

32.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Except as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, there are no significant related party transactions
in the normal course of the Group’s business for the years

ended 31 March 2023 and 2022.

COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT

PERSONNEL

All executive directors were considered to be the key
management personnel of the Group. The remunerations of

executive Directors for the years were as follows:

3.#E =

(B] Attt

BN ok R 95 B B 2 IR IR R AR
BEAEEZAREMAEHZH

(C] Aftt#

EM@FEHETEEDIR_Z
——FEBEA+NBRERZE—=
F-—ATHREZERERIAR
% 181,793,000/ T W B = 34
T REE ARG R QA FEIN20% K
7 AR & R (E1,125,00008 7T
WEEaMEEE AR AAE
Ih25% BRHE AR ZF — X
F+—A=Zt+HMFEBRERS
IR & K E AR®100,0005T
(FEER4114,0000 7T ) WS
RBRHIRS ORI BR A AT
Sh20% AR HEFTEE £ 2 (B ©

2. LR 5

BREEVMERRSEREINH
ECE_=FRFE-__F=A
=t+—HIFE RAEEEFTER
BREPTESKEHAIF -

FEEBAEZHE
SEATEERRAREEA IR

ERASHTEENEEE S FHH
mT

2023 2022

—E-= —E=-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FAET
Short-term benefits %= HR A 6,508 7,884
Post-employment benefits RIKEF 54 54
6,562 7,938
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

33.0FFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSET

AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The following financial assets and financial liabilities
are subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting
arrangements and similar agreements.

The Group maintained accounts with the HKSCC through
which they conducted securities trading transactions and
settlement on a net basis.

In presenting the amounts due from and to HKSCC (included
in trade receivables or trade payables with clearing house),
the Group has offset the gross amount of the accounts
receivable from and the gross amount of the accounts
payable to HKSCC. The amounts offset and the net balances
are shown as follows:

33.&@%%%@’5%&@%@'&

NMIeREEMERAGERN THEE
URANTZFREETRERE
Ut 2 BRIR

AEBHEEAHEEMRARER BB
ZERFPETEFBEERH LR F
BMELELEH -

REJNEE K ENELEERFA
(FFABBEE LR 2E SRR NIE
NEERRZEZERFE A&E
EREEKNEBEEN 2 HIARR
NENEBEER 2 FRIRRE - HH
RN ESRFREATN T -

Net amount
Gross Amount receivable
amount offset (payable)
FEU (FET)
NELE HETE NEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THEL TEL
As at 31 March 2023 R-ZBE-=%=ZA=+-H
Trade receivable from HKSCC BREBEEMZEHEN 1,645 (737) 908
Trade payable to HKSCC BREBGEEMIBESER (737) 737 -
As at 31 March 2022 R-ZE-_-_#=ZA=+—H
Trade receivable from HKSCC EREREEMZESHER 1,654 (1,244) 410
Trade payable to HKSCC ERNEBEEMIBEHERR (1,244) 1,244 -

HE= R AR A A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBERRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —FE = =F =H=+—HIFZ

34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT .U RREERAFE
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT AT E
[A] CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL (A) £FEE T HAZEF
INSTRUMENTS
2023 2022
—E-= —ZF-
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Financial assets SWMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost: IR E M AT IR 2 R & E -
- Regulatory deposits —EEEE 205 230
— Loan and trade receivables —EWERNE S ERIER 42,644 98,264
— Other receivables and deposits —HMEWRIERIZE 5,664 20,159
— Bank balances and cash — trust —R{T&EBRRIRE 155 136,902 175,336
- Bank balances and cash — general —R{T#MB MRS —— K& 111,748 190,418
Financial assets at FVTPL: ERFEIABRERZ
CRVEE
— Equity securities listed —REBREFBUSIN
in Hong Kong and EmZRAES
outside Hong Kong 10,922 5,391
- Equity instrument unlisted — BB AINE ETRA
outside Hong Kong TA 5,115 -
- Fund investment —EeE 55,421 -
— Derivative financial instruments TSI A 33 -
Financial assets at FVOCI: BERAFEIAEMEE
Wz eREE:
— Unlisted equity securities — 3 ETMRAES - 138
368,654 489,936
Financial liabilities cRAaE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: #Z# K AFIR 2z R B E
- Trade payables, other —BZRNER B
payables and accruals ERNFRIEREGER 141,682 179,461
— Loan payables —-ERER - 100,458
— Corporate bonds —RREH 31,202 63,526
— Convertible bonds — AR E S - -
~ Lease liabilities —HEaE 5,574 11,621
178,458 355,066
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mAEMBRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

(Continued)

BRI EERATE

) =
=T B8 /42
nlinﬁq)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (B) B 75 e & FE B 12 KR IH

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s financial instruments include regulatory
deposits, loan and trade receivables, other receivables
and deposits, bank balances and cash—trust and
general, equity and debt investments, derivative
financial instruments, trade payables, other payables
and accruals, loan payables, corporate bonds,
convertible bonds and lease liabilities. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments
and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Currency risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk of loss due to adverse
movements in foreign exchange rate relating to foreign
currency denominated in equity and debt investments,
derivative financial instruments, loan receivables,
other receivables, bank balances, trade payables,
other payables and accruals. The Group’s exposure
to currency risk is minimal. The Group currently does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However,
the management monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign exposure
should the need arise.

=

AEBZeRMIABREEER
T RRERLEZHEEER
Hip EURRARRE RITHE
HEAE —ER R BHER
ERKRE TE2MTHE BS
JE A BR K B A FE S SRR R
FER BNENR QREH
AgEEFLAEERE-ZF
EMTAZHBRABMHES
BERE-ZEeRIARBEZA
@ Ko ane] RUIR 3% L B 2 R
HIMN TN -EBEEENRE
EZERAR UHRER KA
Xt B I E R

EWER

SNEE L B TS R R A SN BB 2
BEREHRE TEERT
B s R Bl MR
RITHES BEZRMNERZR Hit
FEATFRIR M At B A 3R A F
SINGEE B R B ) 8 B B AR LR o
AEEBZEERREM A&
) 35 B 0 SNBSS EROR 0 A
i & IR JE BL AR SNE LB - 3 A
REFERZ E L HERIME
B o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBERRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —FE = =F =H=+—HIFZ

34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

(Continued)

(B] FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated in monetary assets and liabilities at the
reporting date are as follows:

—=—=

—_m

HK$°000

Chinese Yuan Renminbi (‘RMB’) AR (TAR%])
United States Dollar (‘USD”) En([Ex])

U.YHERAMEERDQFE

T B &)

(B]

Assets

aE

2023

TR

35,198

16,599

BEEEEEFZEREK
T ()

E¥mk(&7)

S A E R Y YN
BrEsEERAB L EAE
M

Liabilities
2
2022 2023 2022

—E-F el —EC-CF

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THT THET THT

13,635 1,550 1,177
85,507 847 1,931

As HK$ is pegged to USD, the Group does not expect
any significant movements in the USD/HK$ exchange
rates. In the opinion of the Directors of the Company,
the foreign currency sensitivity analysis does not give
additional value in view of insignificant movement in the
USD/HK$ exchange rates.

GoFintech Innovation Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

(Continued)

(B] FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

HEAREERATE

T = (@)

(B) BB AR EEAERE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) R (&)
Currency risk (Continued) ERE (&)
As at reporting date, the sensitivity analysis of RMB RBEBEH ARBEETTZ
against HK$ is as follows: BRESFTWT
Increase/
decrease in Increase/
Sensitivity loss for decrease in
rate the year equity
FEBR Bi
BRELR gm/ Wy gm/ wy
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAET FTAET
2023 —BZ=F
RMB AR 5% 1,405 1,540
2022 —_EF-=
RMB AR 5% 520 520
Interest rate risk = = b

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to certain trade receivables, bank balances—
general and loan payables. It is the Group’s policy to
keep its assets and liabilities at floating rate of interests
so as to minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

The Group’'s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
relating to the fluctuation of Hong Kong prime rate
(“prime rate”) and Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
(“HIBOR”) arising from the Group’s interest bearing
financial instruments.

AEEBAZEETHE S EKE
R RITESR-——RRENE
FHEBEZREREN AR -
AEBZBRERBEIHNEE
BEHEENMNBE USKAFE
A & R = R

AEBZREREMNEERE
REGAKEZGFEEMITA
EXZEEREENE([RE
BERMR|)EBBRITRERE
(IBEBRTEARKFE])XEM
g o

HE= R AR A A
—EC-FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBERRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —FE = =F =H=+—HIFZ

34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

(Continued)

(B] FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

As at reporting date, the Group’s financial instruments
with variable interest rate were as follows:

U.YHERAMEERDQFE

T B &)

(B) B 7% /a2 &7 B 12 R

xR (F)
FEREE (47)

RBEEEH XEEAFHF
FHEEZERMTANT:

2023 2022
—Eg-= = —
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHERT FHE T
Assets BE
Trade receivables Z 5 KRR
— cash and margin clients -RekHREPRP 28,359 46,170
Bank balances - general RIT8E - — 111,748 190,418
Liability afE
Loan payables EER - 100,458

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on the exposure to variable interest rates at
the end of the reporting year. The analysis is prepared
assuming the amounts outstanding at the end of the
reporting year were outstanding for the whole year.
A 100 basis points (2022: 100 basis points) increase
or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

As at 31 March 20283, if the interest rate had been 100
(2022: 100) basis point higher/lower, the Group’s loss
for the year would decrease/increase by HK$1,170,000
(2022: HK$1,137,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mAEMBRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

(Continued)

U.UERBEER DA

T = (@)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (B) B 75 e & FE B 12 KR IH

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Price risk

The Group is exposed to price risk through its
investment in listed debt and equity securities and
derivative financial instruments. The Group’s price risk
is mainly concentrated on debt and equity securities
and derivative financial instruments quoted in the
related stock exchange. The management manages
this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments
with different risk and return profiles.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to price risk at the reporting
date.

As at 31 March 2023, if the prices of the respective
debt and equity securities and derivative financial
instruments had been 5% (2022: 5%) higher/lower,
loss for the year ended 31 March 2023 would be
decreased/increased by HK$2,985,000 (2022:
HK$225,000).

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows.

R (%)
B 4% B B

AREBFEBE FHEREEAR
BHEUARITEER T ARE A
XERAR -AKEZERE
SEIEETRERBIESFRS
FR¥RE 2 BB RRARE A K
TEeMTRA-EHEEELMSE
FRBREE®RERZKREHEA
EEAERAR-

BRED

TXZBRE DI T RIBER W
TAMAZZERRAREE -

RZE-_=ZF=ZA=+—8"
fied 18 Il & 75 2 AR 72N 38 55 LA Je 07
ESBMITAZER LA/ T
5% (ZEZZF:5%) #HEZ
T ZF=-A=+—HIFE
2 BB R L1 hn2,985,000
B (ZF Z Z 4 225,000
JT) °

REBESRR

REBRBDESRARE A&

CERLERRERASE
BYENREERER /TR ZK
FOUBNAKE S E LR
BEREREKBZFE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBERRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —FE = =F =H=+—HIFZ

34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

(Continued)

(B] FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. For non-
derivatives financial liabilities, the table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay.

U.YHERAMEERDQFE

T B &)

(B) B 7% /a2 &7 B 12 R

xR (F)
FEBESER (£)

TRFLAEEEREBEBEZF
HREMNIHE -RIFETES R
BEME ZRCREAKH
AENz&FEHzZeRMEE
ZARBEHACRERE -

More than More than Carrying
Within 1year but 2 years but Total amounts
1 year or on less than less than undiscounted as at
demand 2 years 5 years cash flows 31 March
R=A
—ER —EQE MENL  KBRERS =+-H
RER (EIRWME EIRIEFE REARE ZREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TER TER TAER TAT
2023 ZZ-=ZF
Non-derivative financial liabilties FTESRERE
Trade payables, other BH5RAER HtE
payables and accruals HBEREGER 141,682 - - 141,682 141,682
Corporate bonds AAfEH 29,380 2,001 - 31,381 31,202
Lease liabilities HEERE 5,533 107 - 5,640 5,574
176,595 2,108 - 178,703 178,458
2022 —E-F
Non-derivative financial liabilities Fesmas
Trade payables, other B HREMRR KR
payables and accruals HERENER 179,461 - - 179,461 179,461
Loan payables ERER 100,682 - - 100,682 100,458
Corporate bonds RAlEF 34,463 29,380 2,001 65,844 63,526
Convertible bonds ABRES - - - - -
Lease liabilities HEaR 7,005 4,881 - 11,886 11,621
321,611 34,261 2,001 357,873 355,066
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mAEMBRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

(Continued)

BRI EERATE

2l =
——l‘ /48 )
nl B2 (&)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (B) B 75 e & FE B 12 KR IH

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continueq)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

The aggregate undiscounted principal and interest of
the loan payables with on demand clause as set out
above are based on the scheduled payment terms as
the directors do not believe that it is probable that the
bank will exercise its discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment as at 31 March 2023 and 2022.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a
financial instrument would fail to discharge its obligation
under the terms of the financial instrument and cause
a financial loss to the Group. The Group’s exposure
to credit risk mainly arises from granting credit to
customers in the ordinary course of its operations.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the
components of the consolidated statement of financial
position at 31 March 2023 and 2022 is the carrying
amount as disclosed in note 34(a).

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the management of the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each debtor at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate ECL are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regards, the management
of the Group considers that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

= (&)
hEBESRR (£)

LT REREEERRIE
NERzZKRMRASRAER
BUBEEXNFHAEEM
EEZETIMRBRITER =
T =—FRZFTZ_F=H
T —BITEERNBEREILAESK
BB 8K o

FERR

EFERRESRIAHF IR
ERESMIAKRETESR
B A S BEK B IR K
Rk A&E®HNEESRR
TEREREBEFEBKBRESR
AEPEHEE-

REERRZZTE_=FR=F
——HF=ZA=+—B&HEAUHK
MRS AT ZREEE
B AN i34 T EE 2 BE M
=R

REEEERR KAEEERE
BEEeZk—x/MHAAEERE
ERE EEURRETEM
SRR NERIEIRER
1e Y42 (B 80 ER A& 1R @ e 5 - AN SR ]
EERENBREHAREHNSHEE
YBR R 2 AT W B & 58 - DA RE AR
AR E S RBEEL B HZTE
HEERRRE Bt A&HE
EEERASAEEZEERR
ERE R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBHRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 — £ -~ =4 =H=+—H I F/&Z

34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT b.WBEREERAFE
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT ArE e

(Continued)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (B) ! M‘Zﬂ B RE R

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (excluded margin clients]) and
contract assets

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide
the ECL prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use
of the lifetime expected credit loss provision.

To measure the ECL, trade receivables (excluded
margin clients) and contract assets have been grouped
based on the days past due. The ECL also incorporates
forward-looking information, which was taken into
account the possible impacts associated with the
overall change in the economic environment arising
from COVID-19.

As at 31 March 20283, the carrying amounts consist
of gross trade receivables (excluded margin financing)
and contract assets amounted to HK$4,269,000
(2022: HK$2,073,000). Based on the Group’s internal
crediting rating and the above basis, certain trade
receivables (excluded margin clients) of HK$3,000
(2022: HK$570,000) have been written off.

The credit risks of trade receivables from HKSCC
are considered to be insignificant because the
counterparties had high credit rating and are governed
by regulators including the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority and the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
Commission. The risk of default in repayment of these
debtors are considered to be minimal by the directors
and no ECL provision were made for these debtors.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

(Continued)

(B] FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

mEMBRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

.U RREERAFE

& e

(B) B 7% /a2 &7 B 12 R

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (excluded margin clients] and
contract assets (Continued)

The credit risks of trade receivables from the cash

clients are considered to be insignificant because the

counterparties had sufficient pledged securities, the risk
of default in repayment of these debtors are considered
to be minimal by the directors and no ECL provision

were made for these debtors.

The following table details the risk profile of the Group’s
trade receivables from other businesses and contract

assets:

As at 31 March 2023
R-ZB-=f=A=1-H

Within 31to
30 days 60 days
30HA 31260H

()
EERKE (&)

EZ WS (FFREF )
RENEE (&)

RUEREEFPZERERRZE
ERBREAESLE NEKR JIH
RRSHFHERHERES
EERRREEBAETED
[ B & 08 - B30 g 3% F R
RRIEHTRMEEERRE-

TRADAEERE LM XL
RENEEZEHRWERZ
R B R L -

61 to 91 to Over
90 days 365 days 1 year Total
61290H 91Z3650 HB-F @

Not credit impaired

Credit impaired

PREREERE HREERE
Expected credit loss rate BHEEREE 5% 29% 94% 61% 100%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000)  #BEM(E (TiE L) 418 444 42 1,100 1,357 3,361
Loss allowance (HK$’000) BERE(TEL) (20) (128) (39) (670) (1,357) (2,214)
398 316 3 430 - 1,147
Within 31to 61 to 91 to Over
As at 31 March 2022 30 days 60 days 90 days 365 days 1 year Total
R-E--f=A=+-H 30BA  31ZE608  61F90A 91E365H  BHAE—F FoE
Not credit impaired Credit impaired
TREREERE HBREERE
Expected credit loss rate EHEEHEX 0% 0% 0% 0% 100%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000)  #B8EME (FiEL) 59 - 341 557 682 1,639
Loss allowance (HK$'000) EEEE (FHT) - - - - (682) (682)
59 - 341 557 - 957
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBHRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —FE = =F =H=+—HIFZ

34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT UYERABREERAFE
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT ArE e

(Continued)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (B) B 75 e & FE B 12 KR IH
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) E(E)

Credit risk (Continued)

Loan receivables and trade receivables from
margin clients

The Group’s impairment requirements are based on
an ECL model. The Group assesses the ECL for loan
receivables and trade receivables from margin clients
individually and measures the ECL equal to 12-month
ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL.

The credit risk on substantial portion of loan receivables
and trade receivables from margin clients are limited
because significant amount of balances are secured
by the pledged listed securities and certain property
units and the counterparties have no historical default
record. The directors expect that the general economic
conditions will not significantly changed for the 12
months’ after the reporting date.

As at 31 March 20283, the carrying amount of
trade receivables from margin clients amounted to
HK$28,359,000 (2022: HK$46,146,000) (net of ECL
of HK$12,390,000 (2022: HK$2,111,000)). During
the year ended 31 March 2023, ECL amounted to
HK$10,279,000 (2022: HK$2,057,000 has been
reversed) has been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

(Continued)

(B] FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Loan receivables and trade receivables from
margin clients (Continued)

As at 31 March 2023, the carrying amount of loan
receivables amounted to HK$12,247,000 (2022:
HK$50,727,000), ECL of nil (2022: nil) has been
recognised for loan receivables in stage 1 during
the years ended 31 March 2023. ECL amounted
to HK$4,906,000 (2022: HK$2,686,000) for a loan
receivable in stage 2 has been recognised during the
year ended 31 March 2023.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 47.95%
(2022: 44.4%) and 100% (2022: 100%) of the total loan
receivables was due from the Group’s largest borrower
and the five largest borrowers respectively.

It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to
obtain loans from the group are subject to management
review. Receivable balances are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

Regulatory deposits, other receivables and
deposits

The Group considers the ECL is low based on historical
settlement records and past experience. The Group has
assessed that the ECL of these financial assets are not
material under the 12-month expected loss method.
Thus no ECL (2022: nil) has been recognised during
the year ended 31 March 2023.

Bank balances —trust and general

The credit risks of bank balances — trust and general
are considered to be insignificant because the
counterparties are banks/financial institutions with high
credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating

agencies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBERRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —FE = =F =H=+—HIFZ

34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

(Continued)

(C] FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial instruments measured at fair value in the
consolidated statement of financial position are
categorised into the three level fair value hierarchies as
defined in HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”.

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical financial instruments.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for
the financial instruments, either directly
or indirectly, and not using significant
unobservable inputs.

Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs for the
financial instruments.

The following table gives information about how fair
values of these financial instruments are determined (in
particular, the valuation technique(s) and input(s) used).

GoFintech Innovation Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

(Continued)

(C] FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continueq)

Fair value Fair value

Financial assets and as at as at

financial liabilities 31.3.2023 31.3.2022
R-ZEBE-=F Bt St

=A=1T-—H ENESaE

cREERSHEE ZR¥E Z~E

.U RREERAFE

& e

(C] @ T Az 2 -FENE

(%)

Fair value  Valuation technique(s) and key
hierarchy input(s)

fEE R M R

ATEER TEBARE

Financial assets at FVTPL
BRAFEIANBSERZ
TREE
- Equity securities listed 10,922 5,391
in Hong Kong
—-REBE LM ZREZH
- Equity instruments unlisted 5,115 -
outside Hong Kong
—REBIAIZ FEETRA
TH
— Fund investment 30,590 -

-KREES
24,831 -

— Derivative financial 33 -
instruments

—-TEERITA

Financial assets at FVOCI
BATFEINAEM 2 RS2
TRHEE
— Unlisted equity securities - 138

—JFEMBRARE S

Level 1
B
Level 3
B
Level 2
B
Level 3
B
Level 1
B—
Level 3
B

Quoted bid price in active market

ERMISMBZEANE
Recent arm’s length transactions
price and net asset value

MERYRHERREEFE

Investment value with observable
market data
BERBRMSBENKREERE
Recent arm’s length transactions
price and net asset value
EHATRHERRAREFE

Quoted bid price in active market

ERMISMBREAE

Net asset value

BEFE

There were no transfers between level 1, level 2 and
level 3 of fair value hierarchy during the years ended 31
March 2023 and 2022.

()  The fair value of the unlisted equity instrument is
by reference to recent arm's length transactions
price and net asset value of the respective
companies.

HE_Z_ZFr=-_Z—-_—
Z—A=Z+—BILtFE - -AFE
BAMNE—H F_HEF=
A [ D g o

() EEMRATIEZRAFE
N2EER 2 RTFR5(E
BRERERRZEEFRER
H o

HE= R AR A A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBERRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —FE = =F =H=+—HIFZ

34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

(Continued)

[C) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

(i)~ The reconciliation of the carrying amounts of the
Group’s financial instruments classified within
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy is as follows:

Reconciliation of movements in level 3 financial
instruments measured at fair value is as follows:

UUBEEREERAFE

T B &)

(C] @ T Az 2 -FENE

(%)

iy AEBEHEAEAFERER
FoZHNEMTIAZER
BHENT :

BEAFTEAEZEZEH:R
TAMNEHNBREERWOT :

2023 2022

-

—=

HK$'000
TER

Financial

assets at fair

value through

— = s

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TR THEL
Financial Financial
assets assets

at fair value Financial at fair value
eI assets at fair - through other
Gl EENES  value through — comprehensive

profit or loss income profit or loss income

RAFE RAFE

BRAYE SIAE A BRRTE SIAEA

IINER R 2ENE ERINNEE 2ENE

LEMEE ZSREE QAT A T

As at 1 April REA—A - 138 - 138
Additions AE 30,540 - - -
Disposal/transfers e/ EE - (138) - -
Losses through profit or oss SABRE ER (594) - - -
As at 31 March R=A=+-H 29,946 - - 138

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBHRERME (K)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

COMPANY

35.PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

Place of Particulars of
incorporation/  issued and
registration paid up
Name of subsidiary and operations capital
EMRL/ M BRARME
WEARER REEHE EAGE
Fortune (HK) Securities Limited Hong Kong 310,000,000 ordinary shares
EUEFERDA A 310,000,001 & & &
Fortune Asset Management Limited Hong Kong 74,000,000 ordinary shares
ERAEERARLA A 74,000,008 & @ %
Fortune Finance Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares
ERHBERAA i 10,0008 % B %
Fortune Wealth Management Limited Hong Kong 9,200,000 ordinary shares
ERMEERERAA e 9,200,008 % i i
Fortune Financial Capital Limited Hong Kong 36,700,000 ordinary shares
EREREAAERLA A 36,700,000 & B
Fortune Case Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share
BEERLA )i 1REBR
Galaxy Way Development Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 each
EERTHE REBRER1 T
Marvel Champion Investment Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 each
REREERLA ABRIEE REBRER1 T
BREARE (R ERAT The PRC Registered capital of
RMB500,000
HE & & A K %500,0007T
BREE (RI)RBREELERERAA The PRC Registered capital of
RMB30,000,000
mE HHE A AR 30,000,007
RHEERRARERAARLE The PRC Registered capital of
RMB10,000,000
mE &2 AR %10,000,0007T

5. XD BZETEKE QT

Percentage of ownership
interest and voting
power held by the Principal
Company activities
FRRFEEREERR
REEEAN TEXH
2023 2022
—E-= —Z--F
100% 100% Provision of securities brokerage and
margin financing services
REZFLERARBRARY
100% 100% Provision of asset management
services
REEEEERYE
100% 100% Provision of money lending services
RERERS
100% 100% Provision of insurance brokerage
services
RERRELRHK
100% 100% Provision of corporate finance
services
RECERE RS
100% 100% Provision of corporate administrative
services to group companies
MEBRRRECETHRE
100% 100% Equity investment
RiERE
100% 100% Equity investment
RiERE
100% 100% Equity investment
RiERE
100% 100% Provision of asset management
services
REEEERRE
100% 100% Equity investment
RiERE
B =Rl AR AR

SEBECC-FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBERRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —FE = =F =H=+—HIFZ

35.PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

All subsidiaries are companies incorporated with limited
liability in the respective jurisdictions.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of the year or at any time during the years ended 31
March 2023 and 2022.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
or assets and liabilities of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in
particular excessive length.

GoFintech Innovation Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBHRERME (K)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

36.FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 36. QB Z BB E R
COMPANY

[A] STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION [A) K 4 5] 2 BT At 0 7
OF THE COMPANY

2023 2022
—EB_-=F —_=E-
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET F&ET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property and equipment LE &L - -
Investments in joint ventures REERAZ = - -
Investments in subsidiaries RBRRIZIRE 93,851 93,851
93,851 93,851
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables, deposits and Hih g zhig -
prepayments e RIENFE 147 195
Amounts due from subsidiaries NGRS 595,048 597,734
Amounts due from investee JEUR 3% & N A A
company 274 -
Bank balances and cash RITEHR MRS 24,281 72,380
619,750 670,309
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables, other BESEMNERR  HiEN
payables and accruals HEKRETER 2,111 2,029
Amounts due to subsidiaries FET B BB A R 5RIR 402,015 353,040
Loan payables B EK - 100,458
Corporate bonds NEESH 29,185 33,007
Tax payable FER IR 21 21
433,332 488,555
Net current assets REBEEZFE 186,418 181,754
Total assets less current liabilities EEZBERRBEE 280,269 275,605

HE= R AR A A
—EC-FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBERRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —FE = =F =H=+—HIFZ

36.FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE

CO M PA N Y (Continued)

[A) STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY (continueq)

6. KPR Z2HEER )

(A] X 2 5] 2 B FE AR 0 2
(#)

2023 2022
—E_= =SS
Notes HK$’000 HK$’ 000
Mo 3E F#& T FAT
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Corporate bonds NEMESH 2,017 30,519
Net assets EERE 278,252 245,086
Capital and reserves BRAR#E
Share capital fi% < 30 131,797 91,531
Share premium e iR E 36(b) 762,579 689,003
Translation reserve BMERE 36(b) 740 740
Contributed surplus ERHAH® 36(b) 80,657 80,657
Accumulated losses REtEE 36(b) (697,521) (616,845)
Total equity EEE 278,252 245,086
[B) RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (B) K1\ a] .z f#
Convertible
Share bond Translation  Contributed Accumulated
premium reserves reserve surplus losses
TERES
REE i BERHE ESRG 2 ER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FET FTET TEL TEL
At 1 April 2021 R-ZZE-—4mA—AH 689,003 5,161 740 80,657 (611,531)
Loss for the year FEBE - - - - (10,475)
Lapse of conversion option B R B 48 AR A R K
upon maturity (note 28) (FizE28) - (5,161) - - 5,161
At 31 March 2022 and R-ZE-—§=ZF=+—H
1 April 2022 L-ZE-—%#WA—A 689,003 - 740 80,657 (616,845)
Loss for the year FEER - - - - (80,676)
Issue of share EST 73,576 - - - -
At 31 March 2023 RZE-=#=f=+—H 762,579 - 740 80,657 (697,521)

GoFintech Innovation Limited

282 Annual Report 2023



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

36.FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE

CO M PA N Y (Continued)
[B] RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

The contributed surplus of the Company represents
the difference between the fair values of the underlying
net assets of the subsidiaries at the date on which
they were acquired by the Company and the nominal
amount of the Company’s shares issued under the
corporate reorganisation of the Group.

37.CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to Shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balances. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of lease liabilities,
loan payables, corporate bonds, cash and cash equivalents
and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and reserves.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group has loan payables
and corporate bonds, of approximately HK$nil and
HK$31,202,000, respectively (2022: HK$100,458,000
and HK$63,526,000, respectively). As at 31 March 2023,
the Group’s total debt incurred (including loan payables,
corporate bonds and lease liabilities) were approximately
HK$36,776,000 (2022: HK$175,605,000), representing
a gearing ratio of approximately 12.40% (2022: 70.85%).
Gearing ratio is calculated based on total debt divided by
the total equity as at the reporting date.

6. KPR Z2HEER )

[B) K1\ 5] 2 # 1 (&)

ARARzEBBBRENE QA
HEEEFERERARAW
BEAZATFEEREAKE
RAEEMBETZARB RN
HEZHENERE-

37. 8 A& & B 18

AEBERBETEANERAEE
ZEREAFERLE LEBBILE
B MR S8R B IR S KA KB o
REB 7 EBRRERTFEHS

AEBZEARBEEHERAR
BNEF AREF RekReFH
BV AREARBHEE AEEEE
EREREBRTRANEE-

W-_E-_=ZF#=ZA=+—H A&
ERENENERERBIES DA
#)Z 7 o M31,202,0008 L (=&
— — % : % 7] A100,458,000/% 7t &
63,526,000 L) R Z-ZT = =F =
A=+—RB XEBEMELEZHE
B(BEREENER RaEHFLA
EBE)HAE36,776,0008 T (=
— — % :175,605,0008 L) * & &N
BEHERH1240% (T ==

70.85% ) cEARNBEL X TIRHRER
HMBEBRUAEREEAE -

HE= R AR A A
—EC-FFR
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37.CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

The Directors of the Company review the capital structure
regularly. As part of this review, the Directors of the
Company consider the cost of capital and the associated
risks with each class of capital, and take appropriate actions
to adjust the Group’s capital structure.

For certain subsidiaries of the Group, they are regulated by
Securities & Futures Commission (“SFC”) and are required
to comply with certain minimum capital requirements
according to the rules of SFC. Management monitors, on a
daily basis, the subsidiaries’ liquid capital to ensure it meets
the minimum liquid capital requirement in accordance with
the Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules, the
range of liquid capital is from HK$100,000 to HK$3,000,000
or 5% of their total adjusted liabilities, whichever is higher.

Another subsidiary of the Group is a licensed insurance
intermediary under the Insurance Ordinance and is required
to maintain a minimum net asset value of HK$300,000 at all
times.

There is no non-compliance of the capital requirements
imposed by the respective regulators during both years.

GoFintech Innovation Limited
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7. RABBREE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBHRRWEE ()

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —FE = =F =H=+—HIFZ

iy

ARRIEFTHEHNEARE-ER
ZERZ —H ARABEEEEE
ARARSBEHNEN SR 2R A
SRDMEETHAABRAEEBZE
RIRHE -

RAEBAETHBATAMSE KBS
RBFLPEEBERZES ([#
Eg)HAEHEAREBREES 2 A A
BFAETHEEAHA T - EEESH
ERWNBRARIZRBE S  UERE
ERFEBE (FHER)FAET
RERBESHRTE RBEHEN
#100,0005% T 3,000,000 7T 3k &
HEHAEBEBZ (ABRESE AR
A) o

AEBEzS—BRBRAR ARRE
EOIT B IRBR R A WERFT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBHRERME (K)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

38.COMMITMENTS 38.7& B
(A] LEASE COMMITMENT [A) HE&RE
The Group as lessee AEBEEREBEA
As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the Group had RZBEZ=FRZTE=__F=
commitments for short-term leases which fall due as A=+—H Xx&EB 22 HHE
follows: EAER TSR :
2023 2022
—E=-= g
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FAET
Within one year —F LR - 5
[B] CAPITAL COMMITMENT (B] EX&IE
The Group had the following capital commitment at RBEBE AEBEETHIE
reporting date: AN
2023 2022
—E=-= —_=E_—
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET

Contracted but not provided for: BRI4E MR BEE -
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEEINABRERZ
TREE 7,907

HE= R AR A A
—EC-FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBERRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —FE = =F =H=+—HIFZ

39.RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES

V.MEEHELENEREY

ARISING FROM FINANCING AR
ACTIVITIES
Loan Corporate  Convertible Lease
payables bonds bonds liabilities
ENHER AREHZ ABRRES HESE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAEL THEL TAEL FTAEL
At 1 April 2021 RZE-_—FWA—H 161,318 131,292 21,604 18,890
Cash-flows: BeRE
- Repayment of lease liabilities -EEHEAR - - - (8,229)
- Repayment of corporate bonds —-EEARGES - (67,500) - -
- Repayment of loans -EEEX (522,553) - - -
- Proceeds from loans -BRZHBEHE 461,701 - - -
- Redemption upon maturity —3|HEED - - (22,260) -
- Interest paid —BRFE (2,765) (8,030) - (393)
Non-cash: k¥BE:
- Entering into new leases —FuHEE - - - 960
- Finance costs recognised - BHERBENE 2,757 7,764 656 393
At 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 RZZEZZF=A=+—-0K
RZEZ—FNA—H 100,458 63,526 - 11,621
Cash-flows: BERE:
- Repayment of lease liabilities -EBEHEAE - - - (7,052)
- Repayment of corporate bonds -BELNAGESR - (32,000) - -
- Repayment of loans -BEER (300,000) - - -
- Proceeds from loans —-BRHBHAE 200,000 - - -
- Redemption upon maturity -3 EkED - - - -
- Interest paid —-BENFHE (2,170) (3,552) - (194)
Non-cash: HE:
- Entering into new leases —iuHEE - - - 1,005
- Finance costs recognised -BEBERRERL 1,712 3,228 - 194
At 31 March 2023 RZEZ=F=A=+—H - 31,202 - 5,574
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40.

41.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBMRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFE

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
for those employees who are eligible to participate in
the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employee’s basic salaries and charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

Pursuant to the regulations of the relevant authorities in
the PRC, the subsidiaries of the Group in PRC participate
in respective government retirement benefit scheme (the
“Scheme”) whereby the subsidiaries are required to
contribute to the Scheme to fund the retirement benefits
of the eligible employees. Contributions made to the
Scheme are calculated based on certain percentages
of the applicable payroll costs as stipulated under the
requirement in the PRC. The relevant authorities of the PRC
are responsible for the entire pension obligations payable
to the retired employees. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the Scheme is to pay the ongoing required
contribution under the Schemes.

The total cost charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of HK$1,324,000 (2022: HK$1,433,000) represents
contributions payable to the schemes by the Group in
respect of the year ended 31 March 2023.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been re-presented to
enhance comparability with the current year consolidated
financial statements.

40

41.
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

EFUBRREE

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=+—HLEE

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—E-=H —E—F ZTZTF ZT-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000
FHET FAT FET FE T FHT
RESULTS E¥
Revenue A 26,943 58,487 131,718 179,401 108,072
Net investment gains/(losses) ‘EWE (BE)FE (4,630) (3,151) 18,952 (13,384) (646)
Loss before tax R Bt A ES 18 (58,863) (79,534) (7,937) (62,176) (102,743)
Income tax credit (expense) FrigfiEe, (FAx) 8 225 (5,558) (9,638) (1,436)
Loss for the year attributable AR RHEE AFEAS
to owners of the Company REEEE (58,855) (79,309) (13,495) (71,814) (104,179)
Loss per share TREE B
(HK cents) (Restated) (&%)
Basic A (5.58) 66) (1.47) (7.85) (13.75)
Diluted e (5.58) 66) (1.47) 7.85) (13.75)
As at 31 March
R=A=+-—H
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—EB-=f§ ZEZ—F ZTZTF ZT-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FHE T BT FHET FAT FHET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Total assets BERE 475,761 604,610 955,444 1,166,730 1,485,500
Total liabilities BERE (179,292) (356,751) (631,136) (843,216) (1,077,774)
296,469 247,859 324,308 323,514 407,726
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